THE UNIVERSITY OF NEW SOUTH WALES CRICKET CLUB

ANNUAL REPORT

2006/07

CONTENTS

Past Office Bearers	4
Office Bearers	5
Award Winners	6
Club Honours	9
Premiership Winning Teams	10
President's Report	12
Coaching Report	13
Captains' Statistics	14
First Grade Report	15
Second Grade Report	26
Third Grade Report	32
Fourth Grade Report	38
Fifth Grade Report	46
Sixth Grade Report	53
Poidevin-Gray Shield Report	58
A.W. Green Shield Report	62
Universities Women's Cricket Club	66
Combined Club Statistics	68
Player of the Year Points	75
Career Statistics	77
Club Records	91
Partnership Records	94

UNSW Cricket Club would like to thank the following sponsors:

THE UNIVERSITY OF **NEW SOUTH WALES**

















PAST OFFICE BEARERS

PATRON

Prof RH Myers	1973-81
Prof M Birt	1981-85

Hon G Samuels AC, QC 1985-94 (Life Patron 1994)

Sir Anthony Mason AC 1994-2004
Prof Mark Wainwright AM 2004-2006
Prof Fred Hilmer AO 2006-

PRESIDENT

Major Wilthew	1951-53	Y Marshall	1976-77
Prof AE Alexander	1953-57	A Epstein	1977-79
Prof EB Smyth	1957-61	Dr J Ingleson	1979-86
Prof HJ Oliver	1961-63	D Meagher	1986-90
Prof SE Livingstone	1963-64	G Clark	1990-91
Dr EC Watton	1964-66	C Chapman	1991-01
CH Barrington	1966-76	P Jourdain	2001-

HONORARY SECRETARY

V Turner	1951-53	JR Wegner	1969-72
J Brooks	1953-54	Dr JP Barford	1972-75
C Davis	1954	RP Zabell	1975-76
Dr EC Watton	1954-55	GF Mullins	1976-77
Dr B Frawley	1955-56	Ms J Ratcliffe	1977-79
JR Beard	1956-58	AN McMaster	1979-83
R Warroner	1958-59	S Campbell	1983-84
MJ Reidy	1959-60	L Darmody	1984-87
CH Barrington	1960-62	P Godber	1987-93
D Lacey	1962-63	JO Carmichael	1993-96
GM Garland	1963-65	AC Jones	1996-97
MJ Gosling	1965-66	C Vonwiller	1997-98
Dr PJ Schofield	1966-67	M Sanders	1998-03
JE Pratley	1967-69	P Serov	2003-
, = 1 10000	270. 07	1 2010 (=000

HONORARY TREASURER

R Emerson	1954-56	HW Hopkins	1971-74
G Wilton	1956-57	RW Merrell	1974-79
W Dwyer	1957-60	PE James	1979-80
J MckMiddleton	1960-61	MT Sample	1980-86
JT Hall	1961-64	P Jourdain	1986-97
J Chegwyn	1964-66	D Quinlin	1997-01
A Conomos	1966-67	T Buckett	2001-02
GJ Cole	1967-69	J Dixon	2002-
D Wills	1969-70		
PC Emery	1970-71		

Office Bearers 2006/2007

<u>President</u> Peter Jourdain

HONORARY SECRETARY Paul Serov

CHAIRMAN OF SELECTORS David Jebb

HONORARY TREASURER Jim Dixon

HONORARY AUDITOR David Quinlin

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

P Jourdain (Chairman) O Higgins J Dixon
P Serov G Lawson M Sanders
D Mann J Plunkett-Cole D Jebb
S McKay P Maguire P Carson
D Carson D Christian A Neilan

LIFE MEMBERS

J Beard MJ Reidy HC Bundy Pr SE Livingstone J Mck Middleton Dr EC Watton GN Garland **CH** Barrington A Taylor **RW Merrell** A Epstein J Martel M Ray **JD** MacFarlane J Rogers PE James Pr J Barford G Lawson G Livingstone JG Robson G Robinson M Slater D Meagher J Dixon C Chapman G Clark M Sanders

D Lemon R Stark

UNSW SPORTS ASSOCIATION LIFE MEMBERSHIP

J Martel G Lawson

SELECTION COMMITTEE

D Jebb (Chairman) D Carson / D Christian D Bhandari / M Elliott

P Jourdain

D Bowcock M Mag A Jones

T Boyce

BLUES COMMITTEE

G Lawson G Livingstone J Martel

SCA DELEGATES

G Lawson (NSWCA) M Sanders

SPORTS ASSOCIATION DELEGATES

D Mann S McKay

AWARD WINNERS

AUSTRALIAN REPRESENTATIVES

1979-90 G Lawson1993-01 M Slater

THE AUSTRALIAN SPORTS MEDAL

1999-00 G Lawson

THE UNSW SPORTING HALL OF FAME

2002-03 G Lawson

SHEFFIELD SHIELD REPRESENTATIVES

1977-78 G Watson	1982-83 M Ray	1995-96 J Young
1977-92 G Lawson	1991-03 M Slater	

BLUES WINNERS

J Mck Middleton	JS Dixon
DC Clark	J Baker
RWD Robertson	G Livingstone
GC Robinson	M Back
JB Martel	A White
M Ray	M Phelps
S Van der Sluys	D Carson
P Grattan-Smith	T Richardson
C Chapman	A Blackwell
G Lawson	J Day
G Watson	
JG Robson	
	DC Clark RWD Robertson GC Robinson JB Martel M Ray S Van der Sluys P Grattan-Smith C Chapman G Lawson G Watson

SPORTS RECOGNITION AWARD

CH Barrington	RW Merrell	M Sanders
A Epstein	JD MacFarlane	D Jebb
GM Garland	J Rogers	P Richardson
JE Ingleson	J Dixon	

BEN LEXCEN SCHOLARSHIPS

W Faulkner	T Hoare	S McKay
A Fleming	T Richardson	G Dobbie
M Phelps	D Christian	A Blackwell
D Carson	J Day	T Cooper
S Hungerford		_

TED DAVIS TROPHY - PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1967-68 GJ Cole	1981-82 JG Robson	1995-96 JG Robson
1968-69 AJ Taylor	1982-83 N Perger	1996-97 A Lindsay
1969-70 GM Garland	1983-84 G Robinson	1997-98 J Stam
1970-71 GM Garland	1984-85 G Clark	1998-99 I Salisbury
1971-72 PJ Schofield	1985-86 G Livingstone	1999-00 A Lamb
1972-73 GM Garland	1986-87 M Gregg	2000-01 D Carson
1973-74 M Ray	1987-88 A Clements	2001-02 R Stark
1974-75 M Ray	1988-89 J Baker	2002-03 R Stark
1975-76 M Ray	1989-90 JG Robson	2003-04 D Christian
1976-77 S Campbell	1990-91 J Baker	2004-05 M Creed/T Lang
1977-78 W Hetherington	1991-92 M Slater	2005-06 D Christian
1978-79 M Ray	1992-93 D Gallop	2006-07 D Christian
1979-80 I Kellaway	1993-94 J Young	
1980-81 M Ray	1994-95 M Phelps	

CAPTAIN JOHN MORRIS FIELDING TROPHY

1958-59 J Middleton	1975-76	C Chapman	1992-93 G Hill
1959-60 R Werley	1976-77	D Meagher	1993-94 A Pratt
1960-61 D Lacey	1977-78	D Meagher	1994-95 M Kovacs
1961-62 H Boulton	1978-79	J Barford	1995-96 B Schirmer
1962-63 R Smith	1979-80	C Hanger	1996-97 A Lamb
1963-64 G Sylvester	1980-81	J Sackett	1997-98 S Mohideen
1964-65 J Middleton	1981-82	J Sackett	1998-99 A Neilan
1965-66 D Webster	1982-83	B Everett	1999-00 A Lamb
1966-67 GJ Cole	1983-84	B Everett	2000-01 A Pratt
1967-68 RSJ Levi	1984-85	M Back	2001-02 A Neilan
1968-69 D Wills	1985-86	J Dixon	2002-03 C Britton
1969-70 RWD Robertson	1986-87	M Back	2003-04 A Neilan
1970-71 RWD Robertson	1987-88	M Kovacs	2004-05 A Neilan
1971-72 J Martel	1988-89	D Cummins	2005-06 M Sykes
1972-73 J Martel	1989-90	A Pratt	2006-07 M Gowland
1973-74 D Pratt	1990-91	A Pratt	
1974-75 I Smith	1991-92	S Norbury	

BARR-TURN TROPHY

1968-69 R Lucas	1981-82 J	Robson	1994-95	M Gregg
1969-70 G Garland	1982-83 R	R Stark	1995-96	T Buckett
1970-71 R Robertson	1983-84 C	G Holt	1996-97	D Jebb
1971-72 P Larkin	1984-85 P	^o Scolari	1997-98	D Stephen
1972-73 P Dobell-Brown	1985-86 N	M Ryan	1998-99	T Hoare
1973-74 R Merrell	1986-87 E	E Robb	1999-00	M Plunkett-Cole
1974-75 John Pym	1987-88 J	Dixon	2000-01	M Mag
1975-76 Richard Pym	1988-89 J	Gallagher	2001-02	P Carson
1976-77 P Grattan-Smith	1989-90 N	M Kovacs	2002-03	M Leahy
1977-78 J O'Brien	1990-91 P	Sinclair	2003-04	A Langdon
1978-79 G Robinson	1991-92 N	M Hayward	2004-05	R Dooley
1979-80 D Pratt	1992-93 D	O Trafford	2005-06	S McKay
1980-81 D Meagher	1993-94 N	M Phelps	2006-07	D Carson

CLUBMAN OF THE YEAR

1991-92 P Trimble	1997-98 GLawson/JDixon	2002-03 D Sue
1992-93 D Downing	1998-99 M Sanders	2003-04 P Serov
1994-95 M Kovacs	1999-00 J Plunkett-Cole	2004-05 O Higgins
1995-96 J Carmichael	2000-01 D Jebb	2005-06 T Christian
1996-97 AC Jones	2001-02 P Richardson	2006-07 P Maguire

JOHN ROGERS TROPHY FOR POIDEVIN-GRAY PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1983-84 M Hoy	1991-92 M Hayward	1999-00 T Hoare
1984-85 L Gray	1992-93 D Gainsford	2000-01 M Elliott
1985-86 S O'Brien	1993-94 M Payne	2001-02 A Langdon
1986-87 M Back	1994-95 S Mohideen	2002-03 D Christian
1987-88 A White	1995-96 B Nott	2003-04 D Christian
1988-89 A Flemming	1996-97 P Hemphill	2004-05 J Day
1989-90 A Flemming	1997-98 A Lamb	2005-06 J Day / S Robson
1990-91 P Sinclair	1998-99 R Hamman	2006-07 M Gowland

ROOKIE AWARD

1989-90 B Calver	1997-98 T Hoare	2002-03 M O'Connor
1990-91 D Trafford	1998-99 T Cox	2003-04 M Creed
1991-92 M Hayward	1999-00 D Bandhari	2004-05 T Lang
1992-93 M Phelps	2000-01 S Bray	2005-06 T Van Der Gugten
1993-97 Not Awarded	2001-02 G McDonald	2006-07 A Robson

LADIES PLAYER OF THE YEAR

1989-90 J Van Ardenne	1996-97 Not awarded	2002-03 G Connolly
1990-91 J Van Ardenne	1997-98 G Connolly	2003-04 No Ladies Team
1991-92 J Van Ardenne	1998-99 Not awarded	Universities Women's Cricket Club
1992-93 P van Oploo	1999-00 Not awarded	2004-05 K Blackwell
1994-95 S Zeppos	2000-01 G Connolly	2005-06 A Vaughan
1995-96 A Sanders	2001-02 J Miller	2006-07 R Earnshaw

DOUBLE WICKET COMPETITION

1971-72	D Wills/J Howe	1983-84	No contest
1972-75	No contest	1984-85	M Back/E Robb
1975-76	P Grattan-Smith/G Lawson	1985-86	Rained out
1976-77	No contest	1986-87	J Abbott/J Wilcher
1977-78	N Jansson/M Herring	1987-88	G Lawson/A Shaw
1978-79	S Campbell/I Kellaway	1988-93	No contest
1979-81	No contest	1993-94	M Hayward/R Wickramasena
1981-82	J Robson/J Gallagher	1994-07	No contest
1982-83	J Robson/P Jourdain		

CLUB HONOURS

MUNICIPAL AND SHIRES COMPETITION (ENTERED 1951)

B Division Premiers	1963-64
A Division Premiers	1964-65
Club Champions	1964-65
A Division Premiers	1965-66
Club Champions	1965-66
B Division Premiers	1966-67
Club Champions	1966-67
A Division Premiers	1967-68
B Division Premiers	1967-68
Club Champions	1967-68
Club Champions	1968-69
A Division Premiers	1970-71
Club Champions	1970-71
A Division Premiers	1971-72
Club Champions	1971-72
D Division One-Day Premiers	1986-87

GRADE COMPETITION (ENTERED 1973-74)

2nd Grade Encouragement Award	1974-75
3rd Grade Encouragement Award	1975-76
1st Grade Premiers	1976-77
Poidevin-Gray Premiers	1976-77
2nd Grade Premiers	1977-78
Club Champions	1978-79
1st Grade Premiers	1980-81
5th Grade Premiers	1995-96
Ist Grade Limited-Overs Premiers	2004-05

INTER-VARSITY

Champions	1974-75
Champions	1986-87
Champions	1988-89
Champions	1995-96
Champions	2003-04

WOMEN'S CRICKET

Third Grade Premiers 2001-02

PREMIERSHIP WINNING TEAMS

B DIVISION 1963-64

HC Bundy (C), TD Creer (VC), RG Ballantyne, R Bayfield, DC Clark, J Hollington, I Lowe, F Martin, I Potter, G Sylvester, RW Smith, C Relton (12th).

A DIVISION 1964-65

J Chegwyn (C), J Mck Middleton (VC), BG Andrews, DC Clark, RG Ballantyne, K Daly, G Garland, J Piggott, G Sylvester, JJ Reidy, PA Wark.

A DIVISION 1965-66

J Chegwyn (C), J Mck Middleton (VC), CH Barrington, R Bayfield, A Bishop, GJ Cole, D Lacey, D Popcock, AJ Taylor, AR Turner, DE Willis.

A DIVISION 1967-68

HC Bundy (C), JE Pratley (VC), BG Andrews, RG Ballantyne, JN Healey, H Herbert, RSJ Levi, I Lowe, PJ McEarchran, J Mck Middleton, DE Wills, PC Emery (12th).

B Division 1967-68

RW Lucas (C), PJ Schofield (VC), CH Barrington, D Brady, R Bayfield, GJ Cole, J Piggott, C Relton, AJ Taylor, AR Turner, PA Ward.

A DIVISION 1970-71

JE Pratley (C), GM Garland (VC), GJ Cole, BR Cos, AE Dietsch, PA Heaney, JB Martel, Z Pirjevec, RWD Robertson, GG Robinson, DG Smith.

A DIVISION 1971-72

GM Garland (C), AE Dietsch (VC), GJ Cole, BR Cos, PA Heaney, JB Martel, GAN Preston, CAP Samerasekera, AJ Taylor, P Whalen, DE Wills, HW Hopkins, RWD Robertson, GG Robinson.

INTER-VARSITY CHAMPIONS 1974-75

J Martel (C), C Chapman, J Robson, P James, J Barford, S Tait, R March, S Wiblin, C Brown, R Zabell, G Kirkwood, D Barbour, M Ray, P Grattan-Smith.

2ND GRADE ENCOURAGEMENT AWARD 1974-75

R Robertson, G Garland, A Taylor, P Burnett, D Smith, D Barbour, P Watkins, C Brown, G Kirkwood, A Jacobs, P Grattan-Smith, A Wijeratne, P Noble.

3RD GRADE ENCOURAGEMENT AWARD 1975-76

J Ingleson, C Kiefel, I Smith, B Cox, G Cole, G Garland, S Howard, M Bryce, R Zabell, J Cutler, T Haymet.

1ST GRADE 1976-77

J Rogers (C), J Martel, R Pym, G Watson, G Livingstone, C Chapman, J Robson, G Lawson, J O'Brien, P Deegan, M Ray, S Campbell, P Grattan-Smith, M Watt.

POIDEVIN-GRAY 1976-77

J Robson (C), M Bryce, J Carmichael, S Howard, N Jansson, P Jourdain, G Kirkwood, G Lawson, G Livingstone, D Meagher, N Perger, M Watt.

2ND GRADE 1977-78

T Buddin (C), P Deegan, R Campbell, N Jansson, P Tout, B Handley, G Kirkwood, R Pym, R March, G Robinson, I Smith, J Martel, N Perger, D Pratt, P Emery, J Sands, P Jourdain.

1ST GRADE 1980-81

M Ray (C), T Buddin, C Chapman, G Lawson, B Handley, C Hanger, J Dixon, P Tout, N Perger, S Campbell, N Jansson, G Livingstone, J Robson, A Wijeratne, D Meagher.

D DIVISION M&S ONE-DAY PREMIERS 1986-87

D Bell (C), D Hughes, J Hughes, P Bush, S Bell, M Howe, D Joseph, G Morgan, D Graham, J Warrington, D Fitzsimmons.

INTERVARSITY CHAMPIONS 1986-87

J Baker (C), J Abbott, B Cooper, A Szabo, J Martin, S O'Brien, D Roper, W McKay, L Gray, P Warrington, M Palin, N Horne, M Back, J Orchard.

INTERVARSITY CHAMPIONS 1988-89

A Shaw (C), P Sinclair, D Coots, A Flemming, M Kovacs, N Wood, A White, A McCallum, T Grosser, S Raju, D Cummins.

INTERVARSITY CHAMPIONS 1995-96

M Phelps (C), P Carson, D Carson, D Culhane, S Mohideen, M Leahy, P Levett, P Searle, S Gerber, M Hayward, A Cavill, G Shanthan

5TH GRADE PREMIERS 1995-96

R Stark (C), P Searle, C Neal, C Jameson, S Gerber, T Buckett, G Shepherd, P Carson, G Harris, P Levett, M Robson, G Clark, M Hughes.

WOMEN'S THIRD GRADE PREMIERS 2001-02

Jess Miller, Anita Martel, Jo Skinner, Cathy Firkin, Michelle Hone, Cassandra Lees, Karen Soo, Jill Kinna, Gemma Connolly, Lena Caruso, Nikki Martel, Sophie Anderson, Jackie Kimber

INTERVARSITY CHAMPIONS 2003-04

Chris Thomas ©, Sohail Mohideen, Omar Zaffar, Jim Day, David Mann, David Mitchell, Jim Byrne, John MacCallum, Nigel Singh, Will Sommerville, Nathan Ball, Michael Watson

1ST GRADE LIMITED-OVERS PREMIERS 2004-05

David Carson ©, Daniel Christian, Murray Creed, Mitchell O'Connor, Cade Brown, Jim Day, Tim Lang, Ian Salisbury, Andrew Neilan, Eric Zehner, Tim Cox, Michael Elliott.

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

The club went into season 2006/2007 with high expectations following a strong fifth place in the club championship the previous season. Talk of challenging for the club championship drifted around the club during during the pre-season but unfortunately this talk did not transpire to results. Despite some outstanding individual performances, none of the men's teams were able to make the finals.

First grade struggled with seven consecutive losses to start the season however they won nine of their last twelve games to finish in the top half of the table, defeating a number of the eventual finalists along the way. Outstanding performances throughout the season included **Dan Christian** at his explosive best for Sydney South-East in the State League, earning a spot in the NSW limited-overs team (going on to be their second-top leading run-scorer). **Tim Lang** had another stellar season with the ball, earning a place in the NSW 20/20 team alongside Dan. **James Day** had a great season with bat and ball, deservedly winning a University Blue in his final year of study. **Tom Cooper** continued to improve and it was great to hear that he and Tim had retained their State-contracts.

The club's lower grades all struggled at certain times during the season with player unavailability being a problem that impacted significantly on team cohesiveness. The off-season hs seen considerable thought by the club's senior players into developing a strategy to rejuvenate our on-field performances, notably initiatives to restructure practice sessions and our social calendar. I am sure that all players will see the benefit of this new strategy in the coming season.

Last season was also notable for the performances of some of young brigade. **Timm Van Der Gugten** represented the NSW Under 17's and became the club's youngest ever first-grade player and **Sam Robson** represented the NSW Under 19's. Fourteen-year-old **Angus Robson** peeled off over 700 runs in his first season of a grade cricket and was deserved recipient of the Rookie of the Year Award.

The Universities Womens Cricket Club are continued to develop in their third season of operating and it was great to see their third grade team become their first team ever to make the finals. Our junior club entered five teams this season from U10's through to U16's. A big thanks to **Michelle Dunn** who has coordinated the junior teams the last few seasons and is now taking a deserved rest.

A big event this season was the "Five Summers, Five Flags" Reunion Dinner attended by past and present players to celebrate the 30th anniversary of our first first-grade premiership. It was a great evening and enjoyed by all who attended. A special thanks to **Greg Livingstone**, **Mark Ray** and the rest of the organising team. The commemorative book published for the occasion is a must read for any current club member wishing to gain an appreciation of the history and the many characters who have contributed to the development of our club.

The club would not operate without the efforts of our committee and I would like to thanks guys like Henry, Disco, Paul Serov, Jebby, Peter Maguire, David Mann, David Carson, Peter Carson, Stuart McKay, Olly Higgins and Darren Sue who contribute many hours to the club. I especially thank Paul for the countless hours he spends dealing with many of thankless tasks that must be done.

I would also like to thank **Peter Richardson**, **Graeme Smith** and **Rod Evans** for their efforts with first grade and club training sessions, **Warren Smith** and **Michael O'Brien** with Green Shield and **Suey** and **Olly** with PG's. Also, **Toni Christian** did a wonderful job running Café VG.

Finally, I would like to make special mention of two club legends – **Geoff "Henry" Lawson** and **James "Disco" Dixon**. Both of these guys will be notably absent for this coming season, Henry heading to Lahore as coach of the Pakistan national side and Disco and his family moving to Canberra. These guys have been involved in the club for 30 years and the contribution each has made to the club both on and off the field is impossible to measure. Their departure will leave a large void in the club that will be impossible to replace. I would like to thank both Henry and Disco for all their efforts throughout the years – the club without doubt owes a large slice of its success to you two guys – and to wish you the very best in achieving the goals you have set yourself over the next few years.

PETER JOURDAIN

COACHING REPORT

2006/07 – let's just say we "stalled" a bit as a club. Perhaps having four key players now on State Squad duties and missing many practices was a major adjustment to the way we operate and we just weren't prepared for it ... that's an excuse I am happy to run with in order to keep this report succinct and just leave 06/07 to the history books (namely this annual report). In looking at my last year's report (which quoted substantially from my 05/06 "coach's message" because I thought that message was extremely important to our club and its on-going successes) I am left convinced that writing anything meaningful here is not really worth my (or anybody's) time – it is either never read or simply ignored. So I will say little other than a few formalities and a few "necessities".

The same big thank you as is justified every year to **Pete Richo** for his tireless efforts in ensuring the smoothly run training program and net sessions we have – and for his supportive (almost paternal) care for our 1st Grade side. He is one of the most deserving recipients of the UNSW Sports Association Sports Recognition Award that I can think of. A wonderful, generous, helpful and cricket savvy contributor who is fast becoming the most irreplaceable clubman going around in grade cricket. I will miss your company and support Richo – but leaving the Club I love knowing you are around is about as comforting as things can get.

Graeme Smith did a superb job in his coaching role which spread well beyond his 1st grade duties (including plenty of "on-field help"). Always keen, enthusiastic and constructive it was unfortunate, and I am sure frustrating for Smithy, that the Club decided to put in its biggest shocker just when he appears on the scene. Fortunately he is continuing to help us next year and I am sure a rejuvenated Club will see many benefits from his coaching. Thanks to Wazza Smith also for the main bright spot in the Club's season – a happy, committed, over-achieving and well run GS side. Wazza catch was the perfect man for this job and we are very happy that he has agreed to continue this role next year with another wonderful contributor (Michael O'Brien) to lead us to perhaps greater success and development of our fine young GS players. Wazza was also the man in charge of our very successful Junior Coaching Clinics and will continue with these next season – a really important initiative for the Club and Wazza is the perfect man for the job.

Henry, of course, was around as much as he possibly could and is undoubtedly the finest coach and cricketing mentor our players could hope to have – I just wish our players would even try to appreciate that and reap the inevitable rewards. Thanks to Jebby, Ray and Simon for 1st class facilities, brilliantly prepared in often more than trying conditions and circumstances. I am sure I have missed plenty of people involved on the coaching side of things – it goes without saying, though, that we are all indebted to the effort and work put in by Paul Serov to help this Club run smoothly. He can't correct training attitudes, unavailabilities and lack of socialising – but he certainly runs a Club where there are really no excuses for performing as poorly as we did in 06/07.

There is to be no dwelling by me on last season – only learning from it and getting as many people as possible to commit to doing something about correcting the problems. A sign of character – pretty much the sign this Club has displayed so many times in its relatively short history – is to face your problems and sort them out ... don't run from them or leave them to someone else. Right from the end of the 06/07 season many players and supporters have stuck their hands up and commenced the process of ensuring next season and beyond are vastly improved experiences for the Club and all its members. I can honestly say that next season is shaping as being the best prepared we have ever been on the training and preparation front and I wish all our players the best for that season and for the many thereafter that they spend with this great club. The important thing will be how much each player is willing to put in – not only for himself, but for his team and this Club. Everyone needs to stick their hand up and have a crack on the field, at practice and at the Sam Crack each Saturday night when we celebrate our performances and we celebrate what a wonderful Club we have.

JIM DIXON
CLUB COACH

CAPTAIN'S RECORDS 2006/2007

Grade	Captain	Mts	Results	S									BP	Tot.	Win	Pos
			OW^1	OW^2	W1	T1	Draw	NR	L1	OL^1	OL^2	WF		Pts	%	
1st	Carson,David J	6	-	-	2	-	-	-	3	-	1	-	-	12	33.3	
	Christian, Daniel T	6	1	-	3	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	29	66.7	
	Total	12	1	-	5	-	-	-	5	-	1	-	1	41	50.0	10
1LO	Carson,David J	6	-	-	2	-	-	-	4	-	-	-	-	12	33.3 100.	
	Christian,Daniel T	1	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	7	0	
	Total	7	-	-	3	-	-	-	4	-	-	-	1	19	42.9	14
2nd	Bhandari, Danny	11	-	-	4	-	-	-	6	-	1	-	-	24	36.4	
	Elliott,Michael R	4	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	12	50.0	
	Total	15	-	-	6	-	-	-	8	-	1	-	-	36	40.0	13
3rd	Bowcock, Daniel S	11	-	-	4	-	-	-	7	-	-	-	-	24	36.4	
	Dixon,James S	4	-	-	1	-	-	-	3	-	-	-	-	6	25.0	
	Total	15	-	-	5	-	-	-	10	-	-	-	-	30	33.3	15
4th	Mag,Michael Sanders,Matthew	14	-	-	5	-	1	-	8	-	-	-	1	31	35.7	
	R	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Total	15	-	-	5	-	1	-	9	-	-	-	1	31	33.3	15
5th	Jones, Andrew C	6	-	-	2	-	-	-	3	-	1	-	-	12	33.3	
	Mitchell,Peter B	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Robson,James G	6	-	-	4	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	1	25	66.7	
	Stark,Robert W	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Total	15	-	-	6	-	-	-	8	-	1	-	1	37	40.0	13
6th	Culhane, Daniel J	4	-	-	2	-	-	-	2	-	-	-	-	12	50.0	
	Gregg,Michael	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	-	-	0	0.0	
	Jones, Andrew C	8	-	-	1	-	1	-	5	-	-	-	1	17	12.5	
	Total	13	_	-	3	-	1	-	8	-	-	-	1	29	23.1	7
GS	Robson,Angus J	7	-	-	2	-	-	-	5	-	-	-	-	12	28.6	
	Total	7	-	-	2	-	-	-	5	-	-	-	-	12	28.6	14
PG	Cooper,Tom L W	3	-	_	1	_	_	1	1	_	-	_	1	7	50.0	
	Sykes,Mitchell C	4	-	_	1	_	-	1	2	-	-	_	_	6	33.3	
	Total	7	-	-	2	_	-	2	3	-	-	-	1	13	40.0	11
Club	Total	106	1	_	37	_	2	2	60	_	3	_	6	248	36.5	16

Explanation of Headings

Mts = Matches as Captain

 OW^1 = Outright win after leading on first innings OW^2 = Outright win after trailing on first innings

W1 = Win on first innings
T1 = Tie on first innings
Draw = Drawn match
NR = No Result

L1 = Loss on first innings

OL¹ = Outright loss after leading on first innings OL² = Outright loss after trailing on first innings

BP = Bonus Points Gained (Limited Overs matches only)

WF = Win on Forfeit
Tot. Pts = Total Points Obtained

Win % = Percentage of matches won from matches played with a result

Pos. = Final position/placing in competition

FIRST GRADE REPORT

I may have played some of my junior cricket out there, but I hate Raby Oval. The dressing rooms are dark and dingy, are shared with 3rd's, 5th's and whoever else wants to go in there, and you have to turn around half a dozen times to get wet in the unheated bore water showers. The drive out there is long and arduous, and costs around \$8 before you even put petrol in the car. The grass on the outfield makes you itchy, and the locals don't seem to like anyone who lives east of them – even to the point of refusing your help with the covers after a rain delay.

Needless to say, being handed our 7th consecutive defeat of the season by them wasn't very pleasant. We were last on the table, with 0 wins from 7 starts. Not exactly what we were looking for – 7 of us had played representative cricket in the State League Cup before the grade season began, and later on an 8th would earn representative honours via the Australian U/19's. So the experts would say that we should've at least been in the top 6.

But it wasn't to be. Some hard fought losses against Bankstown, Fairfield and Gordon gave us some positives to draw on, but we still couldn't manage ourselves a win.



1ST GRADE TEAM (ROUND 15 V PENRITH)

BACK ROW: Alan "Wally" Reid (Scorer), Andrew Jeffrey, Sam Robson, Tim Lang, Rich Nikolovski, Mitchell Sykes, Peter Richardson (Manager), Murray Creed
FRONT ROW: Mitchell Gowland, James Day, Daniel Christian (Captain), Tom Cooper, Graeme Smith (Coach).

When we turned up at Hurstville about to play the 8th match of the season against St George, finishing in the top 10 come March 15 was probably the last thing we were thinking of. Just getting off the mark was going to be nice. Inspired by 149no from Tom Cooper, we successfully defended our 277, with the help of a 5 for from Eric Zehner, to give us our 1st win of 2006/07.

Fast forward to the last round against Penrith. We've got a more than competitive 253 on the board, and Penrith are 6-38. Winning has become a habit again, and we went on to win our 9th game from the final 12 to finish in 10th position on the table.

As a bowling unit this year, we performed very well. We took 187 wickets at an average of 26.13, putting us in equal 3rd position in the competition. In almost every game we had the opposition under pressure with the ball. Tim Lang, Jim Day, Eric Zehner, Sam Robson, Mitch Sykes, Graeme

Smith, Tim Cox and myself all took part at some stage in match winning bowling partnerships.

But unfortunately, our batting seemed to be the biggest contributor to our lack of early season success. The statistics back this up -4737 runs scored at an average of 27.7, putting us in 14th place in the competition for total runs scored for the regular season.

While there were some brilliant individual performances throughout the year, (Tom Cooper (2), Jimmy Day, Dave Carson and Sam Robson's hundreds) we were unable to consistently put together the same kind of partnerships that were putting us in winning positions with the ball.

However those 9 wins from the last 12 games included some very good allround team performances. We were able to generate some decent momentum that we'll be looking to build on next season.



Carso joins the 200 club.

Only four players have played 200 games in 1st grade for UNSW Cricket Club:

Jim Robson

Greg Livingstone

Jim Dixon

and

David Carson.

Livo is seen here presenting Carso with his commemorative mug prior to playing his 200th game during Round ??.

Congratulations Carso!

The Players

Andrew Jeffery - In comparison with his impressive debut season for the Bees, AJ would have been disappointed with last season's return. I'm sure next season he'll be looking to recapture the kind of form that saw him our leading batsman in 05/06. AJ along with Gowlo and Jimmy formed a valuable part of our slip cordon this year, converting almost all of our chances into wickets.

Sam Robson - Continued his development again last year, started the season batting 11, and went on to score a hundred in his first match opening the batting. However a combination of the team's poor batting and the wicket conditions regularly hindered Sam's development as a leggie this year. On many occasions both Carso and myself found ourselves defending low totals on wickets favouring our seamers who had been consistently making breakthroughs – therefore not leaving a 17 year old legspinner many opportunities. I wish Sam good luck in 2007/08 and I hope that his decision to depart our club will suit his personal aspirations.

Murray Creed - Muzza was disappointed at the end of the season that he wasn't able to convert any of

his eight 50's into 100's. However, many times during the year he would come in at number 3 when we were in a difficult position, and he would fight to get us out of it, deserving a hundred almost every time. Easily our most experienced player, again we'll be looking to Muzz to be the rock of our batting order next season, and his continued improvement with the ball should hopefully burgle us a few wickets!

Tim Lang - Congratulations to Langy on his well deserved debut for NSW last season in the 20/20 competition. Unfortunately he missed a few games in the middle of the season after splitting the webbing in his right hand, which may have hindered his chances of getting a call up earlier. He was unlucky not to get more opportunities after finishing NSW's equal leading wicket taker in the 20/20 competition, but his taste of the higher level will only give him more incentive to work harder and make himself irresistible to the selectors.

Jim Day - Had a good year again for us with the ball, stepping up and taking a wicket whenever we needed it, or holding up an end when the wind was howling. Jimmy started the season down the order, but put on a 200 run partnership with Coops against eventual competition minor premiers Fairfield, finishing with a brilliant century after being promoted to number 5. That innings alone will continue to give Jimmy the confidence that he can be a consistent run scorer in our top 6 next season.

Dave Carson - Dave admirably relinquished the captaincy duties halfway through this year to make way for the younger guys coming through. However his match winning 157no against Sutherland this year signified he was still good enough to be not only playing 1st grade, but doing very well. Even though his work commitments have increased, the stability provided by married life with the lovely Holly is the factor Dave has been looking for to drive his cricket forward. Along with his experience, his passion for the Bees is a link in the chain we'll need to be successful this coming season.

Tom Cooper - Played well all year, and along with Muzz saved us from humiliation a number of times. His 2 best innings were his 120 vs Fairfield where he and Jimmy rescued us from 3 for not many, and also 145 against St George. Coops determination to improve his game would suggest that he was disappointed with his post Christmas return. But bear in mind he is only 20, and the lessons he has learnt from this season will only stand him in good stead for next year.

Eric Zehner - Zoomer was a quiet achiever for us this year. 21 wickets may not seem like many over the course of the season, but Zoomer's contribution to our bowling unit as a left-armer who swings it, cannot be underestimated. He made a breakthrough whenever he came on, normally breaking a solid partnership, and continued to improve game after game. Supported his theory of "the ball always swings after Christmas" with some brilliant displays in the last few rounds.

Mitch Gowland - Mitch showed some good signs this year that he can be an important part of our top 6 in years to come. With 4 allrounders in our side, we felt last season that we had a good opportunity to give Mitch some 1st grade experience. He also filled a void for us by slotting nicely into second slip, taking 10 catches in only 9 games. Mitch's intention to move closer to the city from Kiama will benefit his development greatly this coming season, allowing him to commit more time to his training.

Richard Nikolovski - Niko came in towards the end of the season following some good performances in 2nd grade. In his 1st grade debut took 7 catches in the 1st innings, and 3 in the 2nd to show that he was good enough to do the job permanently. We will be looking for Niko to keep improving for us next year, and also to hopefully produce the form for us that saw him score a 2nd grade hundred last season

Andrew Neilan - Neilo's work commitments and also an on-going back injury unfortunately prevented him from contributing as much to the team as we have come to expect over the past few years. His ability as a cricketer remains as good as anyone in the state, but those hindrances were unable to do that ability justice last season. Neilo, if you truly have retired, congratulations on what you have achieved at the club, and I wish you all the best in the future.

Graeme Smith (the player), Tim Van Der Gugten, Tim Richardson, Tim Cox, Mitch O'Connor and Mitchell Sykes. All of these guys played important roles in our season last year. As well as a couple of cameos from the coach, the progression of Tim van der Gugten was a highlight (a wicket with his 1st ball in first grade at the age of 15). Although they had limited opportunities last year, these guys all have the ability to perform well in 1st grade. Along with the rest of the 1st/2nd grade squad we'll be looking for them to keep performing strongly, in order to create a healthy competition for spots next season.

Graeme Smith (the coach), Pete Richardson, Scorch (Rod Evans) and Mum. Smithy did a great job co-ordinating our warms up and practices, and his passion and will for the club to succeed rubbed off on all of us. Although we've come to the conclusion that 1st grade do not require a full time coach next season, I'm extremely happy that the club will be engaging Graeme in a more rounded club role.

Pete Richo was again brilliant in his role managing the side, making sure that all we have to do is worry about what happens on the field. As I found out in the second half of the season as captain, Pete makes sure he's on top everything; fills out team sheets, brings balls, looks after umpires, brings spare one day shirts when someone inevitably forgets theirs, the whole lot – not just the drink bottles and sunscreen! It makes life off the field extremely easy as a captain to have Pete in your corner and I can't thank him enough for his help.

Scorch and **Mum** again did a fantastic job helping out with the teas, canteen and barbeque this season for our home games. Special thanks and congratulations to Mum for persevering with the job she said she would only do briefly until we found a more permanent option 2 years ago!

The intent and enthusiasm to improve, shown by the whole of the club at the end of last season, will lead to more success both on and off the field this year. We've identified what has been successful in the past, and we're working on ways to build on that to be successful in the future.

For 1st grade in particular, it's been a slap in the face to lose an up and coming player that we've strongly supported on the back of his potential, more than anything else. However, it's provided us with an added incentive to prove to ourselves that we can not only be successful on the field, but also continue be a nursery for talented players in the future.

DANIEL CHRISTIAN



The Village Green looking resplendent in the final game of the season versus Penrith (a shame we had no teams to utilise the ground the following week in a final – hopefully next season!). In this photo, Dan faces up with Muzza at the non-strikers end.

BEARDOTT	OTTO EN	ADTEC
MATCH	SUMIM	AKIES

Rd	Venue	Matches 2006/2007 LO Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
2	Village Green	University of NSW	263	91.2	Bankstown	7/267	78.5
		O'Connor,Mitchell W	58	(106)	Day,James R F	2/36	12
		Christian, Daniel T	54	(118)	Christian, Daniel T	2/89	23
		Lang, Timothy E	46	(85)	Lang, Timothy E	2/96	27.
		Robson,Samuel D	34	(63)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
4	Rosedale Oval	Fairfield-Lilverpool	8/366 d.	96	University of NSW	317	92.
		Creed, Murray W	2/21	4	Day,James R F	133	(21
		Christian, Daniel T	2/47	16	Cooper,Tom L W	109	(17
		Zehner,Eric J W	1/33	10			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
5	Village Green	Mosman	290	82	University of NSW	185	68.
		Day,James R F	4/75	19	Creed,Murray W	54	(14
		Zehner,Eric J W	3/44	17	Christian, Daniel T	41	(13
		Cox, Timothy D	1/13	6	Day,James R F	21*	(40
		•			(2nd Inns)	0/31	7
					Jeffrey,Andrew D	17*	(26
					Carson,David J	14*	(16
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)			,		
7	Caringbah Oval	University of NSW	302	72.1	Sutherland	230	78.
-		Carson, David J	157*	(163)	Day,James R F	5/35	16
		Richardson, Timothy S	26	(62)	Christian, Daniel T	3/35	13
		Gowland,Mitchell	22	(28)	Robson,Samuel D	1/38	10
		Robson,Samuel D	22	(42)	Rooson, Samuel D	1/30	10
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)	22	(42)			
8	Village Green	Blacktown	148	45	University of NSW	2/151 d.	43
	, mage oreen	Cox, Timothy D	4/19	13	Jeffrey,Andrew D	67	(12
		Day,James R F	3/45	10	Creed,Murray W	61*	(12
		Christian, Daniel T	2/41	10		V-	(
		(2nd Inns)	5/263	65			
		Cox, Timothy D	1/15	8			
		Lane,Stephen	1/34	7			
		Lang, Timothy E	1/59	15			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)	1/39	13			
9	Owen Earle Oval	Hawkesbury	168	62.4	University of NCW	53	33
,	Owen Larie Ovai		4/44	21	University of NSW Zehner,Eric J W	14*	(4)
		Lang, Timothy E		20.4	Zeiller,Effe J W	14.	(4.
		Day, James R F	3/48 1/9	6			
		Van Der Gugten,Timm Zehner,Eric J W		10			
		· ·	1/29		(2.17)	110	44
		(2nd Inns)	2/4	2.4	(2nd Inns)	118	48
		Van Der Gugten, Timm	1/2	1.4	Creed, Murray W	33	(88
		Christian, Daniel T	1/2	1	Gowland,Mitchell	26	(40
	Result:	Outright loss after trailing on first			.		
0	Village Green	University of NSW	204	75.2	Eastern Suburbs	3/209 d.	40
		Cooper,Tom L W	58*	(146)	Day,James R F	2/48	9
		Carson,David J	33 3/235	(86)	Zehner,Eric J W	1/19	5
		(2nd Inns)	3/235	36	(2nd Inns)	6/188	30
		Christian,Daniel T	79*	(50)	Lang, Timothy E	2/43	9
		Creed, Murray W	71	(67)	Day,James R F	2/47	7
		Jeffrey,Andrew D	39	(66)			
		Lang, Timothy E	31*	(32)			
		• •					

11	Drummoyne Oval	UTS-Balmain	185	63.1	University of NSW	6/266 d.	50.1
		Christian, Daniel T	4/40	17	Robson,Samuel D	102	(128)
		Lang, Timothy E	3/35	16	Christian, Daniel T	52	(44)
		Robson,Samuel D	2/14	3.1	Creed, Murray W	43	(58)
		Nikolovski,Richard	7	Cts	Jeffrey,Andrew D	40	(59)
		(2nd Inns)	5/231	54			
		Christian, Daniel T	3/70	19			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
12	Waitara Oval	University of NSW	263	85.3	Northern Districts	203	77
		Creed, Murray W	70	(170)	Lang, Timothy E	4/44	25
		Cooper,Tom L W	66	(89)	Christian, Daniel T	3/50	20
		Robson,Samuel D	41	(88)	Smith,Graeme P	1/36	12
		Jeffrey,Andrew D	34	(54)			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
13	Village Green	University of NSW	244	75.5	North Sydney	6/260	74
		Creed, Murray W	54	(163)	Zehner,Eric J W	2/18	10
		Cooper,Tom L W	41	(63)	Smith,Graeme P	2/29	10
		Christian, Daniel T	32	(52)	Lang, Timothy E	1/52	17
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
14	Village Green	University of NSW	8/308 d.	96	Parramatta	99	36.4
		Robson,Samuel D	54	(114)	Christian, Daniel T	5/32	11
		Cooper,Tom L W	51	(71)	Day,James R F	2/18	6.4
		Christian, Daniel T	50	(99)	Lang, Timothy E	2/14	12
		Creed, Murray W	45	(125)	Zehner,Eric J W	1/7	4
					(2nd Inns)	172	44.1
					Zehner,Eric J W	3/15	6
					Lang, Timothy E	3/15	6.1
					Sykes,Mitchell C	1/15	3
	Result:	Outright win after leading on first	innings (10 p	oints)			
15	Village Green	* University of NSW	6/253	50	Penrith	184	43.5
		Christian, Daniel T	83	(69)	Lang, Timothy E	4/29	10
		Creed, Murray W	83	(109)	Smith,Graeme P	2/17	6.5
					Christian, Daniel T	2/33	10
					Day,James R F	4	Cts
	Result:	Won on first innings + BP (7 poin	its)				

MATCH SUMMARIES

1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
LO1	Village Green	*	University of NSW	9/216	50	Randwick-Petersham	4/218	38.5
			Christian, Daniel T	44	(84)	Lang, Timothy E	2/34	10
			Lang, Timothy E	37*	(41)			
			Cooper,Tom L W	36	(65)			
			O'Connor,Mitchell W	28	(25)			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
LO2	Pratten Park	*	Western Suburbs	9/225	50	University of NSW	9/220	50
			Lang, Timothy E	5/30	10	Creed, Murray W	77	(116)
			Robson,Samuel D	1/39	10	Jeffrey, Andrew D	45	(40)
						Day,James R F	25	(23)
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
LO3	Village Green	*	University of NSW	156	40	Gordon	6/157	39.1
			Zehner,Eric J W	36	(33)	Cox, Timothy D	2/31	10
			Carson,David J	30	(54)	Christian, Daniel T	2/36	10
			Creed, Murray W	26	(45)	Robson,Samuel D	1/37	9.1
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

LO4	Raby 1	*	Campbelltown-Camden	8/234	50	University of NSW	207	48
			Christian, Daniel T	2/30	10	Cooper,Tom L W	72	(85)
			Day,James R F	2/33	10	Robson,Samuel D	39*	(51)
			Zehner,Eric J W	1/39	10			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
LO5	Hurstville Oval	*	University of NSW	4/277	50	St.George	235	45.5
			Cooper,Tom L W	149*	(132)	Zehner,Eric J W	5/42	9.5
			Creed, Murray W	62	(109)	Lang, Timothy E	1/40	8
			Lang, Timothy E	50	(35)			
	Result:	Wor	on first innings (6 points)					
LO6	Sydney	*	Sydney University	8/175	35	University of NSW	7/179	33.5
	University 1		Christian, Daniel T	3/45	7	Cooper,Tom L W	50	(72)
			Day,James R F	2/27	7	Christian, Daniel T	33	(27)
			Smith,Graeme P	1/31	7	Creed, Murray W	27	(37)
			Cox, Timothy D	1/31	7	Lang, Timothy E	25	(43)
	Result:	Wor	on first innings (6 points) - 35	Over Match				
LO7	Village Green	*	University of NSW	7/289	50	Manly Warringah	166	33.1
			Christian, Daniel T	89	(107)	Lang, Timothy E	4/19	8
			Jeffrey,Andrew D	52	(72)	Robson,Samuel D	2/7	3.1
			Day,James R F	49*	(42)	Sykes,Mitchell C	1/28	5
			Cooper,Tom L W	41	(41)			
	Result:	Wor	on first innings + BP (7 points)				

BATTING

1st Grade - Combined 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 1247

 Runs Scored For:
 4737

 Wickets Lost:
 171

 Average / Wicket:
 27.70

 Balls / Wicket:
 43.75

 Runs / Over:
 3.80

 Highest Score For:
 317 years

Highest Score For: 317 vs Fairfield-Lilverpool (Rd4)

Lowest Score For: 53 vs Hawkesbury (Rd9)

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Cooper,Tom L W	18	20	3	149*	765	45.00	5	2	65.83	93	5	6		-	2	1054
Creed,Murray W	19	21	1	83	763	38.15	8	-	50.70	82	3	5		-	-	1146
Christian,Daniel T	18	19	1	89	643	35.72	6	-	65.88	64	12	9		1	1	1716
Robson,Samuel D	18	14	3	102	354	32.18	1	1	53.47	40	-	4		-	1	733
Carson,David J	12	13	2	157*	303	27.55	-	1	66.16	35	3	4		-	-	455
Lang, Timothy E	16	16	4	50	284	23.67	1	-	68.77	24	6	4		-	1	1447
Day,James R F	19	19	3	133	360	22.50	-	1	63.60	28	5	9		1	1	1476
Jeffrey,Andrew D	19	22	2	67	427	21.35	2	-	55.53	51	2	12		-	-	640
Smith,Graeme P	5	4	2	22	37	18.50	-	-	92.50	7	-	2		-	1	188
O'Connor,Mitchell W	7	7	-	58	107	15.29	1	-	55.73	9	2	1		-	-	147
Zehner,Eric J W	14	12	4	36	118	14.75	-	-	-	14	2	6		-	1	778
Gowland,Mitchell	8.5	9	-	37	127	14.11	-	-	54.27	12	-	10		-	-	378
Neilan, Andrew M	16	14	2	20	84	7.00	-	-	69.42	10	-	32		-	4	869
Also Batted:																
Richardson, Timothy S	1.5	1	-	26	26	26.00	-	-	41.94	3	-	1		-	-	56
Sykes,Mitchell C	5	3	1	16*	26	13.00	-	-	32.10	1	-	-		1	-	100
Van Der Gugten, Timm	2	3	1	16	22	11.00	-	-	46.81	2	-	-		-	-	46
Cox, Timothy D	5	3	1	11	16	8.00	-	-	48.48	1	-	1		-	-	211
Lane,Stephen	3	1	-	5	5	5.00	-	-	14.29	1	-	-		-	-	75
Nikolovski,Richard	3	1	1	2*	2	-	-	-	28.57	-	-	16		-	1	562
Extras					268											

UNSW 1st Grade Debut: M Gowland, S Lane, R Nikolovski, GP Smith, T Van Der Gugten.

1st Grade Two Day Matches 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 925.1

 Runs Scored For:
 3193

 Wickets Lost:
 115

 Average / Wicket:
 27.77

 Balls / Wicket:
 48.27

 Runs / Over:
 3.45

Highest Score For: 317 vs Fairfield-Lilverpool (Rd4)

Lowest Score For: 53 vs Hawkesbury (Rd9)

Lowest Beole 1 of.	33 V3 I	1a w KC3	oury ((Ca)												
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Creed, Murray W	12	14	1	83	551	42.38	6	-	47.58	57	2	5		-	-	941
Carson,David J	6	8	2	157*	252	42.00	-	1	70.39	33	3	2		-	-	412
Christian, Daniel T	11	12	1	83	457	41.55	5	-	64.82	50	9	7		-	-	1587
Cooper,Tom L W	11	13	2	109	381	34.64	3	1	55.06	48	1	2		-	1	656
Robson,Samuel D	11	10	-	102	297	29.70	1	1	51.47	38	-	3		-	1	672
Jeffrey,Andrew D	12	15	2	67	303	23.31	1	-	51.97	34	2	8		-	-	548
Day,James R F	12	12	1	133	239	21.73	-	1	57.04	20	2	6		-	-	1349
Lang, Timothy E	11	11	3	46	139	17.38	-	-	55.38	14	1	3		-	-	1059
Gowland, Mitchell	7.5	8	-	37	123	15.38	-	-	53.48	12	-	9		-	-	378
Zehner,Eric J W	9	9	3	17*	76	12.67	-	-	-	10	-	6		-	1	566
Neilan, Andrew M	9	9	1	20	55	6.88	-	-	62.50	6	-	20		-	2	655
Also Batted:																
Smith,Graeme P	3	2	1	22	28	28.00	-	-	77.78	5	-	-		-	-	148
Richardson, Timothy S	1.5	1	-	26	26	26.00	-	-	41.94	3	-	1		-	-	56
O'Connor,Mitchell W	3	3	-	58	64	21.33	1	-	50.79	6	1	1		-	-	109
Sykes,Mitchell C	4	2	1	16*	20	20.00	-	-	29.41	1	-	-		1	-	100
Van Der Gugten, Timm	1	2	1	4	6	6.00	-	-	20.00	-	-	-		-	-	46
Cox, Timothy D	3	2	-	11	11	5.50	-	-	50.00	1	-	-		-	-	211
Lane,Stephen	2	1	-	5	5	5.00	-	-	14.29	1	-	-		-	-	45
Nikolovski,Richard	3	1	1	2*	2	-	-	-	28.57	-	-	16		-	1	562
Extras					158											

BATTING

1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 321.5

 Runs Scored For:
 1544

 Wickets Lost:
 56

 Average / Wicket:
 27.57

 Balls / Wicket:
 34.48

 Runs / Over:
 4.80

Highest Score For: 7/289 vs Manly Warringah (LO7)

Lowest Score For: 156 vs Gordon (LO3)

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Cooper,Tom L W	7	7	1	149*	384	64.00	2	1	81.70	45	4	4		-	1	398
Robson,Samuel D	7	4	3	39*	57	57.00	-	-	67.06	2	-	1		-	-	61
Lang, Timothy E	5	5	1	50	145	36.25	1	-	89.51	10	5	1		-	1	388
Creed, Murray W	7	7	-	77	212	30.29	2	-	61.10	25	1	-		-	-	205
Christian, Daniel T	7	7	-	89	186	26.57	1	-	68.63	14	3	2		1	1	129
Day,James R F	7	7	2	49*	121	24.20	-	-	82.31	8	3	3		1	1	127
Zehner,Eric J W	5	3	1	36	42	21.00	-	-	102.44	4	2	-		-	-	212
Jeffrey,Andrew D	7	7	-	52	124	17.71	1	-	66.67	17	-	4		-	-	92
O'Connor,Mitchell W	4	4	-	28	43	10.75	-	-	65.15	3	1	-		-	-	38

Pag	ге	23

Carson,David J	6	5	-	30	51	10.20	-	-	51.00	2	-	2	-	-	43
Also Batted:															
Neilan, Andrew M	7	5	1	13	29	7.25	-	-	87.88	4	-	12	-	2	214
Van Der Gugten, Timm	1	1	-	16	16	16.00	-	-	94.12	2	-	-	-	-	-
Smith,Graeme P	2	2	1	9*	9	9.00	-	-	225.00	2	-	2	-	1	40
Sykes,Mitchell C	1	1	-	6	6	6.00	-	-	46.15	-	-	-	-	-	-
Gowland, Mitchell	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	100.00	-	-	1	-	-	-
Cox, Timothy D	2	1	1	5*	5	-	-	-	45.45	-	-	1	-	-	-
Lane,Stephen	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	30
Extras					110										

BOWLING

1st Grade - Combined 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 1271.4

 Runs Scored Against:
 4877

 Wickets Taken:
 187

 Average / Wicket:
 26.08

 Balls / Wicket:
 40.80

 Runs / Over:
 3.84

Highest Score Against: 8/366 vs Fairfield-Lilverpool (Rd4)

Lowest Score Against: 99 vs Parramatta (Rd14)

Name	O	M	\mathbf{W}	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Cox, Timothy D	64	17	10	172	4/19	17.20	2.69	38.50	-	1	-
Lang, Timothy E	286	61	42	821	5/30	19.55	2.87	41.45	1	12	13
Smith,Graeme P	39.5	6	7	140	2/17	20.00	3.51	34.29	-	1	-
Zehner,Eric J W	132.5	24	21	484	5/42	23.05	3.64	39.48	1	18	14
Christian,Daniel T	255.4	40	39	980	5/32	25.13	3.83	41.46	1	22	61
Day,James R F	245.1	36	35	1006	5/35	28.74	4.10	43.54	1	7	46
Robson,Samuel D	140.3	16	11	625	2/7	56.82	4.45	77.55	-	3	7
Also Bowled:											
Creed,Murray W	20	2	5	106	2/21	21.20	5.30	26.60	-	2	11
Van Der Gugten, Timm	16.4	2	3	72	1/2	24.00	4.32	34.00	-	2	-
Lane,Stephen	22	1	2	95	1/34	47.50	4.32	66.50	-	1	-
Sykes,Mitchell C	28	3	2	128	1/15	64.00	4.57	84.50	-	1	-
Cooper,Tom L W	21	1	1	103	1/43	103.00	4.90	126.00	-	-	-
Extras				145							

BOWLING

1st Grade Two Day Matches 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 979.4

 Runs Scored Against:
 3467

 Wickets Taken:
 132

 Average / Wicket:
 26.27

 Balls / Wicket:
 44.53

 Runs / Over:
 3.54

Highest Score Against: 8/366 vs Fairfield-Lilverpool (Rd4)

Lowest Score Against: 99 vs Parramatta (Rd14)

Name	O	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Cox, Timothy D	47	14	7	110	4/19	15.71	2.34	40.43	-	1	-
Lang, Timothy E	243	55	30	664	4/29	22.13	2.73	49.03	-	4	9
Zehner,Eric J W	100	23	14	315	3/15	22.50	3.15	43.21	-	2	3
Christian, Daniel T	200.4	34	29	689	5/32	23.76	3.43	43.48	1	10	47
Day,James R F	187.2	32	29	744	5/35	25.66	3.97	40.24	1	3	40

Robson,Samuel D	107.1	15	6	461	2/14	76.83	4.30	108.33	-	-	7
Also Bowled:											
Van Der Gugten, Timm	7.4	2	2	11	1/2	5.50	1.43	23.00	-	-	-
Smith,Graeme P	28.5	6	5	82	2/17	16.40	2.84	34.80	-	1	-
Creed, Murray W	15	2	4	79	2/21	19.75	5.27	24.75	-	-	9
Lane,Stephen	12	1	1	48	1/34	48.00	4.00	72.00	-	-	-
Sykes,Mitchell C	23	3	1	100	1/15	100.00	4.35	139.00	-	1	-
Cooper,Tom L W	8	-	-	41	0/12	-	5.12	-	-	-	-
Extras				123							

BOWLING

1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 292

 Runs Scored Against:
 1410

 Wickets Taken:
 55

 Average / Wicket:
 25.64

 Balls / Wicket:
 31.85

 Runs / Over:
 4.83

Highest Score Against: 235 vs St.George (LO5)

Lowest Score Against: 166 vs Manly Warringah (LO7)

U		-		` /							
Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Lang, Timothy E	43	6	12	157	5/30	13.08	3.65	22.50	1	8	4
Christian, Daniel T	55	6	10	291	3/45	29.10	5.29	35.60	-	12	14
Zehner,Eric J W	32.5	1	7	169	5/42	24.14	5.15	32.00	1	16	11
Day,James R F	57.5	4	6	262	2/27	43.67	4.53	59.50	-	4	6
Also Bowled:											
Cox,Timothy D	17	3	3	62	2/31	20.67	3.65	34.00	-	-	-
Creed, Murray W	5	-	1	27	1/27	27.00	5.40	34.00	-	2	2
Sykes,Mitchell C	5	-	1	28	1/28	28.00	5.60	30.00	-	-	-
Smith,Graeme P	11	-	2	58	1/27	29.00	5.27	33.00	-	-	-
Robson,Samuel D	33.2	1	5	164	2/7	32.80	4.92	40.60	-	3	-
Lane,Stephen	10	-	1	47	1/47	47.00	4.70	61.00	-	1	-
Van Der Gugten, Timm	9	-	1	61	1/61	61.00	6.78	56.00	-	2	-
Cooper,Tom L W	13	1	1	62	1/43	62.00	4.77	78.00	-	-	-
Extras				22							

PARTNERSHIPS

1st Grade Two Day Matches 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	10	Eastern Suburbs	2	Jeffrey,Andrew D	39	Creed,Murray W	71	112
1st	15	Penrith	1	Robson,Samuel D	18	Creed,Murray W	83	67
1st	11	UTS-Balmain	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	40	Robson,Samuel D	102	63
1st	12	Northern Districts	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	34	Robson,Samuel D	41	62
1st	10	Eastern Suburbs	1	Jeffrey, Andrew D	23	Carson,David J	33	51
2nd	11	UTS-Balmain	1	Creed, Murray W	43	Robson,Samuel D	102	116
2nd	8	Blacktown	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	67	Creed,Murray W	61*	115
2nd	14	Parramatta	1	Robson,Samuel D	54	Creed,Murray W	45	103
2nd	15	Penrith	1	Creed, Murray W	83	Christian, Daniel T	83	84
3rd	12	Northern Districts	1	Christian, Daniel T	29	Creed, Murray W	70	69
3rd	13	North Sydney	1	Christian, Daniel T	32	Creed,Murray W	54	54
4th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Cooper,Tom L W	109	Day,James R F	133	215
4th	14	Parramatta	1	Christian, Daniel T	50	Cooper,Tom L W	51	107
4th	10	Eastern Suburbs	2	Lang, Timothy E	31*	Christian,Daniel T	79*	81*

								1
4th	12	Northern Districts	1	Creed, Murray W	70	Cooper,Tom L W	66	68
4th	13	North Sydney	1	Cooper,Tom L W	41	Creed,Murray W	54	65
4th	10	Eastern Suburbs	1	Christian,Daniel T	21	Cooper,Tom L W	58*	52
5th	2	Bankstown	1	Christian, Daniel T	54	O'Connor,Mitchell W	58	104
5th	5	Mosman	1	Creed, Murray W	54	Christian, Daniel T	41	98
6th	7	Sutherland	1	Gowland, Mitchell	22	Carson,David J	157*	44
7th	7	Sutherland	1	Robson,Samuel D	22	Carson,David J	157*	41
8th	2	Bankstown	1	Lang, Timothy E	46	Robson,Samuel D	34	69
9th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Robson,Samuel D	16	Zehner,Eric J W	17*	31
10th	7	Sutherland	1	Lane,Stephen	5	Carson,David J	157*	79

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	15	1	484	34.57
2nd	14	-	570	40.71
3rd	14	1	336	25.85
4th	13	1	688	57.33
5th	12	-	326	27.17
6th	12	-	153	12.75
7th	11	1	160	16.00
8th	10	-	194	19.40
9th	10	1	146	16.22
10th	9	-	136	15.11

PARTNERSHIPS

1st Grade Limited Overs Competition 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	LO2	Western Suburbs	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	45	Cooper,Tom L W	23	62
2nd	LO7	Manly Warringah	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	52	Christian, Daniel T	89	91
2nd	LO6	Sydney University	1	Christian,Daniel T	33	Creed,Murray W	27	57
3rd	LO5	St.George	1	Creed,Murray W	62	Cooper,Tom L W	149*	138
3rd	LO7	Manly Warringah	1	Cooper,Tom L W	41	Christian,Daniel T	89	75
4th	LO5	St.George	1	Lang, Timothy E	50	Cooper,Tom L W	149*	100
4th	LO6	Sydney University	1	Lang, Timothy E	25	Cooper,Tom L W	50	62
5th	LO1	Randwick-Petersham	1	O'Connor,Mitchell W	28	Christian,Daniel T	44	42
6th	LO2	Western Suburbs	1	Lang, Timothy E	11	Creed,Murray W	77	22
7th	LO4	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Cooper,Tom L W	72	Robson,Samuel D	39*	59
8th	LO2	Western Suburbs	1	Neilan, Andrew M	4	Creed,Murray W	77	23
9th	LO3	Gordon	1	Carson,David J	30	Zehner,Eric J W	36	34
10th	LO4	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Van Der Gugten, Timm	16	Robson,Samuel D	39*	31

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	7	-	148	21.14
2nd	7	-	248	35.43
3rd	7	-	282	40.29
4th	7	-	277	39.57
5th	7	1	121	20.17
6th	6	-	68	11.33
7th	6	-	200	33.33
8th	5	1	58	14.50
9th	4	-	53	13.25
10th	4	2	89	44.50

SECOND GRADE REPORT

It was a terribly disappointing season to say the least. Consistently poor results, splattered with periods of brilliance, was the end product of a lack of preparation for games. How we were still in contention for the finals going into the last three rounds is beyond belief, but a comforting reminder that we are still in the top echelon of second grade outfits.

Our standout matches as a team were against Premiers Mosman, an excellent one day effort against a firing St George, and overall good matches over Fairfield, Parramatta and Hawkesbury.

The major disappointment of the season came with the amount of players that were unavailable to play. This led to a very unstable outfit, as the results showed, but it also enabled a number of younger guys to gain exposure at a higher level. Sure we mighn't have got the results this year, but this experience may come in handy of the next 2-3 years.

With Shaker, Zelly, and to certain extend Hayers, departing, it was good to see a turn over of bowlers. The likes of Sam Crichton, Matthias Treuberg, Timm Van Der Gugten, Steve Towers and Stu McKay contribute strongly at this level, perhaps a little inconsistent and without the figures they would've liked, but augers well for the future if they continue to work at their game. Confidence will grow moving forward and you'll look back on the opportunities gained over the past 6 months and realize how valuable they were for your development.

Breakthrough performances where also achieved by **Mitchell Sykes** and **Richard Nikolovski**. You never forget your maiden grade century, and the respective innings against Hawkesbury and North Sydney will be remembered by all of us that witnessed. Sykesy's knock was a patient dig with a very steady tempo highlighted with some strong drives and hard running between wickets. Niko on the other hand, just went to town on the small North Sydney No 2. The tail held strong with him, he took some calculated risks and came out with the ultimate result.

The other outstanding individual performance came from **Chris Thomas**. For those of you that are unaware of what happened at Rawson Oval against Mosman I'll quickly fill you in, although I'd gather Thommo already has! A Hatrick! Not only was it a hatrick, but it proved a major part of us knocking off the premiers on there own soil. Well done mate. I'll let Thommo tell you the finer details.

Tim Richardson once again showed his class opening the batting. His timing and grace make him a pleasure to watch when batting. To watch him caress a back foot cover drive is arguably one of the finest sights in cricket!!! Scores of 99 (Randwick), 164 (Fairfield) and many other consistent contributions throughout the season saw another solid season. Also a good guy to have around the set up, as his experience is invaluable and reads the game very well. Tactically very astute!

Sam Crichton was the other standout player of the season. His bowling was up and down, but when he was on song he proved very awkward to play. Those of us that stood in slips would be able to attest to this by the unpredictable pace of the ball!! The encouraging sign we were all delighted in watching was his batting. Sam started the season at 9-10, but as some good scores where built, opportunities where made for him to work his way up the order to 5. Sam has the destructive ability to clear most fences in the world. I'm waiting with excitement to watch his batting develop next season and see if he's willing to take his game up another level. Scoring hundreds and winning games!!

I'm also going to praise Sam for the decision he made in continuing to play with UNSW next season. There was a lot of pressure coming from the other clubs, and for him to make the decision to stay at his age is a credit to his character. Sam, we are all looking forward to playing along side you in the future as you're good fun to have around and play the game the way it's meant to be played.

I won't miss the rest of the players that provided contributions through the season, Pete and Dave

Carson, Olli Higgins, Danny Bhandari, Mitch Golwland, Peter Maguire, Mark Appleton, George Walker, Steve Lane, Pete Groves, Mitch O'Conner, Tim Cox, Matt Turner, Richard Leischman and Eric Zehner, thanks for all your efforts under trying conditions and let's hope that all our results and performances improve next season.

Go you bees.

MICHAEL ELLIOTT

MATCH SUMMARIES 2nd Grade 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Petersham Oval	*	Randwick-Petersham	7/254	50	University of NSW	212	45.1
			Zehner,Eric J W	2/40	10	Richardson, Timothy S	99	(97)
			Bhandari,Danny	2/47	9	McKay,Stuart W	23	(34)
			Hayward, Matthew W	1/28	10			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
2	Bankstown Oval		Bankstown	288	101	University of NSW	124	46
			Van Der Gugten, Timm	4/59	14	Gowland, Mitchell	33	(57)
			Sykes,Mitchell C	2/53	24	Groves,Peter R	23	(48)
			Bhandari,Danny	2/70	29			
			Treuberg, Matthias	1/24	10			
						(2nd Inns)	111	34.3
						Groves,Peter R	22	(64)
	Result:	Outrig	ght loss after trailing on first	t innings (0 p	oints)			
3	Village Green	*	Western Suburbs	8/209	50	University of NSW	186	45.4
			Bhandari,Danny	3/20	3	Gowland,Mitchell	50	(53)
			Van Der Gugten, Timm	2/47	10	Richardson, Timothy S	32	(37)
			Crichton,Samuel L	2/47	10	McKay,Stuart W	29	(50)
						Hayward, Matthew W	28	(50)
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
4	Village Green		Fairfield-Lilverpool	308	86.5	University of NSW	7/353	85.3
			Lane,Stephen	5/41	16.5	Richardson, Timothy S	164	(250
			Gowland,Mitchell	4/64	20	Gowland,Mitchell	66	(104
			Hayward, Matthew W	1/42	16	Carson,Peter W	33	(32)
			Higgins,Oliver W	3	Cts	Crichton,Samuel L	29	(22)
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
5	Rawson Oval		University of NSW	254	68.5	Mosman	231	65.1
			Crichton,Samuel L	64	(77)	Thomas, Christopher M	5/64	20
			Elliott,Michael R	58	(74)	Hayward, Matthew W	4/66	25.1
			Hayward, Matthew W	43	(70)	McKay,Stuart W	1/13	3
			Richardson, Timothy S	36	(54)	Thomas, Christopher M	Hat-trick	
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
6	Village Green	*	University of NSW	8/281	50	St.George	240	47
			Gowland,Mitchell	72	(67)	Gowland,Mitchell	5/50	10
			O'Connor,Mitchell W	58	(66)	Hayward, Matthew W	2/40	10
			Elliott,Michael R	30	(44)	Thomas, Christopher M	1/26	8
						Nikolovski,Richard	4	Disn
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
7	Village Green		University of NSW	9/358 d.	103	Sutherland	3/360	56
			Hayward, Matthew W	93	(151)	Crichton,Samuel L	2/105	12
			Walker,George W	86	(172)	Hayward, Matthew W	1/65	20
			Bhandari,Danny	53	(105)			
			Nikolovski,Richard	39*	(55)			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

8	Joe McAleer	University of NSW	191	71	Blacktown	140	40
	Oval	Bhandari, Danny	45	(71)	Thomas, Christopher M	4/24	12
		Treuberg, Matthias	40*	(66)	Treuberg, Matthias	2/22	6
		Walker,George W	28	(72)	Bhandari, Danny	2/28	10
		(2nd Inns)	3/76	30			
		Higgins,Oliver W	23	(72)			
		Sykes,Mitchell C	22*	(57)			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
9	Village Green	University of NSW	7/368 d.	88	Hawkesbury	179	65.1
		Sykes,Mitchell C	100	(158)	Sykes,Mitchell C	4/57	23
		McKay,Stuart W	95	(182)	Bhandari, Danny	3/23	13
		Bhandari, Danny	86*	(74)	Walker,George W	1/0	0.1
		Carson,Peter W	43	(42)			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
10	Waverly Oval	Eastern Suburbs	305	97	University of NSW	85	33.3
		Thomas, Christopher M	3/63	21	Elliott, Michael R	17	(51)
		Bhandari,Danny	andari,Danny				
				47			
				(93)			
					O'Connor,Mitchell W	37	(46)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
11	Village Green	UTS-Balmain	224	91.4	University of NSW	173	81.4
		Maguire,Peter H	4/23	19.4	Bhandari, Danny	41	(102)
		Appleton,Mark S	2/37	19	Richardson, Timothy S	33	(67)
		Walker,George W	1/15	4	Turner, Matthew	25	(87)
		Elliott,Michael R	1/26	10			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
12	Village Green	* University of NSW	9/205	50	Northern Districts	4/208	47.5
		Crichton,Samuel L	79*	(83)	Hayward, Matthew W	1/19	10
		O'Connor,Mitchell W	35	(44)	Maguire,Peter H	1/15	5
					Crichton,Samuel L	1/19	5
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
13	North Sydney 2	University of NSW	337	85.5	North Sydney	8/339	80.4
		Nikolovski,Richard	110	(131)	Hayward, Matthew W	3/82	20.4
		Treuberg, Matthias	60	(98)	Crichton,Samuel L	2/82	18
		Crichton,Samuel L	51	(92)	Appleton,Mark S	1/19	12
					Nikolovski,Richard	4	Cts
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
14	Old Kings Oval	Parramatta	9/246	94.2	University of NSW	7/248	84
		Carson,David J	3/50	23.2	Carson,Peter W	65	(120)
		Hayward, Matthew W	2/29	15	Crichton,Samuel L	58	(85)
		Carson,Peter W	2/40	13	Higgins,Oliver W	46*	(116)
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
15	Howell Oval	* University of NSW	8/207	50	Penrith	5/208	49.2
		Higgins,Oliver W				0/22	10
		Richardson, Timothy S					10
		Hayward,Matthew W	29	(42)	Carson,David J	3	RunOuts
		Cox, Timothy D	20*	(18)	•		
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					

BATTING

2nd Grade 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 1099.4

 Runs Scored For:
 3932

 Wickets Lost:
 152

 Average / Wicket:
 25.87

 Balls / Wicket:
 43.41

 Runs / Over:
 3.58

Highest Score For: 7/368 vs Hawkesbury (Rd9)
Lowest Score For: 85 vs Eastern Suburbs (Rd10)

Lowest Score For:	85 vs Ea	astern S	uburb	s (Rd10))											
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Richardson, Timothy S	13.5	16	-	164	527	32.94	2	1	64.82	70	2	5		-	1	847
Walker,George W	4	4	-	86	126	31.50	1	-	37.95	14	-	-		-	-	211
Gowland,Mitchell	7.5	9	-	72	276	30.67	3	-	71.88	43	1	5		-	-	796
Hayward, Matthew W	10	10	2	93	240	30.00	1	-	59.26	32	-	1		-	-	720
Crichton,Samuel L	12	13	1	79*	342	28.50	4	-	69.80	38	7	2		-	1	702
Nikolovski,Richard	12	12	4	110	218	27.25	-	1	51.29	27	-	20	6	-	1	1098
Higgins,Oliver W	6	7	2	48*	131	26.20	-	-	38.42	14	-	4		-	-	276
Bhandari,Danny	11	14	2	86*	304	25.33	2	-	55.99	39	-	6		1	1	939
O'Connor,Mitchell W	6	7	-	58	169	24.14	1	-	66.54	23	2	3	1	-	2	359
Treuberg, Matthias	8	9	2	60	157	22.43	1	-	49.68	18	1	-		-	1	302
Carson,Peter W	10	11	1	65	224	22.40	1	-	56.85	33	1	4		-	2	439
Sykes,Mitchell C	7	10	1	100	201	22.33	-	1	54.18	27	-	3		-	-	621
Elliott,Michael R	12	14	1	58	240	18.46	1	-	53.22	37	1	4		-	1	415
Van Der Gugten, Timm	5	6	3	17*	55	18.33	-	-	38.46	5	-	-		-	-	305
McKay,Stuart W	14	16	-	95	256	16.00	1	-	47.32	30	-	2		-	-	441
Carson,David J	5	5	-	20	37	7.40	-	-	33.64	7	-	-		2	1	182
Also Batted:																
Turner, Matthew	1	1	-	25	25	25.00	-	-	28.74	3	-	1		-	-	45
Thomas, Christopher M	7	3	2	9	19	19.00	-	-	36.54	2	1	2		-	1	574
Groves,Peter R	2	3	-	23	45	15.00	-	-	39.13	8	-	1		-	-	65
Appleton,Mark S	2	2	1	2	2	2.00	-	-	9.09	-	-	1		-	-	82
Zehner,Eric J W	1	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	14.29	-	-	-		-	-	41
Lane,Stephen	2	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	1		-	-	230
Maguire,Peter H	3	2	2	17*	28	-	-	-	63.64	4	-	2		-	1	238
Cox, Timothy D	1	1	1	20*	20	-	-	-	111.11	3	-	-		-	1	30
Leishman,Richard A	1	1	1	5*	5	-	-	-	35.71	-	-	-		-	-	5
Towers,Steven J	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	2		-	-	80
Extras					283											
Difference					1											

BOWLING

2nd Grade 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 1028

 Runs Scored Against:
 3767

 Wickets Taken:
 124

 Average / Wicket:
 30.38

 Balls / Wicket:
 49.74

 Runs / Over:
 3.66

Highest Score Against: 3/360 vs Sutherland (Rd7)
Lowest Score Against: 140 vs Blacktown (Rd8)

Lowest Score Against:	140 vs B	lacktow	n (Rd8)							
Name	О	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Thomas, Christopher M	94.2	16	14	324	5/64	23.14	3.43	41.36	1	5	8
Gowland,Mitchell	47	2	9	209	5/50	23.22	4.45	32.22	1	1	7
Sykes,Mitchell C	80	18	9	213	4/57	23.67	2.66	53.56	-	1	1
Bhandari, Danny	130	23	16	408	3/20	25.50	3.14	49.62	-	14	-
Van Der Gugten, Timm	45	3	9	233	4/59	25.89	5.18	32.56	-	11	12
Hayward, Matthew W	146.5	31	16	432	4/66	27.00	2.94	56.00	-	6	9
Carson,David J	44.1	8	3	141	3/50	47.00	3.19	89.67	-	1	3
McKay,Stuart W	39	7	3	146	1/13	48.67	3.74	81.00	-	2	7
Treuberg, Matthias	68	7	5	271	2/22	54.20	3.99	82.40	-	4	-
Crichton,Samuel L	129	13	8	577	2/47	72.12	4.47	103.12	-	19	32
Also Bowled:											
Maguire,Peter H	36.4	11	5	74	4/23	14.80	2.02	45.00	-	5	-
Lane,Stephen	26.5	3	5	77	5/41	15.40	2.87	32.20	1	-	-
Appleton,Mark S	31	13	3	56	2/37	18.67	1.81	62.00	-	-	-
Zehner,Eric J W	10	1	2	40	2/40	20.00	4.00	34.00	-	8	-
Elliott,Michael R	11	2	1	27	1/26	27.00	2.45	67.00	-	1	-
Carson,Peter W	18	3	2	56	2/40	28.00	3.11	54.00	-	-	-
Walker,George W	8.1	1	2	63	1/0	31.50	7.71	24.50	-	-	-
O'Connor,Mitchell W	15	2	1	71	1/22	71.00	4.73	90.00	-	-	-
Towers,Steven J	22	4	1	75	1/34	75.00	3.41	132.00	-	-	-
Leishman, Richard A	9	1	-	60	0/60	-	6.67	-	-	-	-
Cox, Timothy D	9	-	-	39	0/39	-	4.33	-	-	2	-
Groves,Peter R	8	-	-	24	0/24	-	3.00	-	-	-	-
Extras				151							

PARTNERSHIPS

2nd Grade 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	10	Eastern Suburbs	2	McKay,Stuart W	19	Richardson, Timothy S	65	62
2nd	9	Hawkesbury	1	McKay,Stuart W	95	Sykes,Mitchell C	100	178
2nd	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Gowland,Mitchell	66	Richardson, Timothy S	164	174
2nd	3	Western Suburbs	1	Richardson, Timothy S	32	Gowland, Mitchell	50	79
2nd	1	Randwick-Petersham	1	Gowland,Mitchell	16	Richardson, Timothy S	99	77
3rd	6	St.George	1	O'Connor,Mitchell W	58	Gowland, Mitchell	72	78
3rd	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Bhandari,Danny	26	Richardson, Timothy S	164	64
3rd	15	Penrith	1	Richardson, Timothy S	45	Elliott,Michael R	18	58
3rd	12	Northern Districts	1	Carson,David J	20	O'Connor,Mitchell W	35	57
4th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Richardson, Timothy S	164	Carson,Peter W	33	39
5th	9	Hawkesbury	1	Carson,Peter W	43	Bhandari,Danny	86*	84
5th	7	Sutherland	1	Carson,Peter W	31	Bhandari,Danny	53	65
6th	13	North Sydney	1	Carson,Peter W	22	Crichton,Samuel L	51	67
6th	8	Blacktown	1	Bhandari,Danny	45	Walker,George W	28	63
7th	14	Parramatta	1	Carson,Peter W	65	Higgins,Oliver W	46*	90
8th	7	Sutherland	1	Hayward, Matthew W	93	Walker,George W	86	158
8th	5	Mosman	1	Hayward, Matthew W	43	Crichton,Samuel L	64	64
8th	15	Penrith	1	Hayward, Matthew W	29	Higgins,Oliver W	48*	55
8th	12	Northern Districts	1	Nikolovski,Richard	22	Crichton,Samuel L	79*	54
9th	13	North Sydney	1	Treuberg,Matthias	60	Nikolovski,Richard	110	164#
10th	8	Blacktown	1	Thomas, Christopher M	9	Treuberg, Matthias	40*	45

[#] New club record.

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	18	-	297	16.50
2nd	18	-	727	40.39
3rd	18	-	499	27.72
4th	18	1	239	14.06
5th	17	1	402	25.12
6th	16	-	427	26.69
7th	16	-	253	15.81
8th	15	2	458	35.23
9th	13	2	390	35.45
10th	11	2	240	26.67

THIRD GRADE REPORT

With three straight losses to begin the season 3rd Grade's endeavors never really got going. A win in round four against Fairfield-Liverpool gave us all a real boost that we may have turned the corner but unfortunately we came up against a red hot Mosman that put us to the sword as we avoided an outright loss.

In our next two games we played St George and Sutherland (who were leading the comp at this stage). We experienced heartbreaking losses in both, losing by 1 wicket against St George in the final over and 1 wicket against Sutherland. We played some very good cricket against these teams and probably had the better of both games but lacked that ability to close the game out in our favour.

We put together solid wins against our next opponents Blacktown and Hawksebury but after Christmas we lost consecutive matches against Easts, UTS Balmain and Northern Districts. Our victories, against North Sydney and Parramatta gave us some credibility as we managed to end the season in 15th position.

We were competitive without really threatening the top bracket of teams, a look at the table at the end of the season showed that we only recorded one victory against a team that finished above us on the ladder.

A common theme amongst the lower grade sides was the inability to field consistent teams week in week out, unfortunately the club suffered from injuries and withdrawals on such a scale that teams that turned out on the Saturday, were often vastly different from the ones originally selected mid week. Our poor showing on the table (reflected by only 5 wins) does not show the potential we have discovered this season by giving the next generation of players their opportunities. The development and improvement of the debutants that played in the side throughout the year hold us in good stead for the future ...

Steven Towers put in some fantastic performances throughout the year, his knocks against Easts and North Sydney were sensational and his bowling really took off towards the end of the season as wickets fell and his athletic fielding conjured run outs of the highest quality. His knowledge of Sydney Grade Grounds provided amusement and refreshments for the rest of the lads. Playing with Tiff you know your going to get more than 100%.

Joel Tibbetts came into the side in the second half of the year and demonstrated the temperament needed in batting, the first centurion for the grade against Balmain was disciplined and I hope the other batsman really took notice. As an opener JT has it all. His bowling also was of great importance to the team and I look forward to seeing the lad in action next season.

Chris O'Brien also made his way into the team and performed well. His contributions with the ball were very rewarding and his fielding and batting will be further improved next season.

Matt Turner performed the role of keeper with style, his innings at St George was worthy of being a match winner, a beautiful timer of the ball Matt always looked in and set for big scores until he found ways to get out.

Other notable mentions include **Sam Crowl**, who was a victim of team balance and never got into a rhythm but performed well and young **Angus Robson** who debuted in the last game of the year in his first year of grade cricket.

Of the older brigade **Peter Maguire** had a memorable year, Taking out the 3rd Grade Bowler of the Year award, including his man of the match figures of 6/34 against Fairfield. Jerry's performances warranted promotion to 2nd Grade where he also excelled and as the ultimate club man his loss will be felt even harder as he explores the world over the next couple of years.

Oliver Higgins was a consistent performer, taking out the Batting award with his interrupted appearances a result of his stints in 2nd Grade. Oliver is a great team man able to inspire and cajole

the players around him and he showed with his performances that better days are ahead.

The departure of **James Dixon** will leave a void not just for this team but also that of the club, which the other senior players must step into. James's leadership of third grade will be sorely missed. For my part as captain, was made all the more rewarding of playing and indeed learning from Disco's experience.

I enjoyed the year we faced as a team and a club, I eagerly await the start of next season to right some to the wrongs we experienced and to ensure that UNSWCC again fulfills it's potential

DANIEL BOWCOCK



Chris O'Brien charging in at DP North - one of the younger brigade who performed very well this season.



Known more as a bat than a bowler, Tim Elliott bowled some handy spells this season.

MATCH SUMMARIES 3rd Grade 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	* Randwick-Petersham	8/257	50	University of NSW	154	41
	North	Dixon,James S	4/59	7	Crichton,Samuel L	47	(72)
		Mann,David L	2/47	7	McDonald, Gavin S	30	(53)
		Crichton,Samuel L	1/44	10			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				
2	David Phillips	University of NSW	273	82.3	Bankstown	3/289	58
	North	Higgins,Oliver W	96	(201)	Lane,Stephen	2/52	19
		Carson,Peter W	48	(50)	Mann,David L	1/34	7
		Pereira, Gavin J	36	(57)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				
3	Blick Oval	* University of NSW	7/265	50	Western Suburbs	4/266	45
		Owers, Matthew S	96*	(92)	Pereira, Gavin J	3/25	10
		Higgins,Oliver W	46	(70)			
		Carson,Peter W	34	(48)			
		McDonald, Gavin S	29	(39)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				
4	Fairfield Oval	University of NSW	229	67.3	Fairfield-Lilverpool	221	80.5
		Pereira, Gavin J	72	(81)	Maguire,Peter H	6/34	19.5
		Bowcock, Daniel S	48	(91)	Treuberg, Matthias	2/36	21
		Morris, Christopher J	38	(80)	Leishman,Richard A	1/44	16
		Elliott, Timothy J	32	(101)	Groves,Peter R	1/33	6
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)				
5	David Phillips	University of NSW	149	48.3	Mosman	5/175 d.	48
	North	Walker, George W	33*	(63)	Walker,George W	4/29	14
		Treuberg, Matthias	25	(18)	Leishman,Richard A	1/30	7
		Leishman, Richard A	22	(29)			
		(2nd Inns)	140	35.1	(2nd Inns)	8/94	21
		Treuberg, Matthias	35	(53)	Maguire,Peter H	3/20	5
		Bowcock, Daniel S	33	(44)	Pereira,Gavin J	2/10	2
					Leishman, Richard A	2/49	8
					Treuberg, Matthias	1/12	6
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)		-		
6	Harold Fraser	* University of NSW	191	48.5	St.George	8/193	49.
	Reserve	Turner, Matthew	79	(113)	Owers,Matthew S	3/38	10
		Dixon,James S	28	(54)	Dixon,James S	2/36	10
					Maguire,Peter H	2/43	10
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				
7	Sutherland Oval	University of NSW	263	61.4	Sutherland	9/267	84
		Smith,Graeme P	66	(48)	Towers,Steven J	4/77	19
		Dixon,James S	40	(49)	Smith,Graeme P	4/97	32
		Elliott, Timothy J	35	(73)	Dixon,James S	1/44	19
		Maguire,Peter H	33*	(34)	•		
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points		` /			
8	David Phillips	Blacktown	93	33	University of NSW	2/97	24.
	North	Smith,Graeme P	6/20	11	Turner, Matthew	44*	(71)
		Maguire,Peter H	4/35	9	Tibbetts, Joel A	28	(73
		(2nd Inns)	3/182	48	2.00000,000111	20	(13)
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
		Towers Steven I	0/13	Q			
		Towers,Steven J Smith,Graeme P	0/13 0/18	8 7			

9	Bensons Lane 2	Hawkesbury	214	85.5	University of NSW	8/217	57.3
		Maguire,Peter H	3/48	20.5	Higgins,Oliver W	81	(96)
		Dooley,Robert A	3/77	22	Dixon,James S	48	(59)
		O'Brien,Christopher	2/21	12	Bowcock, Daniel S	29	(44)
		Dixon,James S	1/30	15	Lane,Stephen	26	(62)
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
10	David Phillips	University of NSW	289	73	Eastern Suburbs	4/292	73
	North	Towers,Steven J	67	(74)	Maguire,Peter H	2/35	15
		Dixon,James S	64	(103)	Walker,George W	2/60	15
		Higgins,Oliver W	32	(66)			
		Bowcock, Daniel S	30	(44)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
11	Ryde Oval	University of NSW	101	48.4	UTS-Balmain	4/158 d.	29
		Tibbetts,Joel A	37	(110)	Crowl,Samuel J	2/49	7
		(2nd Inns)	5/245	59			
		Tibbetts,Joel A	105*	(166)			
		Bowcock, Daniel S	51	(76)			
		Van Der Gugten, Timm	30	(45)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
12	Asquith Oval	* University of NSW	9/173	50	Northern Districts	2/174	48
		Dixon,James S	55	(50)	Tibbetts,Joel A	1/25	10
		Towers,Steven J	22	(48)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
13	David Phillips	University of NSW	6/356 d.	80	North Sydney	252	67.1
	North	Higgins,Oliver W	84	(155)	Towers,Steven J	5/39	13
		Groves,Peter R	60	(63)	Walker,George W	3/53	14.1
		Tibbetts,Joel A	47	(94)	O'Brien,Christopher	2/41	11
		Turner, Matthew	44	(70)			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
14	David Phillips	Parramatta	145	51.4	University of NSW	219	59.3
	North	Groves,Peter R	4/35	16	Groves,Peter R	83	(100)
		Walker,George W	2/35	13.4	Appleton,Mark S	26*	(17)
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
15	David Phillips	* University of NSW	121	39.4	Penrith	6/122	32.4
	North	Walker,George W	24	(38)	Bhandari,Danny	3/37	8
		-			Towers,Steven J	1/14	7
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					

BATTING

3rd Grade 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 927.2

 Runs Scored For:
 3482

 Wickets Lost:
 147

 Average / Wicket:
 23.69

 Balls / Wicket:
 37.85

 Runs / Over:
 3.75

Highest Score For: 6/356 vs North Sydney (Rd13) Lowest Score For: 101 vs UTS-Balmain (Rd11)

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Higgins,Oliver W	8	8	-	96	355	44.38	3	-	54.62	43	2	3		-	-	510
Appleton,Mark S	6	5	4	26*	41	41.00	-	-	69.49	5	-	1		-	-	111
Tibbetts,Joel A	7	8	1	105*	261	37.29	-	1	42.86	33	-	-		-	-	411
Turner, Matthew	9	9	1	79	211	26.38	1	-	54.66	23	1	9	1	1	2	541
Dooley,Robert A	4	4	3	18*	24	24.00	-	-	35.82	3	-	-		-	-	119

Towers,Steven J	7	7	1	67	136	22.67	1	-	64.45	19	2	4		1	1	641
Maguire,Peter H	8.5	9	5	33*	90	22.50	-	-	67.67	14	-	5		-	-	870
Carson,Peter W	4.5	4	-	48	89	22.25	-	-	68.99	11	4	5		-	-	214
Bowcock, Daniel S	12	14	1	51	286	22.00	1	-	60.34	37	1	12		-	-	651
Groves,Peter R	6	7	-	83	154	22.00	2	-	73.33	24	4	1		-	1	434
Pereira,Gavin J	5	6	-	72	131	21.83	1	-	75.29	20	1	2		-	-	331
Dixon,James S	14	15	-	64	323	21.53	2	-	70.99	44	2	3		-	-	683
Walker,George W	7	7	1	33*	117	19.50	-	-	42.39	15	-	2		1	-	492
Owers, Matthew S	12	13	2	96*	202	18.36	1	-	68.01	26	1	3		-	-	452
Crowl,Samuel J	7	4	2	28	36	18.00	-	-	42.35	3	-	1		-	1	136
Treuberg, Matthias	3	4	-	35	71	17.75	-	-	80.68	9	-	-		-	-	141
Elliott, Timothy J	9.5	11	-	41	178	16.18	-	-	40.55	25	-	-		-	-	228
Morris, Christopher J	6	7	1	38	82	13.67	-	-	36.44	11	-	1	1	-	-	132
Leishman,Richard A	4	4	-	22	52	13.00	-	-	71.23	8	-	1		-	-	172
O'Brien, Christopher	4	4	1	20*	36	12.00	-	-	64.29	6	1	1		-	-	186
Bachmann, Hugh A	6	5	-	13	20	4.00	-	-	48.78	3	-	2		-	2	100
Also Batted:																
Smith,Graeme P	2	1	-	66	66	66.00	1	-	137.50	10	2	-		-	1	511
Crichton,Samuel L	1	1	-	47	47	47.00	-	-	65.28	7	1	2		-	-	107
McDonald, Gavin S	3	3	-	30	86	28.67	-	-	59.72	12	-	-		-	-	86
Van Der Gugten, Timm	1	2	-	30	42	21.00	-	-	45.65	3	1	-		-	-	42
Lane,Stephen	2	2	-	26	27	13.50	-	-	39.13	4	-	-		-	-	97
McKay,Stuart W	1	1	-	11	11	11.00	-	-	84.62	-	-	-		-	-	11
Robson, Angus J	1	1	-	9	9	9.00	-	-	47.37	1	-	1		-	-	39
Lockett,Benjamin M	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	80.00	1	-	-		-	-	24
Mann,David L	2	2	-	5	6	3.00	-	-	31.58	1	-	-		-	-	66
Bhandari, Danny	1	1	-	3	3	3.00	-	-	25.00	-	-	-		-	-	88
Jebb,David C	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1		-	-	20
Extras					286											

BOWLING

3rd Grade 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 904.3

 Runs Scored Against:
 3394

 Wickets Taken:
 114

 Average / Wicket:
 29.77

 Balls / Wicket:
 47.61

 Runs / Over:
 3.75

Highest Score Against: 4/292 vs Eastern Suburbs (Rd10)

Lowest Score Against: 93 vs Blacktown (Rd8)

Name	О	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Smith,Graeme P	50	14	10	135	6/20	13.50	2.70	30.20	1		2
Maguire,Peter H	98.2	26	20	315	6/34	15.75	3.20	29.90	1	7	1
Walker,George W	70.5	11	11	256	4/29	23.27	3.61	38.73	-	1	-
Towers,Steven J	85	14	10	285	5/39	28.50	3.35	53.40	1	9	15
Treuberg, Matthias	43	16	3	97	2/36	32.33	2.26	86.67	-	2	-
Dixon,James S	83	23	8	292	4/59	36.50	3.52	63.00	-	1	5
Groves,Peter R	57	8	6	229	4/35	38.17	4.02	59.00	-	5	7
Leishman,Richard A	50.2	8	4	180	2/49	45.00	3.58	75.75	-	1	-
Owers,Matthew S	80	8	5	365	3/38	73.00	4.56	98.40	-	9	3
Crowl,Samuel J	44	6	2	190	2/49	95.00	4.32	133.00	-	2	-
Appleton,Mark S	49	7	2	190	1/19	95.00	3.88	157.00	-	19	1
Also Bowled:											

	I										
Bhandari,Danny	8	1	3	37	3/37	12.33	4.62	19.00	-	9	-
O'Brien,Christopher	30	13	5	90	2/21	18.00	3.00	36.00	-	-	-
Pereira,Gavin J	26	5	5	100	3/25	20.00	3.85	31.80	-	1	2
Lane,Stephen	26	6	3	65	2/52	21.67	2.50	52.00	-	-	-
Mann,David L	14	-	3	81	2/47	27.00	5.79	28.00	-	-	-
Crichton,Samuel L	10	2	1	44	1/44	44.00	4.40	64.00	-	3	1
Lockett,Benjamin M	8	-	1	47	1/47	47.00	5.88	49.00	-	1	-
Tibbetts,Joel A	22	7	1	47	1/25	47.00	2.14	132.00	-	-	-
Dooley,Robert A	33.1	4	3	175	3/77	58.33	5.28	67.33	-	-	3
McKay,Stuart W	8	1	-	25	0/25	-	3.12	-	-	1	1
Elliott,Timothy J	7.5	-	-	43	0/3	-	5.49	-	-	-	-
Bachmann, Hugh A	1	-	-	8	0/8	-	8.00	-	-	4	1
Extras				98							

PARTNERSHIPS

3rd Grade 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	13	North Sydney	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	47	Higgins,Oliver W	84	123
1st	2	Bankstown	1	Pereira,Gavin J	36	Higgins,Oliver W	96	69
2nd	8	Blacktown	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	28	Turner, Matthew	44*	75
2nd	3	Western Suburbs	1	McDonald,Gavin S	29	Higgins,Oliver W	46	67
2nd	13	North Sydney	1	Elliott, Timothy J	41	Higgins,Oliver W	84	64
2nd	2	Bankstown	1	McDonald,Gavin S	27	Higgins,Oliver W	96	64
3rd	11	UTS-Balmain	2	Bowcock, Daniel S	51	Tibbetts,Joel A	105*	75
3rd	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Elliott,Timothy J	32	Bowcock,Daniel S	48	70
3rd	9	Hawkesbury	1	Bowcock,Daniel S	29	Higgins,Oliver W	81	55
4th	3	Western Suburbs	1	Carson,Peter W	34	Owers,Matthew S	96*	96
4th	11	UTS-Balmain	2	Van Der Gugten, Timm	30	Tibbetts,Joel A	105*	60
4th	2	Bankstown	1	Carson,Peter W	48	Higgins,Oliver W	96	60
5th	13	North Sydney	1	Turner, Matthew	44	Groves,Peter R	60	99
5th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Pereira,Gavin J	72	Morris, Christopher J	38	81
5th	9	Hawkesbury	1	Higgins,Oliver W	81	Lane,Stephen	26	57
6th	6	St.George	1	Dixon,James S	28	Turner, Matthew	79	60
7th	14	Parramatta	1	Owers,Matthew S	20	Groves,Peter R	83	66
8th	10	Eastern Suburbs	1	Dixon,James S	64	Towers,Steven J	67	78
8th	1	Randwick-Petersham	1	Crichton,Samuel L	47	Morris,Christopher J	22	52
9th	6	St.George	1	Turner, Matthew	79	Leishman,Richard A	16	42
10th	7	Sutherland	1	Crowl,Samuel J	28	Maguire,Peter H	33*	53

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	17	-	470	27.65
2nd	17	-	408	24.00
3rd	17	1	376	23.50
4th	16	-	336	21.00
5th	16	-	452	28.25
6th	16	1	350	23.33
7th	15	1	359	25.64
8th	14	1	283	21.77
9th	13	1	255	21.25
10th	12	1	193	17.55

FOURTH GRADE REPORT

In what was a particularly poor season for the Club overall the fortunes of 4th Grade in 2006-07 certainly fell into the same category. An overall record of 5 wins, 1 draw and 9 losses resulted in a 15th placed finish and a significant step backwards from the previous season when 4's finished within one win of the finals.

It was a particularly disappointing result as the season started very encouragingly with an outstanding bonus point victory in the opening round against the eventual competition runners-up Randwick-Petersham. It was a complete performance that was backed up in Round 2 against Bankstown and again in Round 4 against Fairfield where we chased down 330 at DP North. A poor batting performance in Round 3 against Wests looked like a genuine "blip on the radar" when three brilliant batting performances from Hugh Backmann (151*), Steve Towers (101) and Joel Tibbetts (86) against Mosman in Round 5 helped the team post a record UNSW 4th Grade total of 5/418. The 5th wicket partnership between Hugh and Steve of 195 was also a UNSW 4th grade record and I would like to again congratulate them both on achieving this feat. It was a great day out and at the time simply added to the growing belief that this was going to be a successful season. Unfortunately Day 2 against Mosman was rain marred and we had to settle for a draw but the team still scrapped hard in the testing conditions and things were still looking very positive. However this proved to be false optimism as after that record-breaking batting performance we racked up just 2 wins from the remaining 10 games. The wins against fellow stragglers Blacktown and North Sydney were decent performances and of the other games only some poor middle and lower order batting resulted in a cruel 2 run loss to ND's but it is safe to say we were deserving losers in our other games.

Besides our early season form the other major positive to come out of this season was the performance of the school-aged cricketers in Angus Robson, Chris O'Brien and Kieran Emery. All performed exceptionally well against men much older and experienced than themselves and showed they have great talent. It is encouraging for the Club to have young players of this ilk coming through the grades.

And now back to those last 10 games. Quite rightly given 4's strong start to the season several players were promoted to 3's but unfortunately no players really came down to replace them. If there was one prevailing theme to team selections across the board this year it was "player unavailability". As the season wore on putting an in-form and balanced 4th Grade side on the park became an increasingly difficult task. It is easy to speculate on but difficult to pinpoint the reasons for the unavailability problem this year but I think the lesson to be learnt from this season is that unless we have an entire playing group at the Club that is committed to doing everything they can to be (a) available and (b) thoroughly well prepared each Saturday, we will go on losing far more matches than we win. Remarkably 37 different players played in 4's this year which understandably meant it was difficult to maintain anything resembling a consistent team. 90% of team changes were forced by players pulling out and/or returning up the grades after being out rather than due to form. There was very little genuine competition for spots in 4's this year and it showed. Put simply, the overall commitment of the playing group at this Club this season was nowhere near good enough. That is my opinion anyway.

Players who played 5 or more games in 4's this year were:

Mark Appleton: Apples was Apples yet again. The fact that he performed well when given a chance in 2's this year shows what he is capable of. It is only a lack of consistency that is holding him back from having a top shelf year with the ball. Of the 5 games he played his best effort in 4's was against Blacktown where he took 5/45 and used the favourable conditions perfectly to help us to a rare midseason win. Either Apples is getting saner with age or I am just used to him now as he didn't seem as "off the wall" with his general antics this year. On reflection though, it is probably the latter as he managed to consistently max out at the fines meeting each week.

Hugh Backmann: Petal was the leading run scorer in 4's this year and was a deserving winner of the 4th grade batting award. His innings of 151* against Mosman was an outstanding display from a very talented batsman. Like last year Petal either cashed in or missed out completely but his good days tend to be very good. He struggled when promoted to 3's but is certainly more than capable of playing at that level and beyond. When it comes to pre-game and post-game obligations Petal certainly plays by his own rules which he needs to address. He doesn't do himself any favours but then again I don't think that bothers him which is part of the problem!!

Sam Crowl: The Growler is still learning the difficult art of left arm legspin but has a great attitude and put together a couple of excellent performances in 4's this year. He bowled us to victory against Bankstown taking 4/50 and finished the year with another great spell against Penrith. Got a taste of 3's and he will certainly be better for the experience next year. Given his age and his craft patience is the key word here. He also has ability in the field and a solid technique with the willow. By season's end it was encouraging to hear him filling us in on mysterious late night encounters with hooting owls in Enmore. This sort of wacky talk is precisely what you want to hear from a bloke who has taken up the esoteric art of Chinaman bowling.

Tim Elliott: Rowdy played most of the year in 3's but he occasionally found himself in 4's which wouldn't have been in his plans at the start of the year. Rowdy always looked like he was destined for a big score but only passed 50 once in 5 digs in 4's. If he begins to turn these starts into big scores he won't grace 4's too often. He also bowled a handy spell in the one-dayer against ND's and is certainly a useful bowler. A man who chooses his words carefully Rowdy was always a tough man to fine this year.

Tal Fleming: Some people say cricket is 95% mental and Tal Fleming is your perfect case study. Why he continues to struggle for runs is as mysterious as the man himself. Smoked a promising 50 in Round 2 but struggled thereafter. A mid-season trip to South East Asia and a persistent knee injury didn't help this year but his batting return was sub par no matter how you analyze it. Announced his engagement at season's end and had sports psychologists the world over buzzing with anticipation in the hope that this will unlock that run-scoring Beast within next year.

Pete Groves: Grover landed in Australia and pretty much walked straight to the middle in a 2nd grade trial and peeled off a hundred. Once over his jet lag Grover went into a sharp form slump and somehow found himself in 4's a few rounds later. The slump continued until Christmas but a new man emerged in January as he peeled off a pair of good fifties against Easts and ND's and bowled some impressive spells to successfully force his way back into 3's. No doubt he returns to England better for the experience and it was a shame it took him half the year to get going. He also took to the Sydney nightlife with all the expected enthusiasm of an 18 year old on the other side of the world and had plenty of tales to disturb the sheds with. Spent a lot of time with Angus and Cobber when they were in the team and for their sake I hope he didn't pass on any of his acquired phone numbers.

Chris Morris: Slippery Morris is a sporting cliché ... in a good way. "Gives 100%, 100% of the time," "always puts the team first," "never takes a backward step," "plays to win" ... you get my drift. Slippery played a bit of 3's, 4's and 5's this year in various capacities and never complained. His season highlight in 4's was a gutsy 69 against Norths to help us to a win and he was always one of our best in the field and set a great standard. Announced his retirement at the end of the season to concentrate his energies on the "Oust Doust" campaign down at Kogarah but hopes to be back in a few years if allowed by his wife.

Angus Robson: Considering Gus is a Robson I guess few people were surprised that he had a great first year in Grade but looking at his performances objectively they were quite remarkable for a 14 year old. There are plenty of very decent cricketers around Sydney who never score a Grade century despite years of trying and Gus already has two. His 108 against Norths on a bouncy Tunks Park deck was an innings of great concentration and ability that belied his age and he looked more and more comfortable each week which suggested he was always learning. His legspin bowling is also very

promising as he already possesses the full repertoire of tricks and has a very safe pair of hands. He will need to reconsider that Barry Dawson hairstyle though...

Matt Sanders: The Colonel returned to the cricketing arenas of Sydney after a very long lay off for one last tilt at winning a comp and it was a real shame we performed so poorly as a team. What can you say about The Colonel that hasn't been said before? A true legend of the Club and a champion bloke all round it was a privilege to play another full season with him. Even when his body (particularly his routinely dislocated fingers) and maybe his wife were saying no he kept fronting up to do his job behind the stumps. With the bat he routinely saved us from embarrassment and usually did so while belting the absolute crap out of it, as is his style. The Colonel was a great help to me as skipper which was unusual in itself as he was my captain 10 years ago! Thanks again for everything, Matty. If he wasn't already running a million dollar business he could've made a fortune this year by charging blokes for lifts. He fair dinkum had half the team in his car on plenty of occasions this year.

Joel Tibbetts: JT was the star in 4's during the first half of the season before he was rightly promoted. Started the year with a string of 80's and was one of the key reasons for our great start to the year. JT bats with enormous determination and concentration and is very difficult to dislodge. In this modern era of super aggressive batting it is actually refreshing to see an opener go out with the plan to bat for the day. In any cricket team, particularly one that plays at DP most weeks, an opener who can take you to tea it priceless. His bowling is almost always economical and will only get better. It is genuinely frightening how much he looks like Nathan Bracken.

Steve Towers: Basil arrived at the Club this year from Easts and took a few games to settle into his new surrounds but once he did he made a big impact. Put together a match winning 67* against Fairfield to steer us home under pressure in Round 4 and then backed it up the following week with a run a ball 101* against Mosman. His bowling is skiddy and well suited to DP and his fielding is first rate. I reckon Basil was one of the success stories for the Club this year. Based on his strike rate with the trivia questions from the Carlton Draught bottle tops after the game we might have a new Andrew Jones in out midst too ... or not.

Gihan Wijeratne: The Wij would have been disappointed with his final numbers in 4's and looked pretty ready for the season to end by March. Started promisingly though with his highlight being the 48 he scored against Blacktown, which worth a lot more given the conditions and illustrated his undoubted ability. Tended to get out the same way a lot as the season wore on so he just needs to work hard on that aspect of his game in the pre-season and come back a better cricketer for it next year. E nded the season in style with a particularly hazy night at the trots which will live long in everyone's memory I'm sure, except maybe his own!

Other players to play 4's this year were Faisal Afzal, Daniel Bowcock, Alex Charlwood, Greg Dennis, Rob Dooley, Kieran Emery, Dave Heysen, David Jebb, Suresh Kalagara, Steve Lane, Richard Leishman, Ben Lockett, Clint Maddock, Dave Mann, Vince Mauric, Chris O'Brien, Gavin Periera, Jordan Roche, Rob Stark, Jono Tan, Matt Turner, Christoph Vonwiller, Ben Wakim and Chris Ward. Of these blokes Groggles Dennis averaged 166 with the bat from three trips to the crease and really should go round for a full season at least one more time. Dave Heysen played a few games after Christmas and added genuine hostility to our attack, cigarette smoke to our change rooms and proved that he is without doubt the best fines master in the game. Bowy smashed 'em for a few games at the start of the year before getting a deserved promotion to the 3rd Grade captaincy and Club Stalwart/Legend/Heartthrob Starky peeled off a regulation 6-fa against Parramatta in Round 14 in one of his two games in 4's.

For me it was a very disappointing season at the helm results wise, which is what counts. I desperately wanted to bring a Premiership to this Club and 15th place is obviously nowhere near that. I have already expressed my frustration at the player turnover this year but nonetheless as a captain I am responsible for the performance of this team and it was not always good enough. There is simply no way a team should ever perform like this one did against Parramatta in Round 14 for example. I

certainly take something away from every game where I am captain and I can't wait to put those lessons into place and have another crack next year.

Despite the ordinary results it was, again, an honour to be offered the chance to captain a side at this Club. I hope everyone who played 4's this year enjoyed their time in the team and felt they were given every opportunity to perform at their best. The spirit in the team was excellent and it was always a pleasure to sit back with a cold one at the end of the day to talk some rubbish. There should be way more of it.

See you next year.

MICK MAG

MATCH SUMMARIES

4th Grade 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	Kensington Oval	*	Randwick-Petersham	148	45.2	University of NSW	6/150	40
			Lane,Stephen	3/24	10	Bowcock, Daniel S	28	(37)
			Dooley,Robert A	3/30	9.2	Elliott,Timothy J	28	(40)
			Leishman,Richard A	2/36	9	Bachmann, Hugh A	24*	(39)
			Mag,Michael	1/18	6			
	Result:	Won	on first innings + BP (7 poin	nts)				
2	Grahame Thomas		University of NSW	9/339 d.	80	Bankstown	221	69.1
	Oval		Bowcock,Daniel S	77	(57)	Crowl,Samuel J	4/50	11.1
			Tibbetts,Joel A	70	(181)	Mag,Michael	2/43	21
			Elliott,Timothy J	65	(125)	Leishman, Richard A	2/46	14
			Fleming, Tallaesen	56	(63)	Kalagara,Suresh K	1/27	9
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
3	David Phillips	*	University of NSW	183	44.1	Western Suburbs	1/184	34.4
	North		Bowcock, Daniel S	63	(84)	Kalagara,Suresh K	1/38	7.4
			Bachmann, Hugh A	42	(78)			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
4	David Phillips		Fairfield-Lilverpool	322	78.2	University of NSW	6/327	78.2
	North		Mag,Michael	5/64	20	Tibbetts,Joel A	86	(164)
			Towers,Steven J	3/50	16.2	Towers,Steven J	67*	(66)
			Kalagara,Suresh K	1/56	15	Turner, Matthew	35	(83)
						Bachmann,Hugh A	30	(44)
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
5	Allan Boarder	#	University of NSW	5/418 d.	80	Mosman	8/260	76
	Oval		Bachmann,Hugh A	151*	(151)	Towers,Steven J	3/73	16
			Towers,Steven J	101	(89)	Mag,Michael	2/32	17
			Tibbetts,Joel A	86	(144)	Robson,Angus J	1/11	5
			Mag,Michael	30*	(20)	Tibbetts,Joel A	1/12	8
	Result:	Draw	(0 points)					
	# New 4th grade clul	b record	- highest team score					
6	David Phillips	*	University of NSW	139	40.1	St.George	5/140	45
	North		Sanders, Matthew R	29	(32)	Mag,Michael	3/18	10
			Towers,Steven J	21	(36)	Crowl,Samuel J	1/37	10
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

7	David Phillips	University of NSW	246	81	Sutherland	6/265	58.3
	North	Dennis, Gregory M	82*	(124)	O'Brien,Christopher	2/62	10
		O'Brien, Christopher	35	(57)	Dennis,Gregory M	1/21	6
		Mag,Michael	32	(51)	Pereira,Gavin J	1/23	8
		Robson,Angus J	29	(48)	Appleton,Mark S	1/60	12.3
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
8	Whalan 1	Blacktown	190	62	University of NSW	7/198	51
		Appleton,Mark S	5/45	18	Dennis, Gregory M	72*	(126)
		Lockett,Benjamin M	2/54	13	Wijeratne,Gihan N	48	(78)
		Mag,Michael	1/7	4	Mag,Michael	29	(33)
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)					
9	David Phillips	Hawkesbury	8/336 d.	81	University of NSW	226	63.1
	North	Robson,Angus J	3/60	13	Sanders, Matthew R	41	(66)
		Emery,Keiran	2/46	10	Wijeratne,Gihan N	35	(51)
		Ward, Christopher	2/55	14	Groves,Peter R	31	(81)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
10	Trumper Park	University of NSW	118	57	Eastern Suburbs	5/243 d.	49
	-	Wijeratne, Gihan N	27	(97)	Heysen, David C H	2/61	14
		Tibbetts,Joel A	24	(79)	Tibbetts,Joel A	1/14	2
		(2nd Inns)	4/140	47			
		Groves,Peter R	84*	(94)			
		Morris,Christopher J	20*	(53)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)		, ,			
11	David Phillips	University of NSW	273	77.3	UTS-Balmain	4/292	57
	North	Mag,Michael	56	(68)	Mag,Michael	3/66	16
		Robson,Angus J	52	(111)	C.		
		Sanders, Matthew R	48*	(70)			
		Roche, Jordan M	40	(69)			
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					
12	David Phillips	* Northern Districts	183	49.5	University of NSW	181	49.4
	North	Mag,Michael	3/32	10	Groves,Peter R	60	(87)
	- 102 122	O'Brien,Christopher	3/47	9.5	Wijeratne,Gihan N	24	(46)
		Ward, Christopher	2/47	10	Morris,Christopher J	24	(65)
		Groves,Peter R	1/10	8	morns, emistopher v		(00)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)	1,10	· ·			
13	Tunks Park	North Sydney	135	40	University of NSW	5/291 d.	64
10	I diiks I di k	Mag,Michael	4/20	7	Robson, Angus J	108	(162)
		Heysen, David C H	3/49	15	Morris,Christopher J	69	(128)
		Mauric,Vince	2/28	8	Sanders, Matthew R	32*	(31)
		Emery,Keiran	1/16	5	Tan,Jonathan J H	25*	(21)
		(2nd Inns)	1/120	36	- any onathun J 11	23	(21)
		Heysen, David C H	1/40	10			
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)	1/40	10			
14	Merrylands Oval	Parramatta	271	82.3	University of NSW	76	33.4
14	wierr yranus Ovar			82.3 34	Sanders, Matthew R		
		Stark,Robert W	6/83		Sanucis, wattiew K	18	(19)
		Mag,Michael	3/48	18.3	(2nd In)	0/1/1	42
					(2nd Inns)	8/161	42
	l				Roche,Jordan M	66	(62)

66

13

17

285

234

96

120

4

293

11

81

20

				Bachmann,Hugh A	53	(73)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				
15	Cook Park	* University of NSW	142 48	.3 Penrith	7/146	37.5
		Robson,Angus J	32 (7	8) Crowl,Samuel J	3/30	8.5
		Sanders, Matthew R	26 (4	0) Heysen,David C H	2/25	10
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)				

BATTING 4th Grade 2006/2007

Afzal,Faisal

Jebb,David C

Lane,Stephen

Stark,Robert W

Maddock,Clint

Kalagara,Suresh K

Charlwood, Alexander G

Wakim,Benjamin

Appleton, Mark S

Heysen, David C H

Lockett,Benjamin M

Vonwiller, Christoph C

1.5

1

2

5

4

1

1

2

3

3

2

1

3

3

1

1

2

2

1

1

1

22

13

17

9

14

6

5

4

3*

1

1

0*

36

13

17

15

19

6

5

3

1

1

0

18.00

13.00

8.50

7.50

6.33

6.00

5.00

4.00

3.00

0.50

0.50

0.00

65.45

46.43

65.38

28.85

55.88

35.29

50.00

36.36

12.50

14.29

20.00

411 Graue 2000/20	<u>07</u>															
Overs Faced:	977															
Runs Scored For:	3608															
Wickets Lost:	140															
Average / Wicket:	25.77															
Balls / Wicket:	41.88															
Runs / Over:	3.69															
Highest Score For:	5/418	vs Mos	man (I	Rd5)												
Lowest Score For:	76 vs l	Parrama	atta (R	d14)												
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Bachmann,Hugh A	8	9	2	151*	348	49.71	1	1	73.11	40	6	2		-	-	553
Towers,Steven J	6	6	1	101	202	40.40	1	1	87.83	28	1	-		-	-	527
Tibbetts,Joel A	7	8	-	86	315	39.38	3	-	41.78	42	2	1		-	1	490
Groves,Peter R	7	8	1	84*	212	30.29	2	-	56.38	27	3	-		-	-	312
Sanders, Matthew R	14	14	4	48*	296	29.60	-	-	78.72	34	4	15	4	-	5	801
Roche,Jordan M	4	5	-	66	147	29.40	1	-	81.22	19	3	2		-	-	222
Robson,Angus J	9	10	-	108	281	28.10	1	1	49.91	24	-	4		-	-	611
Elliott, Timothy J	5.5	5	-	65	131	26.20	1	-	57.46	20	-	2		-	-	246
Mag,Michael	14	13	3	56	241	24.10	1	-	73.93	37	-	12		-	2	1366
Morris,Christopher J	6	8	1	69	160	22.86	1	-	41.13	14	-	4		-	1	285
Wijeratne,Gihan N	10	12	-	48	190	15.83	-	-	46.45	20	-	1		-	-	240
Fleming, Tallaesen	8	9	-	56	99	11.00	1	-	55.62	13	1	1		-	-	174
Tan,Jonathan J H	4	6	1	25*	49	9.80	-	-	41.18	3	-	1		-	1	89
O'Brien,Christopher	4	4	-	35	39	9.75	-	-	53.42	3	2	-		-	1	204
Ward, Christopher	4	4	1	8	15	5.00	-	-	15.00	1	-	1		-	-	135
Crowl,Samuel J	6	6	1	6	23	4.60	-	-	17.04	-	-	4		-	1	358
Also Batted:																
Dennis,Gregory M	3	3	2	82*	166	166.00	2	-	57.04	20	2	-		-	-	246
Bowcock,Daniel S	3	3	_	77	168	56.00	2	-	94.38	28	1	3		_	-	298
Turner, Matthew	2	2	_	35	59	29.50	-	-	47.97	8	-	1		_	-	89
Emery,Keiran	3	2	1	12	22	22.00	-	-	66.67	2	-	4		_	-	172
Pereira,Gavin J	2	2	_	19	36	18.00	_	_	105.88	6	-	_		_	-	56
	1															

Dooley,Robert A	4	2	2	12*	17	-	-	-	30.91	-	-	-	-	-	142
Mann,David L	2	1	1	2*	2	-	-	-	50.00	-	-	1	-	-	52
Leishman, Richard A	2	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	100
Mauric,Vince	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	50
Extras					273										
Difference					-3										

BOWLING 4th Grade 2006/2007

Overs Bowled: 902.1 3456 Runs Scored Against: Wickets Taken: 115 30.05 Average / Wicket: 47.07 Balls / Wicket: Runs / Over: 3.83 Highest Score Against:

8/336 vs Hawkesbury (Rd9)

Highest Score Against:	8/336 VS	Hawke	esbury	(Ka9)							
Lowest Score Against:	135 vs N	North Sy	dney (Rd13)							
Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Mag,Michael	169.3	46	27	485	5/64	17.96	2.86	37.67	1	-	-
Stark,Robert W	40	7	7	128	6/83	18.29	3.20	36.00	1	12	-
Heysen,David C H	60	11	9	245	3/49	27.22	4.08	41.44	-	10	3
Appleton,Mark S	57.3	13	7	195	5/45	27.86	3.39	51.14	1	13	-
Crowl,Samuel J	54	9	8	232	4/50	29.00	4.30	40.75	-	-	2
Ward, Christopher	38	1	5	168	2/47	33.60	4.42	45.60	-	-	-
Towers,Steven J	51.2	8	6	215	3/50	35.83	4.19	53.00	-	1	9
Dooley,Robert A	41.2	4	4	166	3/30	41.50	4.02	64.00	-	6	2
Tibbetts, Joel A	46	8	2	139	1/12	69.50	3.02	140.00	-	2	2
Also Bowled:											
Lane,Stephen	10	3	3	24	3/24	8.00	2.40	20.33	-	1	-
Leishman,Richard A	23	4	4	82	2/36	20.50	3.57	35.75	-	2	3
Pereira, Gavin J	8	2	1	23	1/23	23.00	2.88	49.00	-	1	-
Mauric,Vince	16	2	2	47	2/28	23.50	2.94	50.00	-	1	3
Elliott,Timothy J	7	-	1	24	1/24	24.00	3.43	45.00	-	3	-
O'Brien,Christopher	36.5	6	6	157	3/47	26.17	4.26	38.50	-	9	1
Emery,Keiran	25	4	3	106	2/46	35.33	4.24	53.33	-	8	2
Robson,Angus J	35	4	4	150	3/60	37.50	4.29	52.50	-	-	-
Lockett,Benjamin M	26	5	3	114	2/54	38.00	4.38	53.33	-	4	-
Kalagara,Suresh K	31.4	5	3	121	1/27	40.33	3.82	64.33	-	2	1
Groves,Peter R	36	7	2	127	1/10	63.50	3.53	116.00	-	2	14
Dennis,Gregory M	18	3	1	71	1/21	71.00	3.94	108.00	-	-	-
Mann,David L	14	-	1	85	1/57	85.00	6.07	84.00	-	-	-
Maddock,Clint	21	1	-	112	0/24	-	5.33	-	-	3	-
Charlwood, Alexander G	14	-	-	46	0/46	-	3.29	-	-	1	-
Tan,Jonathan J H	14	-	-	65	0/22	-	4.64	-	-	-	2
Vonwiller, Christoph C	9	3	-	27	0/27	-	3.00	-	-	1	-
Extras				105							
Difference				-3							

PARTNERSHIPS 4th Grade 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S	
1st	2	Bankstown	1	Elliott,Timothy J	65	Tibbetts,Joel A	70	119	
2nd	2	Bankstown	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	70	Bowcock,Daniel S	77	96	
2nd	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Turner, Matthew	35	Tibbetts,Joel A	86	78	
2nd	5	Mosman	1	Turner, Matthew	24	Tibbetts,Joel A	86	77	
2nd	15	Penrith	1	Robson,Angus J	32	Morris, Christopher J	24	56	
2nd	9	Hawkesbury	1	Wijeratne,Gihan N	35	Groves,Peter R	31	52	
3rd	14	Parramatta	2	Bachmann,Hugh A	53	Roche,Jordan M	66	96	
4th	13	North Sydney	1	Robson,Angus J	108	Morris, Christopher J	69	128	
4th	3	Western Suburbs	1	Bachmann,Hugh A	42	Bowcock,Daniel S	63	95	
4th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	86	Bachmann,Hugh A	30	69	
5th	5	Mosman	1	Towers,Steven J	101	Bachmann,Hugh A	151*	195	#
5th	10	Eastern Suburbs	2	Morris, Christopher J	20*	Groves,Peter R	84*	105*	
5th	8	Blacktown	1	Wijeratne,Gihan N	48	Dennis,Gregory M	72*	67	
5th	12	Northern Districts	1	Groves,Peter R	60	Morris,Christopher J	24	59	
6th	5	Mosman	1	Mag,Michael	30*	Bachmann, Hugh A	151*	71*	
6th	7	Sutherland	1	Mag,Michael	32	O'Brien,Christopher	35	56	
7th	11	UTS-Balmain	1	Mag,Michael	56	Sanders, Matthew R	48*	81	
7th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Sanders, Matthew R	28*	Towers,Steven J	67*	73*	
8th	15	Penrith	1	Sanders, Matthew R	26	Crowl,Samuel J	5	35	
9th	7	Sutherland	1	Appleton,Mark S	6	Dennis,Gregory M	82*	30	
10th	7	Sutherland	1	Ward, Christopher	8	Dennis, Gregory M	82*	69	

[#] New club record.

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	17	-	454	26.71
2nd	17	-	624	36.71
3rd	17	-	262	15.41
4th	17	-	556	32.71
5th	17	1	597	37.31
6th	16	2	380	27.14
7th	14	2	351	29.25
8th	12	1	131	11.91
9th	11	1	118	11.80
10th	10	1	135	15.00

FIFTH GRADE REPORT

In 2006-07 5th Grade had what is usually described a "mixed" season. With 6 wins and 9 losses we finished in 13th position out of 20 teams. This was an accurate reflection of how we played: statistics rarely lie, despite their bad reputation.

The biggest challenge during the season was our inability to field a consistent team: 39 players appeared in 5th grade at some stage this year, and we had as many as 4 captains: **Rob Stark**, **Jim Robson**, **Pete Mitchell** and yours truly. We also lacked a bit of punch in the pace bowling department after Keiran was injured and consistency in the top 5 (i.e. until Jungle came in).

There were positives, however, particularly the emergence of young players such as **Angus Robson**, **Gihan Wijeratne**, **Keiran Emery**, **Jordan Nabarro** and **Chris Ward**. Angus and Gihan were both promoted to 4s after strong starts to the season, while Keiran and Jordan were mainstays of the batting by season's end and "Bundeena" Ward bowled a tight line and length all year. Jungle had another extraordinary season, at least by anyone else's standards, leading the run-scoring, wicket-taking and stress-fracturing (of his back), although Starky perhaps topped him statistically (picking up his 600th wicket for the club) and medically (doing so after open heart surgery).

As for results, pre-Christmas wins were achieved against Bankstown (Rd 2), Wests (Rd 3), St George (Rd 6) and Blacktown (Rd 8), while we had success after the break against Northern District (Rd 12) and Parramatta (Rd 14). We lost the rest, including close games against Randwick-Petersham (Rd 1, 9 runs), Fairfield-Liverpool (Rd 4, 18 runs), Sutherland (Rd 7, 2 wickets) and Penrith (Rd 15, 5 runs). We had shockers against Mosman (Rd 5, rolled for 114 at DP), UTS Balmain (Rd 11, losing 20 wickets for 143 at ELS Hall, admittedly on a lively deck) and North Sydney (Rd 13, all out 134 at DP).

A quick run through the highlights, and key players:

Angus Robson peeling off a lazy 162 in just his second game for the club, against Bankstown no less, taking us (with Matt Turner's 66-run help) to 4-354 and a good win. Gus backed it up with 83 against Fairfield in Round 4 and was not seen in Fifth Grade again (although he did make another ton).

"Jungle" Jim Robson watching his younger son beat his own career-best score for the club at the second attempt (see above), before hitting back with 165* against Sutherland. Cop that, kiddo! Jungle scored 426 runs at 71 and took 23 wickets at 13. Unbelievable.

Kieran Emery overcoming spinal misalignment (a.k.a. growing pains), which prevented him bowling most of the season, to become an incisive middle order batsman with a number of useful scores, including 43 in the win against Parra and an ominous 30 against Penrith. (That 30 looked like becoming a match-winning 70 when Keiran was inexplicably adjudged run out while (a) not in fact running and (b) standing with his bat in the crease. Baffling.) Keiran has great power for a young bloke and is a player of the future.

Jordon Nabarro emerging as a genuine No.3 prospect, with 41* in the defeat to Norths followed by an outstanding (and winning) 95 against Parramatta. He also effected 10 dismissals behind the stumps, although he needs to improve his footwork. Jordan is a bright young bloke with excellent timing and a good temperament, and has a solid future in grade cricket if he wants it.

Chris Ward compensating for some poor tonsorial choices (head and facial hair) with some excellent left-arm orthodox spin. Second only to Jungle in overs bowled and wickets taken, with 17 victims in 122 overs at an average of 21.

Vince Mauric taking 5-24 and 3-25 against UTS Balmain with outstanding swing and seam bowling. Sadly Vince was entirely unsupported by his teammates and we crashed to outright defeat!





Starky claiming his 600th wicket for UNSW – Round 13 v North Sydney

Above: Regulation Rob Stark dismissal – good length, good line, bit a movement and the ensuing edge to the keeper. Below: celebrating with the rest of 5th grade.

Jonathan Tan outscoring Jungle with a blazing 88* (Jungle made 60*) to run down Blacktown in a December one-dayer. Jono also contributed a couple of important wickets, none more important than the first two at Somerville against Northern Districts. Let's hope Jono makes it back to the club after his stint overseas.

Jordan Roche contributing 3 classy 50s when not playing 4s or managing a nightclub near you. Talented player could go a lot further if he makes cricket a priority.

Chris O'Brien contributing runs and wickets in early rounds before finding his rightful place in higher grades.

Pete Mitchell helping us post a competitive total at NDs before moving to Melbourne for work. (Pleased to say the last time I spoke to Mav he was in fact sitting on a tram.) Mav has been a fine servant of 5th grade over many years and we thank him for his contribution.

Julian Mark, Michael Rea and Nivan Weerakkody forming an unlikely mid-innings pace attack over the last 4 or 5 rounds, in addition to their "day jobs" of scoring runs. Julian made 45 against Mosman and 52 against the Hawks to stave off outrights, then bowled incisive spells against NDs, Norths and Penrith. Mick took time to adjust with the bat but picked up 5 wickets at just 12 over the final few games. Niv could not repeat his record run-scoring feats of 2005-06 (there were lots of starts but few finishes) but scored a match-turning 47 on a sandpit at Somerville and with 9 wickets fell one short of winning a case of beer from the captain.

Alex Charlwood, Paul Swanwick, Luke Williams and **Mike Walters** all contributing with the ball at various stages, with 20 wickets between them. Not so much with the bat, though, as they collectively compiled 62 runs from 13 digs! All good team men, and greater consistency will bring greater rewards.

Many others made cameos in 5s through the season, including personalities such as Serov, Afsal, Garland, Halikas, Jauregui, Kalagara, Morris, Stuart A, Wakim B and Mann D.

However, the cameo of cameos goes to **Robert Stark**, who, it is worth repeating, returned from heart surgery to take his 600th wicket for the club and then was promptly promoted to 4th Grade. With **Greig Robinson** (630 wickets in all grades) in his sights, I am 99% sure we will see Starky back next season. If this captain has anything to with it, 5th Grade will also be challenging for the finals.

ANDREW JONES

MATCH SUMMARIES 5th Grade 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	*	University of NSW	5/204	50	Randwick-Petersham	213	48.5
	South		Turner, Matthew	50*	(45)	Stark,Robert W	2/28	9
			Robson,Angus J	38	(112)	Robson, Angus J	2/32	7.5
			Wijeratne, Gihan N	37	(86)	Kalagara,Suresh K	2/33	6
						Garnon, Tyler K	2/19	4
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
2	David Phillips		University of NSW	4/354 d.	80	Bankstown	217	89.5
	South		Robson,Angus J	162	(209)	Robson,James G	4/23	17.2
			Turner, Matthew	66	(77)	Ward, Christopher	4/69	30
			Wakim,Benjamin	50	(99)	Garland, Matthew	1/24	11
			O'Brien, Christopher	32*	(26)	Robson,Angus J	1/35	15
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
3	David Phillips	*	Western Suburbs	119	42.3	University of NSW	3/121	29.1
	South		Robson,James G	3/11	10	Wijeratne, Gihan N	49*	(82)
			Ward, Christopher	3/23	10	Afzal,Faisal	22*	(22)

		Robson,Angus J	1/7	3.3			
		O'Brien,Christopher	1/20	6			
	Result:	Won on first innings + BP (7 poin					
4	Cabramatta Oval	Fairfield-Lilverpool	189	86.1	University of NSW	171	50.1
•	Cubrumutu Ovur	Emery,Keiran	3/12	10	Robson, Angus J	83	(128)
		Robson, James G	2/25	17.1	Nabarro,Jordan	44	(74)
		O'Brien,Christopher	2/32	14	Emery,Keiran	22	(30)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					()
5	David Phillips	Mosman	9/226 d.	82	University of NSW	114	38.1
	South	Robson,James G	3/28	23	Robson, James G	21	(19)
	South	O'Brien,Christopher	2/42	16	Rea,Michael P	21	(39)
		Ward, Christopher	1/13	8	,		(/
		Emery,Keiran	1/26	10			
					(2nd Inns)	6/129	28
					Roche,Jordan M	52	(58)
					Mark,Julian C	45	(58)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)					(00)
6	Cahill Park	* University of NSW	9/281	50	St.George	7/229	50
Ü		O'Brien,Christopher	71	(61)	O'Brien,Christopher	2/30	10
		Robson,Angus J	34	(39)	Ward,Christopher	2/39	7
		Robson, James G	33	(41)	Robson.James G	2/46	10
		1100001,0 unico		(.1)	Robson,Angus J	1/6	1
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)			rtooson,i mgao t	2,0	•
7	Tonkin Park	University of NSW	279	81.1	Sutherland	8/280	74.1
•	1 OHMI 1 UI M	Robson, James G	165*	(230)	Robson,James G	4/51	21
		Emery, Keiran	40	(69)	Kalagara,Suresh K	2/70	14.1
		Afzal,Faisal	24	(30)	Emery,Keiran	1/17	10
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0 points)		(50)	Zinery, rieman	2,2,	10
8	David Phillips	Blacktown	212	82.2	University of NSW	4/214	60
Ü	South	Robson, James G	3/43	24	Tan.Jonathan J H	88*	(107)
	South	Emery,Keiran	2/41	15	Robson.James G	60*	(70)
		Ward, Christopher	2/56	18.2	Jones, Andrew C	27	(74)
	Result:	Won on first innings (6 points)			,	_,	(, ,
9	Bensons Lane 3	Hawkesbury	8/307 d.	80	University of NSW	65	28.4
	Denisons Buile c	Walters, Michael B	4/60	22	•		
				22	Naparro.Jordan		(45)
					Nabarro,Jordan	18*	(45)
		Charlwood, Alexander G	2/34	11		18*	
					(2nd Inns)	18* 5/179	49
					(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M	18* 5/179 56	49 (69)
					(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C	18* 5/179 56 52	49 (69) (106)
	Result:	Charlwood,Alexander G			(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M	18* 5/179 56	49 (69)
10	Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points)	2/34	11	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P	5/179 56 52 34*	49 (69) (106) (53)
10	David Phillips	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs	2/34	77.4	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34*	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1
10		Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G	2/34 335 3/78	77.4 15	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86)
10	David Phillips	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher	2/34 335 3/78 3/95	77.4 15 23	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34*	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86)
10	David Phillips South	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C	2/34 335 3/78	77.4 15	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points)	335 3/78 3/95 2/45	77.4 15 23 8.3	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)
10	David Phillips South	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45	77.4 15 23 8.3	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain Mauric, Vince	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45 158 5/26	77.4 15 23 8.3 56.4 14.4	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain Mauric, Vince Tan, Jonathan J H	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45 158 5/26 2/28	77.4 15 23 8.3 56.4 14.4 8	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain Mauric, Vince Tan, Jonathan J H Walters, Michael B	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45 158 5/26 2/28 1/15	77.4 15 23 8.3 56.4 14.4 8 6	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain Mauric, Vince Tan, Jonathan J H Walters, Michael B Jauregui, Victor	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45 158 5/26 2/28 1/15 5	77.4 15 23 8.3 56.4 14.4 8 6 Cts	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C University of NSW Mauric,Vince	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22 59 12	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54) 28 (24)
	David Phillips South Result:	Charlwood, Alexander G Loss on first innings (0 points) Eastern Suburbs Charlwood, Alexander G Ward, Christopher Mark, Julian C Loss on first innings (0 points) UTS-Balmain Mauric, Vince Tan, Jonathan J H Walters, Michael B	2/34 335 3/78 3/95 2/45 158 5/26 2/28 1/15	77.4 15 23 8.3 56.4 14.4 8 6	(2nd Inns) Roche,Jordan M Mark,Julian C Rea,Michael P University of NSW Roche,Jordan M Jones,Andrew C University of NSW	18* 5/179 56 52 34* 172 82 22	49 (69) (106) (53) 54.1 (86) (54)

			Tan,Jonathan J H	1/15	2			
	Result:	Out	right loss after trailing on first	innings (0 pc	ints)			
12	Somerville Park	*	University of NSW	174	46.5	Northern Districts	123	46.2
			Weerakkody,Nivan	47	(84)	Tan,Jonathan J H	2/13	9
			Mitchell,Peter B	24	(55)	Mark,Julian C	2/17	8
						Charlwood, Alexander G	2/21	8.2
						Weerakkody,Nivan	2/28	10
	Result:	Woi	n on first innings (6 points)					
13	David Phillips		University of NSW	134	55.2	North Sydney	215	73.1
	South		Robson, James G	58	(90)	Stark,Robert W	4/57	30
						Mark,Julian C	3/12	2.1
			(2nd Inns)	5/87	27			
			Nabarro, Jordan	42*	(54)			
	Result:	Los	s on first innings (0 points)					
14	David Phillips		Parramatta	184	63.2	University of NSW	5/188	52
	South		Rea,Michael P	4/29	9.2	Nabarro,Jordan	95	(143)
			Weerakkody,Nivan	4/34	14	Emery, Keiran	43	(68)
			Mark,Julian C	2/40	13			
	Result:	Wor	n on first innings (6 points)					
15	David Phillips	*	Penrith	9/214	50	University of NSW	205	50
	South		Mauric, Vince	3/40	10	Robson,James G	70	(67)
			Mark,Julian C	2/36	8	Weerakkody,Nivan	45	(86)
						Emery, Keiran	30	(38)
	Result:	Los	s on first innings (0 points)					

BATTING

Overs Faced:

Runs Scored For:

Jones, Andrew C

5th Grade 2006/2007

3228

	-															
Wickets Lost:	146															
Average / Wicket:	22.11															
Balls / Wicket:	36.90															
Runs / Over:	3.59															
Highest Score For:	4/354 v	vs Bank	stown	(Rd2)												
Lowest Score For:	59 vs U	JTS-Ba	lmain	(Rd11)												
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Robson,James G	11	10	4	165*	426	71.00	3	1	76.48	50	3	3		-	2	1366
Turner, Matthew	3	3	1	66	133	66.50	2	-	77.78	20	-	1		-	-	198
Robson,Angus J	5	5	-	162	317	63.40	1	1	64.69	38	-	2		-	-	632
Roche,Jordan M	3	5	-	82	201	40.20	3	-	87.01	31	-	3		-	1	366
Wijeratne, Gihan N	5	6	1	49*	154	30.80	-	-	43.87	20	-	3		-	-	269
Tan,Jonathan J H	4	5	1	88*	116	29.00	1	-	58.00	13	-	2		1	-	321
O'Brien,Christopher	6	7	1	71	158	26.33	1	-	105.33	20	2	7		-	2	513
Nabarro, Jordan	10	12	2	95	263	26.30	1	-	56.08	25	-	8	2	-	-	538
Mitchell,Peter B	3	4	1	24	73	24.33	-	-	41.01	6	1	2		-	-	123
Emery,Keiran	8	8	-	43	177	22.12	-	-	69.14	23	2	3		1	-	452
Weerakkody,Nivan	5	7	-	47	154	22.00	-	-	53.10	13	-	3		1	-	444
Wakim,Benjamin	3	4	-	50	74	18.50	1	-	53.62	13	-	3	1	-	-	164
Mark,Julian C	9	11	-	52	174	15.82	1	-	45.91	14	-	3		-	1	544
Halikas,Steven	3	4	3	8*	15	15.00	-	-	23.44	1	-	-		-	-	25
Rea,Michael P	9	11	3	34*	109	13.62	-	-	50.93	10	-	6		-	-	399
Afzal,Faisal	7.5	9	1	24	95	11.88	-	-	60.51	11	1	3		1	-	245

Annual Report Season 2006/2007

10.56 -

35.19

165

27

95

Mann,David L	4	4	1	11	25	8.33	-	-	25.25	-	-	3	-	-	125
Ward, Christopher	8	6	4	5	14	7.00	-	-	13.46	-	-	-	-	-	494
Swanwick,Paul R	8	6	-	16	39	6.50	-	-	33.91	4	1	-	-	1	169
Fleming, Tallaesen	3	4	-	16	24	6.00	-	-	40.68	-	-	3	-	-	119
Jauregui, Victor	3	4	-	10	20	5.00	-	_	12.66	-	-	7	_	_	270
Walters, Michael B	5	4	_	4	7	1.75	-	_	31.82	1	-	_	1	_	227
Charlwood, Alexander G	7	6	1	6*	7	1.40	-	_	15.56	-	-	1	1	_	252
Also Batted:															
Panda,Koush	1	1	-	13	13	13.00	-	-	32.50	1	-	1	_	_	43
Stuart, Alexander I	1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	38.71	1	-	-	_	_	12
Mauric,Vince	2	3	-	14	28	9.33	-	-	50.00	2	1	1	-	-	418
Kalagara,Suresh K	3	3	-	13	26	8.67	-	-	60.47	2	-	1	-	-	126
Morris, Christopher J	1	1	-	8	8	8.00	-	-	53.33	1	-	2	-	-	58
Williams,Luke	6	3	1	9	9	4.50	-	-	23.08	1	-	2	-	-	109
Stark,Robert W	2	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	190
Jebb,David C	2	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	30
Gerber,Simon B H	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	20
Serov,Paul	1	2	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	40
Garnon, Tyler K	2	1	1	4*	4	-	-	-	133.33	-	-	-	-	-	54
Dooley,Robert A	1	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	30
Campbell,Richard	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	20
Crowl,Samuel J	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	20
Garland, Matthew	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	50
Extras					256										
Difference					2										

BOWLING

5th Grade 2006/2007

Overs Bowled:	1022
Runs Scored Against:	3313
Wickets Taken:	148
Average / Wicket:	22.39
Balls / Wicket:	41.43
Runs / Over:	3.24
TT' 1 . C A ' .	225 5

Highest Score Against: 335 vs Eastern Suburbs (Rd10)
Lowest Score Against: 119 vs Western Suburbs (Rd3)

Name	О	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Mauric,Vince	32.4	4	11	91	5/26	8.27	2.79	18.36	1	6	-
Robson,James G	150.3	48	23	307	4/23	13.35	2.04	39.26	-	-	-
Stark,Robert W	39	14	6	85	4/57	14.17	2.18	39.33	-	2	-
Mark,Julian C	46.4	3	11	184	3/12	16.73	3.94	26.36	-	5	5
Emery,Keiran	51	13	7	123	3/12	17.57	2.41	44.29	-	4	-
Robson,Angus J	37.2	6	6	106	2/32	17.67	2.84	37.67	-	2	-
O'Brien, Christopher	46	13	7	124	2/30	17.71	2.70	40.43	-	5	2
Weerakkody,Nivan	39	7	7	134	4/34	19.14	3.44	33.86	-	3	-
Ward, Christopher	122.2	26	17	371	4/69	21.82	3.03	43.29	-	2	-
Walters, Michael B	61	11	7	167	4/60	23.86	2.74	54.86	-	16	2
Charlwood, Alexander G	71.2	12	8	250	3/78	31.25	3.50	54.12	-	5	-
Swanwick,Paul R	77.2	13	4	252	2/22	63.00	3.26	120.25	-	17	-
Williams,Luke	49	11	1	147	1/53	147.00	3.00	300.00	-	4	2
Also Bowled:											
Rea,Michael P	17.3	2	5	62	4/29	12.40	3.54	22.20	-	6	-
Garnon, Tyler K	5.3	-	2	30	2/19	15.00	5.45	22.50	-	8	4

Tan,Jonathan J H	22	4	5	81	2/13	16.20	3.68	27.20	-	4	-
Afzal,Faisal	11.4	3	2	48	1/16	24.00	4.11	36.00	-	1	1
Garland, Matthew	11	4	1	24	1/24	24.00	2.18	66.00	-	-	-
Serov,Paul	13	5	2	52	1/26	26.00	4.00	39.00	-	-	-
Campbell,Richard	9	3	1	30	1/30	30.00	3.33	57.00	-	3	-
Roche,Jordan M	6	-	1	36	1/36	36.00	6.00	36.00	-	-	-
Kalagara,Suresh K	31.1	4	4	153	2/33	38.25	4.91	48.75	-	6	2
Mann,David L	35	1	1	183	1/47	183.00	5.23	212.00	-	2	-
Halikas,Steven	28	4	-	105	0/11	-	3.75	-	-	3	9
Dooley,Robert A	5	2	-	18	0/18	-	3.60	-	-	-	-
Crowl,Samuel J	4	-	-	32	0/32	-	8.00	-	-	-	-
Extras				121							
Difference				-3							

PARTNERSHIPS

5th Grade 2006/2007

		· · · · · · ·					i	i e
Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	2	Bankstown	1	Wakim,Benjamin	50	Robson,Angus J	162	113
1st	6	St.George	1	Robson,Angus J	34	Wijeratne,Gihan N	27	67
2nd	5	Mosman	2	Roche,Jordan M	52	Mark,Julian C	45	85
2nd	1	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wijeratne, Gihan N	37	Robson,Angus J	38	75
2nd	1	Randwick-Petersham	1	Wijeratne, Gihan N	37	Robson,Angus J	38	75
2nd	2	Bankstown	1	Wijeratne,Gihan N	28	Robson,Angus J	162	63
3rd	2	Bankstown	1	Robson,Angus J	162	Turner, Matthew	66	104
4th	9	Hawkesbury	2	Roche,Jordan M	56	Mark,Julian C	52	97
4th	14	Parramatta	1	Emery,Keiran	43	Nabarro,Jordan	95	83
4th	2	Bankstown	1	Turner, Matthew	66	O'Brien, Christopher	32*	66
4th	6	St.George	1	Mark,Julian C	18	O'Brien,Christopher	71	55
4th	8	Blacktown	1	Nabarro,Jordan	22	Tan,Jonathan J H	88*	50
5th	8	Blacktown	1	Robson,James G	60*	Tan,Jonathan J H	88*	122*
5th	6	St.George	1	O'Brien,Christopher	71	Robson,James G	33	72
5th	15	Penrith	1	Weerakkody,Nivan	45	Robson,James G	70	64
5th	12	Northern Districts	1	Weerakkody,Nivan	47	Mitchell,Peter B	24	54
6th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Nabarro, Jordan	44	Robson,Angus J	83	103
6th	9	Hawkesbury	2	Mitchell,Peter B	20*	Rea,Michael P	34*	56*
7th	13	North Sydney	1	Robson,James G	58	Swanwick,Paul R	10	35
8th	7	Sutherland	1	Emery,Keiran	40	Robson,James G	165*	107
9th	7	Sutherland	1	Williams,Luke	9	Robson,James G	165*	63
10th	7	Sutherland	1	Charlwood, Alexander G	1	Robson,James G	165*	16

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	20	-	418	20.90
2nd	20	-	484	24.20
3rd	19	-	333	17.53
4th	19	1	589	32.72
5th	18	2	547	34.19
6th	16	3	344	26.46
7th	12	1	163	14.82
8th	11	-	226	20.55
9th	11	-	164	14.91
10th	11	1	57	5.70

SIXTH GRADE REPORT

It has been well documented this year that the club struggled to put out reliable sides due to unprecedented difficulty with last minute pull outs. Sixth grade had a mixed season where I feel some reasonably enterprising cricketers felt the brunt of Friday night / Sat morning call ups to higher grades. Be that as it may 6th grade was an interesting mix of youthful exuberance, some new players to the club, some dependable hands and some more experienced types ...well a lot more experienced (like Fingers). Said it before but massive thank you to **Andrew Jones** for organising EVERYTHING. I filled in for part the season and thanks to Jonesy I ended up doing less cricket administration than Punter.

Across the season we had 3 wins, 8 losses and a washout from 12 rounds of cricket. By around round 8 we were out of the semis race but there were some good efforts nonetheless.

Mike Gregg bowled some inspired spells and was easily the most consistent bowler. He captained the side at times and at others times led by example. In particular 3 for 29 against Balmain coming on to bowl and taking wickets at times we really needed a wicket.

Luke Williams and **Steve Halikas** were reliable new ball bowlers. Spinal's 4 for 61 off 13 overs a highlight against Hawkesbury. Luke bowled a very dependable line and length and was easily our best fieldsman, also showed he is handy with the bat scoring 53 not out against Gordon.

School holiday cameos from Eric Parsons, Murray Crowe and Alex Kemmery were more than useful. Eric bowls with great rhythm and accuracy damaging the Balmain top order to great effect with only 10 fieldsman. Murray gives the ball a great rip, his enthusiasm for the game is unrivalled – at times he'd be more effective if he could reign it in a little. Alex bowled well and scored a useful 31. All cricketers to watch in the future.

Mick Rea bowled some useful spells before returning to 5th grade and Kushal and Chenna also chipped in from time to time with a useful spell.

New players to the club **Paul Grzadka** and **Brendan Johnson** chipped in with 20s and 30s in only a few games. I don't think we saw the best of either of these players and it would be great to see them both work on their respective games next season. Paul's bowling was a useful addition to the side tying down an end at times when we needed to try to build some pressure. **Rich Coomber** was very tidy behind the stumps and batted well playing only a handful of games before stepping up to 5th grade.

The one hit wonder of the season had to be **Hashan Panditaratne**. Hashan bowled a quick accurate spell against Sydney Uni producing 4 for 89 off 24 overs. Where did he go????

The usual suspects made contributions over the year **Vic Jaregui** scored a 42 not out and 55 in consecutive games. An avid student of the game was not quite content with his game this year but never gave his wicket away and gave us some solid starts. Jonesy probably averaged 50 in the few games he played. We saw **Nivan** "the great" **Weerakkoddy** on a couple of occasions where he chipped in with runs and some wickets. His innings against Balmain got us over the line. **Robbie Dooley** filled in while injured chipping in with two useful 50s and some dressing room banter I'd rather repress.

Kushal Das was perhaps the player I was waiting to watch dominate opposition bowling attacks. Kushal gave us a hint of his capabilities against Balmain scoring 32 not having to retire at the end of the day because of unavailability in week 2. It was a shame as he was well established in control. Kushal works hard on his game and I will be interested to see how he fares next season – perhaps some untapped potential.

Thanks for the season gents and would be great to see some of this year's side put claims up for higher grades in the coming August/September.

DAN CULHANE

MATCH SUMMARIES Metropolitan Cup 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
1	David Phillips	*	UTS-Balmain	151	34.5	University of NSW	4/153	25.4
	South		Charlwood, Alexander G	3/30	7	Coomber, Richard	42	(40)
			De Silva,Chaanuk A	2/39	10	Weerakkody,Nivan	36*	(46)
			Mark,Julian C	1/10	2.5	Jones, Andrew C	31	(33)
	Result:	Won	on first innings + BP (7 points	s)				
2	David Phillips		University of NSW	213	80.3	Sydney University	8/217	68
	South		Jones, Andrew C	50	(143)	Panditaratne, Hashan	4/80	24
			Cheung, Jason	29	(78)	Halikas,Steven	2/30	14
			Jauregui, Victor	29	(104)	Charlwood, Alexander G	1/31	15
			Coomber,Richard	26	(50)	Cheung, Jason	1/33	12
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
3	David Phillips		Penrith	227	67.1	University of NSW	0/24	10
	South		Swanwick,Paul R	4/33	17	Jones, Andrew C	17*	(26)
			Williams,Luke	2/40	13.1	Jauregui, Victor	6*	(34)
			Halikas,Steven	2/57	14			
			Tan,Jonathan J H	1/16	6			
	Result:	Draw	(0 points) - 2nd Day Washed	Out				
4	David Phillips	*	University of NSW	6/233	50	Gordon	5/235	44.3
	South		Afzal,Faisal	59	(47)	Cheung, Jason	2/16	7
			Kalagara,Suresh K	49	(33)	Charlwood, Alexander G	1/36	10
			Jauregui, Victor	47*	(103)	Swanwick,Paul R	1/40	8
			Weerakkody,Nivan	31	(64)			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
_				8/282			400	
5	David Phillips		Hawkesbury	d.	86	University of NSW	180	60
	South		Halikas,Steven	4/61	13	Jauregui, Victor	59	(132)
			Serov,Paul	2/57	23	Jones, Andrew C	55	(145)
	-		Weerakkody,Nivan	1/32	13			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
6	Alexandria Park		South Sydney			University of NSW		
	Result:	Won	on Forfeit (10 points)					
7	David Phillips		University of NSW	158	63	Blacktown	4/167	56
	South		Jones, Andrew C	46	(87)	Gregg,Michael	2/39	13
			Atallah,Tom	43	(46)	Parsons,Eriq	1/33	13
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
8	Jubilee Oval		UTS-Balmain	200	67.1	University of NSW	7/203	65
			Gregg,Michael	3/29	11	Brownlee,Joel	48	(82)
						Weerakkody,Nivan	40*	(97)
			Crowe, Murray	2/45	10.1	Das,Kushal	32	(40)
			Halikas,Steven	1/6	5	Kemmery,Alec	31	(64)
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
9	David Phillips		Hawkesbury	226	77.3	University of NSW	115	53.4
	South		Crowe, Murray	5/56	15.3	Grzadka,Paul	35	(107)
			Charlwood, Alexander G	3/52	15			
			Williams,Luke	1/10	14			
			Panda,Koush	1/18	7			
						(2nd Inns)	6/91	23
						Johnson,Brendan	35	(31)
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

10	David Phillips	* Randwick-Peter	rsham 9/190	50	University of NSW	180	48.3
	South	Culhane, Daniel J	4/20	10	Johnson,Brendan	31	(38)
		Rea,Michael P	3/25	9	Dooley,Robert A	23	(35)
		Williams,Luke	1/28	7			
					Cheung, Jason	23	(25)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0	points)				
11	Beauchamp Park	Gordon	9/268 d.	80	University of NSW	190	71.3
		Culhane,Daniel J	3/13	10	Dooley,Robert A	63	(110)
		Rea,Michael P	3/50	15	Williams,Luke	53*	(85)
		Cheung, Jason	1/19	6	Culhane, Daniel J	27	(27)
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0)	points)				
12	David Phillips	University of NS	SW 104	47.3	Sydney University	30	16.2
	South	Jourdain,Chris	30	(108)	Culhane, Daniel J	8/14	8.2
		Das,Kushal	26	(90)	Williams,Luke	2/15	8
	Result:	Won on first innings (6	points)				
13	David Phillips	* University of NS	SW 8/204	50	Randwick-Petersham	5/205	47
	South	Jones, Andrew C	64	(121)	Halikas,Steven	2/19	5
		Dooley,Robert A	. 53	(93)	Williams,Luke	2/42	10
	Result:	Loss on first innings (0)	points)				

BATTING

	Metro	politan	Cup	2006/2007
--	-------	---------	-----	-----------

 Overs Faced:
 648.2

 Runs Scored For:
 2048

 Wickets Lost:
 101

 Average / Wicket:
 20.28

 Balls / Wicket:
 38.51

 Runs / Over:
 3.16

Highest Score For: 6/233 vs Gordon (Rd4)

Lowest Score For:	104 vs	Sydney	y Univ	ersity (Rd12)											
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Dooley,Robert A	3	3	-	63	139	46.33	2	-	58.40	13	-	-		-	-	209
Jones, Andrew C	7	7	1	64	268	44.67	3	-	48.55	30	-	1		-	-	348
Weerakkody,Nivan	6	5	2	40*	123	41.00	-	-	52.34	16	-	-		-	-	163
Williams,Luke	8	6	3	53*	75	25.00	1	-	50.34	7	-	6		-	-	420
Jauregui, Victor	10	9	2	55	162	23.14	1	-	29.67	14	-	8		-	1	377
Coomber,Richard	6	5	-	42	106	21.20	-	-	61.63	17	1	5	1	-	4	286
Grzadka,Paul	4	5	1	35	67	16.75	-	-	29.52	2	-	2		-	-	117
Cheung, Jason	8	7	2	29	71	14.20	_	-	40.80	5	-	1		-	_	181
Johnson,Brendan	5	6	_	35	84	14.00	_	-	73.68	9	-	-		-	-	94
Culhane, Daniel J	7	7	-	27	93	13.29	_	-	56.36	12	1	4		-	_	793
Halikas,Steven	9	5	2	15*	30	10.00	_	-	35.29	4	-	1		-	1	360
Das,Kushal	9	10	-	32	98	9.80	_	-	41.35	6	-	2		1	_	178
McDowall,Lachlan	3	4	1	13	24	8.00	_	-	30.77	1	-	1	1	-	_	74
Gregg,Michael	7	5	1	11	29	7.25	_	-	44.62	-	-	3		-	_	274
Also Batted:																
Afzal,Faisal	2	1	_	59	59	59.00	1	_	125.53	9	-	2		_	_	124
Kalagara,Suresh K	1	1	_	49	49	49.00	_	_	148.48	6	-	-		_	_	69
Brownlee,Joel	1	1	-	48	48	48.00	-	-	58.54	4	-	-		_	-	58
Atallah,Tom	1	1	_	43	43	43.00	_	_	93.48	2	-	_		_	_	43
Tan,Jonathan J H	3	2	1	19	32	32.00	_	_	94.12	5	-	_		_	1	72

· ·	i														
Kemmery,Alec	1	1	-	31	31	31.00	-	-	48.44	1	-	-	-	-	41
Jourdain,Chris	3	3	-	30	60	20.00	-	-	30.46	4	-	-	-	-	70
Panditaratne,Hashan	1	1	-	20	20	20.00	-	-	57.14	3	-	-	-	-	150
Parsons,Eriq	2	2	1	12	18	18.00	-	-	43.90	-	-	-	-	-	88
Panda,Koush	2	3	1	19	35	17.50	-	-	53.03	5	-	-	-	-	55
Rea,Michael P	4	3	-	14	22	7.33	-	-	55.00	2	-	1	-	-	242
Merlin,Sam	1	2	1	4	7	7.00	-	-	43.75	1	-	-	-	-	7
Charlwood, Alexander G	5	2	-	12	13	6.50	-	-	43.33	3	-	-	-	1	243
Gulden,Adam	2	3	-	9	18	6.00	-	-	21.18	1	-	-	-	-	18
Mark,Julian C	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	30.77	-	-	-	-	-	34
Crowe, Murray	2	3	-	5	8	2.67	-	-	20.00	-	-	-	-	-	258
Walters, Michael B	1	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	50.00	-	-	-	-	-	1
Wakim,Charlie	1	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	14.29	-	-	-	-	-	1
Garland, Matthew	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	20
De Silva,Chaanuk A	3	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	3	-	-	110
Swanwick,Paul R	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	150
Serov,Paul	1	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	40
Pereira, Gavin J	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	1	-	-	20

Absent 2

Extras 205 Difference 5

BOWLING

Metropolitan Cup 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 694.3

 Runs Scored Against:
 2398

 Wickets Taken:
 98

 Average / Wicket:
 24.47

 Balls / Wicket:
 42.52

 Runs / Over:
 3.45

Highest Score Against: 8/282 vs Hawkesbury (Rd5)
Lowest Score Against: 30 vs Sydney University (Rd12)

Name	О	M	\mathbf{W}	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Culhane,Daniel J	42.2	12	17	84	8/14	4.94	1.98	15.18	1	4	-
Rea,Michael P	40	6	7	142	3/25	20.29	3.55	35.29	-	3	4
Halikas,Steven	70	13	11	242	4/61	22.00	3.46	40.18	-	13	9
Charlwood, Alexander G	56	7	8	186	3/30	23.25	3.32	44.12	-	10	7
Williams,Luke	85.1	24	9	221	2/15	24.56	2.59	58.33	-	13	1
Gregg,Michael	68	11	7	248	3/29	35.43	3.65	58.57	-	2	-
Cheung, Jason	52	6	4	188	2/16	47.00	3.62	84.00	-	15	9
Crowe, Murray	25.4	2	7	101	5/56	14.43	3.94	22.00	1	-	-
Also Bowled:											
Mark,Julian C	2.5	-	1	10	1/10	10.00	3.53	17.00	-	-	-
Swanwick,Paul R	25	6	5	73	4/33	14.60	2.92	30.80	-	4	-
Panditaratne, Hashan	24	4	4	80	4/80	20.00	3.33	39.00	-	7	5
Parsons,Eriq	24	4	3	70	2/37	23.33	2.92	49.00	-	1	2
Serov,Paul	23	6	2	57	2/57	28.50	2.48	69.00	-	-	-
Panda,Koush	9	2	1	29	1/18	29.00	3.22	55.00	-	1	-
Tan,Jonathan J H	13	4	1	29	1/16	29.00	2.23	78.00	-	-	-
Weerakkody,Nivan	13	4	1	32	1/32	32.00	2.46	78.00	-	-	-
De Silva,Chaanuk A	18	1	2	87	2/39	43.50	4.83	60.00	-	11	1
Kalagara,Suresh K	7.3	-	1	64	1/64	64.00	8.53	47.00	-	1	1

Dooley,Robert A	21	5	1	69	1/42	69.00	3.29	128.00	-	2	-	
Grzadka,Paul	16	1	-	53	0/4	-	3.31	-	-	2	2	
Gulden,Adam	15	1	-	41	0/16	-	2.73	-	-	2	-	
Garland, Matthew	11	2	-	36	0/36	-	3.27	-	-	-	-	
Das,Kushal	9	-	-	40	0/10	-	4.44	-	-	1	4	
Atallah,Tom	8	-	-	31	0/31	-	3.88	-	-	-	-	
Kemmery,Alec	8	3	-	27	0/27	-	3.38	-	-	-	-	
Merlin,Sam	4	-	-	23	0/23	-	5.75	-	-	-	-	
Afzal,Faisal	2	-	-	15	0/15	-	7.50	-	-	-	-	
Wakim,Charlie	1	-	-	3	0/3	-	3.00	-	-	-	-	
Jourdain,Chris	1	-	-	9	0/9	-	9.00	-	-	-	-	
Extras				103								
Difference				5								

[#] New club record for bowling average

PARTNERSHIPS

Metropolitan Cup 2006/2007

111001	ponta	n Cup 2000/2007						1	
Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S	•
1st	5	Hawkesbury	1	Jones,Andrew C	59	Jauregui,Victor	55	110	#
2nd	4	Gordon	1	Coomber,Richard	20	Afzal,Faisal	59	65	
2nd	2	Sydney University	1	Jones, Andrew C	50	Jauregui, Victor	29	65	
2nd	7	Blacktown	1	Jourdain,Chris	19	Jones, Andrew C	46	60	_
3rd	1	UTS-Balmain	1	Coomber,Richard	42	Weerakkody,Nivan	36*	39	_
4th	13	Randwick-Petersham	1	Dooley,Robert A	53	Jones, Andrew C	64	119	
4th	8	UTS-Balmain	1	Kemmery,Alec	31	Brownlee,Joel	48	72	
4th	4	Gordon	1	Weerakkody,Nivan	31	Jauregui, Victor	47*	69	
4th	12	Sydney University	1	Das,Kushal	26	Jourdain,Chris	30	57	_
5th	4	Gordon	1	Kalagara,Suresh K	49	Jauregui, Victor	47*	71	_
6th	11	Gordon	1	Dooley,Robert A	63	Williams,Luke	53*	46	_
7th	7	Blacktown	1	Parsons,Eriq	12	Atallah,Tom	43	46	_
8th	2	Sydney University	1	Cheung, Jason	29	Panditaratne, Hashan	20	37	
9th	10	Randwick-Petersham	1	Cheung, Jason	23	Gregg,Michael	9	23	
10th	9	Hawkesbury	1	Charlwood, Alexander G	12	Williams,Luke	13*	24	•

[#] New club record.

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	13	1	346	28.83
2nd	12	-	361	30.08
3rd	12	-	110	9.17
4th	12	-	428	35.67
5th	12	1	252	22.91
6th	11	-	214	19.45
7th	11	2	124	13.78
8th	9	1	107	13.38
9th	8	1	51	7.29
10th	7	-	55	7.86

[#] New 6th Grade record for bowling average

[#] New 6th Grade record for best bowling figures

POIDEVIN GRAY SHIELD REPORT

The 2006/2007 Poidevin-Gray season was very positive and enjoyable, even though we did not enjoy the same fruits of success as the previous season.

Although it is fantastic to see so many of our under 21 players to be included in representative sides (i.e. 2nd XI, NSW U17 and U19), this does not necessarily reflect good results (in terms of winning games) in Poidevin-Gray. The absence of these players at various times during the season, along with inclement weather which, amongst other things, resulted in washouts in round's 1 and 7, definitely affected the teams overall effectiveness.

Of the five games where play was possible the team enjoyed two victories versus Sydney University and a very strong Manly side. On both of these occasions this would be attributed to an outstanding effort in the field – everything went to the Captain's plan, and the execution was top class.

Of our three losses, we were just simply outdone on the day (except against Penrith – guys, we should really have reeled this one in!).

Batting: -

Sam Robson and **Mitch Gowland** were much improved performers this season. Sam scored a very well compiled 79 vs. Sydney University and 70 vs. Manly (both in reasonably quick time), and Mitch scored his debut century for the club vs. Penrith.

"Billy" Joel Tibbetts and Matt Turner were both solid steady performers opening the innings in most games and usually provided the side with solid starts.

Apart from their comical ramblings, **Hugh Bachmann** and **Sam Crichton** provided the team with big hitting when required. **Mitch Sykes** had a very lean season by his standards, but did score a hard hitting 50 vs. Sydney University. **Peter Groves** who was struggling to get a start in the side at the beginning of the season hit a very entertaining 62* (off only 48 balls) vs. Manly.

Bowling: -

Although our pace attack was inexperienced and had problems with technique at times **Sam Crichton, Timm Van Der Gugten**, and in particular **Matthias Treuberg** all improved significantly as the season progressed.

Matthias unlocked the key to bowl very tight spells on most occasions which is so vital to obtain that early break-through. His fantastic spell vs. Campbelltown-Camden is a good example of this.

Our spin bowlers toiled hard this season, **Mitch Gowland** was probably our best and was rewarded with 4/44 off 10 vs. Campbelltown-Camden. **Sam Robson** chipped in with a spell of 3/42 off 10 vs. Manly.

I would have to rate **Joel Tibbetts** (with his very under rated gentle left arm med's) as the only bowler who consistently attacked the stumps. His 5/32 vs. Gordon was a vindication for his hard work on his bowling as the season progressed.

Fielding: -

Overall, our fielding was of a high standard, particularly in the catching department.

Out field catches by **Sam Crichton**, **Peter Groves**, and **Chris O'Brien** are fantastic efforts that easily spring to mind. **Matt Turner** did a good job behind the stumps as a part time glove man.

I would like to extend my personal thanks to:

- Captains Mitch Sykes and Tom Cooper for their time and effort during the season.
- **David Jebb** and **Jim Dixon** for their usual input on selection matters (also to Jebby who prepares the best strip in Sydney)
- Paul Serov who administers the clubs secretarial duties in a manner second to none.
- **Matt Garland** who in the depths on injury showed he is a true spirited clubman and volunteered as the team scorer.
- Chris Gowland, Mick O'Brien, and Big Hans Van Der Gugten who were only too happy to help in anyway possible scoring, playing canteen attendant, assisting with drinks breaks, marking the pitch during change of innings whatever, they were happy to help.
- Last but not least, **Oliver Higgins** who, if nothing else, provided us with a comical overview of Saturday night's proceedings.

In closing, I would like to say that I truly believe the club now has sufficient talent and depth to sustain ongoing good results in Poidevin-Gray for at least the next few seasons and beyond.

I know it sounds old and over used (like me), but that PG's flag is just around the corner – it has to be.

DARREN SUE MANAGER

MATCH SUMMARIES Poidevin-Gray Shield 2006/2007

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
PG1	Waitara Oval	*	Northern Districts			University of NSW		
	Result:	No R	tesult (0 points) - Washout					
PG2	Village Green	*	University of NSW	245	48.3	Sydney University	177	41.5
			Robson,Samuel D	79	(117)	Towers,Steven J	4/32	10
			Sykes,Mitchell C	50	(49)	Treuberg, Matthias	3/23	7
			Van Der Gugten, Timm	29	(29)	Gowland, Mitchell	2/28	4.5
			Bachmann,Hugh A	28	(25)			
	Result:	Won	on first innings + BP (7 points))				
PG3	Village Green	*	University of NSW	6/250	50	Penrith	5/251	48.1
			Gowland, Mitchell	100	(105)	Treuberg, Matthias	2/34	7
			Turner, Matthew	42	(57)	Tibbetts,Joel A	1/28	6
			Crichton,Samuel L	37	(62)	Crichton,Samuel L	1/59	10
			Tibbetts,Joel A	28	(44)			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
PG4	Raby 1	*	Campbelltown-Camden	9/259	50	University of NSW	143	36.2
			Gowland, Mitchell	4/44	10	Bachmann, Hugh A	47	(64)
			Treuberg, Matthias	2/30	8	Turner, Matthew	33	(72)
			Tibbetts,Joel A	2/44	8	Crichton,Samuel L	30	(39)
			Towers,Steven J	1/44	9			
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
PG5	Killara Oval	*	Gordon	9/259	50	University of NSW	177	47.1
			Tibbetts,Joel A	5/32	6	Crichton,Samuel L	35	(82)
			Crichton,Samuel L	1/43	10	Tibbetts,Joel A	27	(57)
						Turner, Matthew	24	(27)
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

PG6	Village Green	*	University of NSW	4/247	50	Manly Warringah	9/242	50
			Robson,Samuel D	70	(104)	Robson,Samuel D	3/42	10
			Groves,Peter R	62*	(48)	Sykes,Mitchell C	2/45	10
			Tibbetts,Joel A	44	(85)	Groves,Peter R	1/19	4
			Gowland,Mitchell	30	(42)			
	Result:	Wor	on first innings (6 points)					
PG7	Village Green	*	Fairfield-Liverpool			University of NSW		
	Result:	No I	Result (0 points) - Washout					

BATTING

Poidevin-Gray Shield 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 232

 Runs Scored For:
 1062

 Wickets Lost:
 40

 Average / Wicket:
 26.55

 Balls / Wicket:
 34.80

 Runs / Over:
 4.58

Highest Score For: 6/250 vs Penrith (PG3)

Lowest Score For: 143 vs Campbelltown-Camden (PG4)

Lowest Score 1 of.	1+3 VS	Campo	CIIIOW	ii-Cariic	ICII (1 O-1	•)										
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Groves,Peter R	3	3	2	62*	85	85.00	1	-	118.06	8	-	2		-	-	180
Robson,Samuel D	3	3	-	79	157	52.33	2	-	61.81	10	-	1		1	1	382
Crichton,Samuel L	3	3	-	37	102	34.00	-	-	55.74	8	3	1		-	-	162
Gowland, Mitchell	5	5	-	100	161	32.20	-	1	82.56	20	2	4		-	1	541
Turner, Matthew	5	5	-	42	114	22.80	-	-	64.41	10	2	2	2	-	1	224
Tibbetts,Joel A	5	5	-	44	114	22.80	-	-	50.44	7	2	-		-	-	414
Bachmann, Hugh A	4	4	-	47	86	21.50	-	-	81.90	7	2	1		-	1	126
Sykes,Mitchell C	5	5	1	50	78	19.50	1	-	85.71	9	2	4		2	-	258
Treuberg, Matthias	5	3	1	3	7	3.50	-	-	30.43	-	-	-		-	-	192
Towers,Steven J	5	4	1	4	7	2.33	-	-	46.67	-	-	-		-	-	197
Also Batted:																
Van Der Gugten, Timm	3	2	1	29	48	48.00	-	-	94.12	5	1	-		-	-	68
O'Brien, Christopher	4	2	-	6	9	4.50	-	-	100.00	-	-	4		-	-	109
Cooper,Tom L W	2	2	-	4	5	2.50	-	-	71.43	1	-	2		-	-	55
Crowl,Samuel J	3	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	10
Wakim,Benjamin	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	10
Extras					89											

[^] Poidevin-Gray Shield points do not contribute to overall Club Player of the Year Points.

BOWLING

Poidevin-Gray Shield 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 240

 Runs Scored Against:
 1188

 Wickets Taken:
 42

 Average / Wicket:
 28.29

 Balls / Wicket:
 34.29

 Runs / Over:
 4.95

 Highest Score Against:
 9/259

Highest Score Against: 9/259 vs Gordon (PG5)

Lowest Score Against: 177 vs Sydney University (PG2)

Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb	
Tibbetts,Joel A	26	-	9	136	5/32	15.11	5.23	17.33	1	-	-	
Gowland, Mitchell	24.5	-	6	111	4/44	18.50	4.47	25.33	-	3	-	
Treuberg, Matthias	39	1	7	177	3/23	25.29	4.54	35.71	-	15	1	

	ı										
Towers,Steven J	36	1	6	181	4/32	30.17	5.03	36.67	-	4	-
Robson,Samuel D	30	2	4	126	3/42	31.50	4.20	45.00	-	-	-
Sykes,Mitchell C	27	-	2	112	2/45	56.00	4.15	83.50	-	4	1
Also Bowled:											
Groves,Peter R	4	-	1	19	1/19	19.00	4.75	25.00	-	1	-
Crichton,Samuel L	23	2	2	136	1/43	68.00	5.91	80.00	-	13	9
Van Der Gugten, Timm	17.1	1	-	93	0/41	-	5.42	-	-	8	2
Crowl,Samuel J	7	-	-	40	0/16	-	5.71	-	-	1	-
O'Brien,Christopher	6	-	-	23	0/23	-	3.83	-	-	3	-
Extras				34							

PARTNERSHIPS
Poidevin-Gray Shield 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	PG3	Penrith	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	28	Turner, Matthew	42	51
2nd	PG6	Manly Warringah	1	Gowland, Mitchell	30	Robson,Samuel D	70	61
2nd	PG3	Penrith	1	Turner, Matthew	42	Gowland,Mitchell	100	50
3rd	PG6	Manly Warringah	1	Robson,Samuel D	70	Tibbetts,Joel A	44	59
4th	PG2	Sydney University	1	Sykes,Mitchell C	50	Robson,Samuel D	79	94
4th	PG6	Manly Warringah	1	Tibbetts,Joel A	44	Groves,Peter R	62*	74
5th	PG3	Penrith	1	Crichton,Samuel L	37	Gowland,Mitchell	100	73
6th	PG3	Penrith	1	Gowland, Mitchell	100	Van Der Gugten, Timm	19*	68
6th	PG2	Sydney University	1	Van Der Gugten, Timm	29	Bachmann,Hugh A	28	54
7th	PG5	Gordon	1	Crichton,Samuel L	35	Turner, Matthew	24	15
8th	PG2	Sydney University	1	O'Brien,Christopher	6	Turner, Matthew	5	11
9th	PG5	Gordon	1	Turner, Matthew	24	Groves,Peter R	23*	24
10th	PG5	Gordon	1	Treuberg, Matthias	2	Groves,Peter R	23*	11

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	5	-	102	20.40
2nd	5	-	170	34.00
3rd	5	-	112	22.40
4th	5	-	230	46.00
5th	5	1	188	47.00
6th	4	-	154	38.50
7th	4	1	28	9.33
8th	3	-	21	7.00
9th	3	-	36	12.00
10th	3	-	21	7.00

A.W. GREEN SHIELD REPORT

The club was very fortunate that **Warren Smith** stepped up to coach the AW Green Shield team for the 2006-2007 season with all players set to benefit from Wazza's vast experience and unique style. Even the selection of **Timm Van Der Gugten** for the NSW Under 17 side, which would see Timm available for only 2 of the Green Shield games, did not deter the team from believing they were to have a great season.

The campaign was expected to be a difficult one with UNSW playing Campbelltown-Camden on a very soft green pitch at Raby. The Ghosts had previously held a monopoly over the Green Shield trophy having been unbeaten in the competition for the last three years. Of course the hosts were keen to send us in and they had immediate success with the Bees losing a wicket without getting the score off the mark. Several batsmen dug in namely **Charlie Wakim(35)**, **Eriq Parsons(25no)**, **Jordan Nabarro(25)**, **Alec Kemmery(22)** and **Kieran Emery(21)** and we finished up at 9-165 off 56 overs. Wazza worked his magic with a lunch time gee up to see Campbelltown dimissed for 138 with **Eriq Parsons** taking 4-27 and **Tom Atallah**'s brilliance in the field snaring 3 catches and a run out. The phones ran hot during the lead up to the second game with everyone wanting to know how we had knocked the champions off their perch.

After the Christmas break the team traveled to Penrith for the second match which would be **Timm Van Der Gugten**'s last Green Shield match and he did not disappoint. Sent in once again we lost some early wickets without many runs. **Timm** batted bravely for his 87 but had little support and after 55 overs Uni were all out for 161. **Eriq Parsons**(1-15) and **George Harris**(2-16) got the defence off to a great start with early wickets to have Penrith 4-24 after 15 overs but some stubborn batting and a couple of missed chances saw the hosts pass our score 7 down. Whilst the boys missed some difficult catches, **Jordan Nabarro** caught 3 behind the stumps and **Murray Crowe** took a blinder at square leg.

Game 3 saw Uni at home at the Village Green for the first time. Once again we failed to get a good start and only **Jordan Nabarro**(40) got runs. All out for 120 in only 44 overs. Gordon had no trouble chasing this down only 2 wickets down.

A sunny day at Manly Oval greeted us in the field first at last. An early wicket and then some tight bowling meant Manly scored slowly and it looked like the chase would not be too big. **Charlie Wakim**(3-25) was the best of the bowlers but then a disastrous last 3 overs cost 45 runs which got the hosts to 7-242 off their 60 overs. Uni lost an early wicket but then a solid innings of 83 from **Charlie** kept Uni in the fight. **Angus Robson**(27) supported as well but then we fell away to be all out 196.

On the road again for game 5 at Rosedale against Fairfield, Angus won the toss and chose to bat. Our best 1st wicket stand of 35 due to **Alec Kemmery**(25) was followed by a few wickets to be 5-78 but then **Kieran Emery**(77) and **Mitchell Phelps**(47) put on 130 for the 6th wicket with both batsmen suffering from the heat. The tail didn't offer much but the score of 217 was an improvement on previous games. Fairfield batted patiently and only **Tom Atallah** (3-34) caused them much trouble as once again we were passed with only 7 wickets lost.

Game 6 was played at our other home ground at David Phillips North against Sydney University who were having their best season for many years with only 1 loss to date. Sent in on a good deck **Alec Kemmery**(88) and **Angus Robson**(45) followed by **Jordan Nabarro**(36) and **Tom Atallah**(38 no) got Uni to 250 at the cost of only 6 wickets. **Wazza** congratulated the boys on batting through the 60 overs which he said was essential if they were to win. Sydney Uni were in trouble from the start chasing this total and **Eriq Parsons**(3-31), **George Harris**(3-23) and **Adam Gulden**(2-20) saw them dismissed for an even 200 in the 57th over. Whilst UNSW had lost any hope of making the semis, the team showed what they could do if they put their minds to it.

The season finale for UNSW was at the Village Green against Northern Districts and unfortunately we failed to bat through the overs again being all out for 131 with **Nick Bannehr**(20) and **Tom Atallah**(36) providing some resistance. The total was not too difficult for NDs to pass with only the loss of 6 wickets with **Eriq Parsons** once again the pick of the bowlers with 2-31.

I know the team learnt much from **Wazza** and hopefully over the seasons to come they will apply what he has taught them and all the players are extremely grateful his advice and encouragement.

Thanks also to the parents who unselfishly took the players to games and training and prepared afternoon tea. Many dads also assisted with the task of scoring and their help is greatly appreciated.

A very promising start with the historic win over Campbelltown but then only one other win, however this is not a true reflection of the team's skills and abilities. UNSW had the toughest draw in the competition playing against 4 of the 6 semi finalists and actually beating the team that went on to win the trophy again. All Uni's opponents finished in the top half of the table so the players can be assured that their success is in their development as cricketers with tough games rather than having wins against weaker teams. Seven players from the team are eligible to play again in 2007-2008.

MICHAEL O'BRIEN MANAGER

MATCH SUMMARIES

Rd	Venue	LO	Inns of:	Score	Ov	Inns of:	Score	Ov
GS1	Raby 2	*	University of NSW	9/165	56	Campbelltown-Camden	138	47
			Wakim,Charlie	35	(54)	Parsons,Eriq	4/27	8
			Parsons,Eriq	25*	(58)	Harris,George	1/5	6
			Nabarro,Jordan	25	(76)	Emery,Keiran	1/16	6
			Kemmery,Alec	22	(20)	Atallah,Tom	3	Cts
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					
GS2	Cook Park	*	University of NSW	161	55.2	Penrith	7/162	55.3
			Van Der Gugten, Timm	87	(126)	Harris,George	2/16	6
			Emery,Keiran	17	(31)	Atallah,Tom	2/28	8
						Parsons,Eriq	1/15	9.3
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
GS3	Village Green	*	University of NSW	120	43.1	Gordon	2/121	34.1
			Nabarro,Jordan	40	(66)	Parsons,Eriq	1/14	6
			Phelps,Mitchell	21	(46)	Robson,Angus J	1/24	8
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
GS4	Manly Oval	*	Manly Warringah	7/242	60	University of NSW	196	57.4
			Wakim,Charlie	3/25	7	Wakim,Charlie	83	(109)
			Crowe, Murray	1/29	5	Robson,Angus J	27	(50)
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
GS5	Rosedale Oval	*	University of NSW	217	58.5	Fairfield-Lilverpool	7/218	57.2
			Emery,Keiran	77	(90)	Atallah,Tom	3/34	8.2
			Phelps,Mitchell	47	(100)	Parsons,Eriq	2/20	9
			Kemmery,Alec	25	(51)	Kemmery,Alec	2/36	10
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					
GS6	David Phillips	*	University of NSW	6/250	60	Sydney University	200	56.5
	North		Kemmery,Alec	88	(117)	Harris,George	3/23	10
			Robson,Angus J	45	(85)	Parsons,Eriq	3/31	9.5
			Atallah,Tom	38*	(31)	Gulden,Adam	2/20	5
			Nabarro, Jordan	36	(49)			
	Result:	Won	on first innings (6 points)					

GS7	Village Green	*	University of NSW	131	47.3	Northern Districts	6/132	38.5
			Atallah,Tom	36	(56)	Parsons,Eriq	2/31	8
			Bannehr,Nick	20	(83)	Crowe, Murray	1/9	4.5
						Olsson, Matthew	1/16	6
	Result:	Loss	on first innings (0 points)					

BATTING

A.W. Green Shield 2006/2007

 Overs Faced:
 378.3

 Runs Scored For:
 1240

 Wickets Lost:
 65

 Average / Wicket:
 19.08

 Balls / Wicket:
 34.94

 Runs / Over:
 3.28

Highest Score For: 6/250 vs Sydney University (GS6)

Lowest Score For: 120 vs Gordon (GS3)

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	St	RD	RI	Pts
Van Der Gugten, Timm	2	2	-	87	87	43.50	1	-	67.97	6	2	1		-	-	182
Emery,Keiran	6	6	-	77	148	24.67	1	-	64.91	14	1	-		-	-	213
Kemmery,Alec	7	7	-	88	172	24.57	1	-	67.98	19	-	1		1	-	297
Wakim,Charlie	5	5	-	83	122	24.40	1	-	67.03	14	-	1		-	-	262
Nabarro, Jordan	7	7	-	40	140	20.00	-	-	47.78	12	-	5		-	1	295
Atallah,Tom	7	7	1	38*	101	16.83	-	-	70.14	13	-	7 #		-	1	461
Phelps,Mitchell	5	5	-	47	83	16.60	-	-	43.46	4	-	2		-	-	133
Parsons,Eriq	7	7	3	25*	62	15.50	-	-	39.49	4	-	3		-	-	497
Robson,Angus J	7	7	-	45	98	14.00	-	-	47.12	8	-	1		-	-	198
Bannehr,Nick	7	7	-	20	81	11.57	-	-	19.71	4	-	2		-	1	151
Jourdain,Chris	4	4	1	15	28	9.33	-	-	60.87	1	1	-		-	-	28
Harris,George	6	4	2	11	12	6.00	-	-	54.55	-	-	2		-	-	217
Meagher,Jonathon	4	2	1	2	3	3.00	-	-	100.00	-	-	3		-	3	103
Crowe, Murray	5	2	-	3	3	1.50	-	-	30.00	-	-	1		1	-	123
Olsson,Matthew	1	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	25.00	-	-	-		-	-	21
Gulden,Adam	2	1	1	0*	0	-	-	-	-	-	-	1		-	-	70
McAnespie,Jack	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	10
E					100											

Extras 100 Difference -1

BOWLING

A.W. Green Shield 2006/2007

 Overs Bowled:
 349.4

 Runs Scored Against:
 1213

 Wickets Taken:
 49

 Average / Wicket:
 24.76

 Balls / Wicket:
 42.82

 Runs / Over:
 3.47

 Highest Score Against:
 7/242

Highest Score Against: 7/242 vs Manly Warringah (GS4)
Lowest Score Against: 138 vs Campbelltown-Camden (GS1)

Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Parsons,Eriq	61.2	14	14	192	4/27	13.71	3.13	26.43	-	2	-
Harris,George	45	10	6	129	3/23	21.50	2.87	46.00	-	-	6
Atallah,Tom	58.2	10	7	177	3/34	25.29	3.03	50.00	-	-	-

[#] New club record - most GS catches (non-WK)

[^] Green Shield points do not contribute to overall Club Player of the Year Points.

Crowe, Murray	27.5	1	3	118	1/9	39.33	4.24	56.00	_	1	
Crowe,Murray	21.3	1	3	116	1/9	39.33	4.24	36.00	-	1	-
Robson, Angus J	62	7	3	222	1/24	74.00	3.58	124.33	-	1	-
Also Bowled:											
Olsson,Matthew	6	-	1	16	1/16	16.00	2.67	37.00	-	1	-
Gulden,Adam	7	1	2	33	2/20	16.50	4.71	21.50	-	1	-
Wakim,Charlie	13	-	3	55	3/25	18.33	4.23	26.33	-	-	1
Kemmery, Alec	12	1	2	46	2/36	23.00	3.83	36.50	-	1	-
Van Der Gugten, Timm	21	3	2	53	1/24	26.50	2.52	66.00	-	1	5
Emery,Keiran	15	4	1	36	1/16	36.00	2.40	94.00	-	4	-
Phelps,Mitchell	19.1	1	-	83	0/4	-	4.33	-	-	-	1
McAnespie,Jack	2	-	-	17	0/17	-	8.50	-	-	-	-
Extras				36							

PARTNERSHIPS

A.W. Green Shield 2006/2007

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	In	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	GS5	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Bannehr,Nick	9	Kemmery,Alec	25	35
2nd	GS6	Sydney University	1	Kemmery, Alec	88	Robson,Angus J	45	116
2nd	GS4	Manly Warringah	1	Bannehr,Nick	14	Wakim,Charlie	83	76
2nd	GS1	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Bannehr,Nick	17	Wakim,Charlie	35	58
3rd	GS4	Manly Warringah	1	Wakim,Charlie	83	Robson,Angus J	27	38
4th	GS6	Sydney University	1	Emery,Keiran	10	Nabarro,Jordan	36	33
5th	GS2	Penrith	1	Emery,Keiran	17	Van Der Gugten, Timm	87	61
6th	GS5	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Emery,Keiran	77	Phelps,Mitchell	47	127
7th	GS1	Campbelltown-Camden	1	Nabarro,Jordan	25	Parsons,Eriq	25*	28
8th	GS7	Northern Districts	1	Atallah,Tom	36	Parsons,Eriq	18	56
9th	GS3	Gordon	1	Phelps,Mitchell	21	Parsons,Eriq	14	30
10th	GS4	Manly Warringah	1	Crowe,Murray	3	Parsons,Eriq	5*	8

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	7	-	105	15.00
2nd	7	-	263	37.57
3rd	7	-	142	20.29
4th	7	-	88	12.57
5th	7	-	157	22.43
6th	7	-	241	34.43
7th	7	1	55	9.17
8th	6	-	122	20.33
9th	6	-	57	9.50
10th	6	1	10	2.00

UNIVERSITIES WOMEN'S CRICKET CLUB

At the first glance the 2006/07 season, the third for UWCC was not as successful as we'd hoped with our premier sides, First and Second grade, putting in uncharacteristic performances. It is fair to say that more was expected of both sides as there is a great deal of talent and experience in both sides. However this would be unfair to the club as both teams have had difficult periods throughout the season and as a whole we have achieved a great deal this season.

Now to our successes! On the field we had our first team make the finals. Third grade stormed into the finals on the back of some strong team based performances. I want to highlight how impressive this achievement is. It took 18 months for Third grade to win its first game - not until after Christmas of their second season. From this point onwards they have not looked back and made the semi finals this year. Further they have succeeded with a small core of players, with 4 different captains over the past 3 seasons and varied line ups through-out this season. This is testament to their positive, never give up attitude and commitment to playing cricket. Congratulations to the all the third grade players on this wonderful achievement. Third grade are on a roll now and it's unlikely that they will be the easy beats of the competition for quite some time.

Off the field we had a bumper year financially and will have a carry forward of approx \$10,000. This allowed us to heavily subsidised our presentation night for the players and places the club in a very secure financial position for future seasons which, amongst other things, will hopefully aid in attracting a non-playing coach.

UWCC also ran two very successful development projects, one aimed at our long term survival and the other with an immediate focus. We ran the Twilight 12's competition for a second year and this year we varied the format and the length of the competition hoping to attract more players. In an effort to improve this competition we also applied for a Cricket Australian grant through our men's club, UNSWCC, and won \$5,000. This money was used to improve the running of the competition by developing a purpose built web-site, a logo and equipment. In our second year we registered 42 players, approximately ten more players than in our first season. The Twilight 12's continues to provide UWCC with the opportunity to introduce the game of cricket to females that may not have considered the longer form of the game. In addition, three Twilight 12's players have joined the club to play grade cricket with us. I would like to thank Emma Vickers who ran this season's competition for her hard work and devotion to ensuring a fantastic competition.

We also moved to invest in our long term future by becoming a CricHit Center for 8 – 15 year girls. As many as 8 girls attended these Cricket NSW sponsored sessions in November 06 to partake in a 5 week program were they learnt the basic skills of cricket. This is a long term development for our club and if continued UWCC may be in a position to field a Brewer shield side in 4-6 years.

I'd like to congratulation all the UWCC award winners and make particular mention of Emma Vickers who was awarded the Anne Mitchell Shield Club person of the Year. Emma has been recognized for her unconditional willingness to assist the Club both on and off the field.

To this season's committee, captains and vice captains I thank you for the time and commitment you've given to run the club this year. Your roles in this club are vital to our successes and I am grateful that none of you are afraid of hard work!! I would also like to acknowledge the support of UNSW Cricket Club, UNSW Sports Association and Sydney University Sport for their continued support of our Club.

Finally, the direction of this club is in each and every player's hands, a uni club unlike other clubs does not have the luxury of sitting back and leaving the running of the club to parents and former players. I have played and been involved administratively with university sport for 12 years and I can

confidently say that the secrets to a successful uni club regardless of the sport is that the players must get involved, they must take an active interest in the running and success of their club and above all they must work hard and together for common goals.

LENA CARUSO
PRESIDENT – UWCC

UWCC AWARD WINNERS SEASON 2006/2007

The Ann Mitchell Perpetual Shield for Club Person of the Year - Emma Vickers

Player of the Year - Rebekah Earnshaw

Batter of the Year - Alex Blackwell

Bowler of the Year - Sarah Brennan

Fielder of the Year - Rebecca Lewis

Most Valuable Player

1st Grade - Kate Blackwell 2nd Grade - Gemma Connolly 3rd Grade - Tiffany Blandford Twenty20 - Sara Hungerford

Most Improved Player

1st Grade - Lizzie Farrell 2nd Grade - Clare Burgess 3rd Grade - Elaina Rogers

Batting Aggregate

1st Grade - Lisa Sthalekar 2nd Grade - Felicity Goodwin 3rd Grade - Tiffany Blandford Twenty20 - Sara Hungerford

Batting Average

1st Grade - Alex Blackwell 2nd Grade - Deborah Knapp 3rd Grade - Rebekah Earnshaw Twenty20 - Sara Hungerford

Bowling Aggregate

1st Grade - Kate Blackwell & Sarah Brennan 2nd Grade - Gemma Connolly 3rd Grade - Tiffany Blandford & Rebekah Earnshaw Twenty20 - Lizzie Farrell

Bowling Average

1st Grade - Kate Blackwell 2nd Grade - Gemma Connolly 3rd Grade - Rebekah Earnshaw Twenty20 - Lizzie Farrell

Most Fielding Dismissals

1st Grade - Lisa Sthalekar 2nd Grade - Rebecca Lewis 3rd Grade - Sandra Telford Twenty20 - Katie Austin

COMBINED CLUB STATISTICS 2006/2007

BATTING

Combined Club Statistics 2006/2007 (All Grades & Competitions - Grade, LO, Metro. Cup, PG & GS)

 Overs Faced:
 6408

 Runs Scored For:
 23337

 Wickets Lost:
 962

 Average / Wicket:
 24.26

 Balls / Wicket:
 39.97

 Runs / Over:
 3.64

Highest Score For: 5/418 - 4th Grade vs Mosman (Rd5)
Lowest Score For: 53 - 1st Grade vs Hawkesbury (Rd9)

Lowest Score For:	53 - 1st	Grade	vs H	awkesb	ury (Rd	9)											
Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4 s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Cooper,Tom L W	20	22	3	149*	770	40.53	5	2	65.87	94	5	8			-	2	1054
Creed, Murray W	19	21	1	83	763	38.15	8	-	50.70	82	3	5			-	-	1146
Robson,Angus J	22	23	-	162	705	30.65	2	2	55.08	71	-	8			-	-	1282
Tibbetts,Joel A	19	21	1	105*	690	34.50	3	1	43.42	82	4	1			-	1	901
Christian,Daniel T	18	19	1	89	643	35.72	6	-	65.88	64	12	9			1	1	1716
Gowland,Mitchell	21	23	-	100	564	24.52	3	1	69.37	75	3	19			-	1	1174
Richardson, Timothy S	15	17	-	164	553	32.53	2	1	63.20	73	2	6			-	1	903
Turner, Matthew	20	20	2	79	542	30.11	3	-	57.42	64	3	2	12	3	1	3	873
Robson,Samuel D	21	17	3	102	511	36.50	3	1	55.79	50	-	5			1	2	733
Groves,Peter R	18	21	3	84*	496	27.56	5	-	64.17	67	7	4			-	1	811
Crichton,Samuel L	16	17	1	79*	491	30.69	4	-	65.91	53	11	5			-	1	809
Higgins,Oliver W	14	15	2	96	486	37.38	3	-	49.04	57	2	7			-	-	786
Bowcock,Daniel S	15	17	1	77	454	28.38	3	-	69.63	65	2	15			-	-	949
Bachmann, Hugh A	18	18	2	151*	454	28.38	1	1	72.99	50	8	5			-	3	653
Jeffrey,Andrew D	19	22	2	67	427	21.35	2	-	55.53	51	2	12			-	-	640
Robson,James G	11	10	4	165*	426	71.00	3	1	76.48	50	3	3			-	2	1366
Nabarro, Jordan	17	19	2	95	403	23.71	1	-	52.89	37	_	1	12	2	-	1	538
Jones, Andrew C	14	16	1	64	363	24.20	3	-	44.16	38	_	3			-	-	513
Day,James R F	19	19	3	133	360	22.50	-	1	63.60	28	5	9			1	1	1476
Roche,Jordan M	7	10	-	82	348	34.80	4	-	84.47	50	3	4	1		-	1	588
Emery,Keiran	17	16	1	77	347	23.13	1	-	67.12	39	3	7			1	-	624
Towers,Steven J	20	17	3	101	345	24.64	2	1	75.66	47	3	6			1	1	1248
Wijeratne,Gihan N	15	18	1	49*	344	20.24	-	-	45.26	40	_	4			-	-	509
Carson,David J	17	18	2	157*	340	21.25	-	1	59.86	42	3	4			2	1	637
Dixon,James S	14	15	-	64	323	21.53	2	-	70.99	44	2	3			-	-	683
Carson,Peter W	15	15	1	65	313	22.36	1	-	59.85	44	5	9			-	2	663
Elliott,Timothy J	15	16	-	65	309	19.31	1	-	46.33	45	-	2			-	-	474
Bhandari,Danny	12	15	2	86*	307	23.62	2	-	55.32	39	-	6			1	1	1027
Sykes,Mitchell C	17	18	3	100	305	20.33	1	1	56.17	37	2	7			3	-	721
Sanders, Matthew R	14	14	4	48*	296	29.60	-	-	78.72	34	4	-	15	4	-	5	801
Lang, Timothy E	16	16	4	50	284	23.67	1	-	68.77	24	6	4			-	1	1447
Weerakkody,Nivan	11	12	2	47	277	27.70	-	-	52.76	29	-	3			1	-	607
O'Connor,Mitchell W	13	14	-	58	276	19.71	2	-	61.88	32	4	2	2	1	-	2	506
McKay,Stuart W	15	17	-	95	267	15.71	1	-	48.19	30	-	2			-	-	452
Van Der Gugten, Timm	13	15	5	87	254	25.40	1	-	55.10	21	4	1			-	-	393
Morris, Christopher J	13	16	2	69	250	17.86	1	-	39.75	26	-	5	2	1	-	1	475
Walker, George W	11	11	1	86	243	24.30	1	-	39.97	29	-	2			1	-	703
O'Brien, Christopher	18	17	2	71	242	16.13	1	-	84.03	29	5	12			-	3	903
Mag,Michael	14	13	3	56	241	24.10	1	-	73.93	37	-	12			-	2	1366
Hayward,Matthew W	10	10	2	93	240	30.00	1	-	59.26	32	-	1			-	-	720

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Elliott,Michael R	12	14	1	58	240	18.46	1	-	53.22	37	1	4			-	1	415
Treuberg, Matthias	16	16	3	60	235	18.08	1	-	55.04	27	1	-			-	1	443
Nikolovski,Richard	15	13	5	110	220	27.50	-	1	50.93	27	-	-	36	6	-	2	1660
Kemmery,Alec	8	8	-	88	203	25.38	1	-	64.04	20	-	1			1	-	41
Owers,Matthew S	12	13	2	96*	202	18.36	1	-	68.01	26	1	3			-	-	452
Tan,Jonathan J H	11	13	3	88*	197	19.70	1	-	55.81	21	-	3			1	2	482
Afzal,Faisal	11	12	1	59	190	17.27	1	-	73.36	27	1	6			1	-	435
Jauregui, Victor	13	13	2	55	182	16.55	1	-	25.85	14	-	2	13		-	1	647
Dooley,Robert A	12	10	6	63	180	45.00	2	-	50.00	16	-	1			-	-	500
Mark,Julian C	10	12	-	52	178	14.83	1	-	45.41	14	-	3			-	1	578
Pereira,Gavin J	7	8	-	72	167	20.88	1	-	80.29	26	1	3			-	-	407
Dennis,Gregory M	3	3	2	82*	166	166.00	2	-	57.04	20	2	-			-	-	246
Atallah,Tom	8	8	1	43	144	20.57	-	-	75.79	15	-	7			-	1	43
Rea,Michael P	13	14	3	34*	131	11.91	-	-	51.57	12	-	7			-	-	641
Wakim,Charlie	6	6	-	83	123	20.50	1	-	65.08	14	-	1			-	-	1
Fleming, Tallaesen	11	13	-	56	123	9.46	1	-	51.90	13	1	4			-	-	293
Zehner,Eric J W	15	13	4	36	119	13.22	-	-	-	14	2	6			-	1	819
Maguire,Peter H	11.5	11	7	33*	118	29.50	-	-	66.67	18	-	7			-	1	1108
Coomber, Richard	6	5	-	42	106	21.20	-	-	61.63	17	1	-	5	1	-	4	286
Smith,Graeme P	7	5	2	66	103	34.33	1	-	117.05	17	2	2			-	2	699
Das,Kushal	9	10	-	32	98	9.80	-	-	41.35	6	-	2			1	-	178
Culhane, Daniel J	7	7	-	27	93	13.29	-	-	56.36	12	1	4			-	-	793
Jourdain, Chris	7	7	1	30	88	14.67	-	-	36.21	5	1	-			-	-	70
Wakim,Benjamin	4	5	-	50	87	17.40	1	-	52.41	15	-	-	3	1	-	-	177
McDonald, Gavin S	3	3	-	30	86	28.67	-	-	59.72	12	-	-			-	-	86
Williams,Luke	14	9	4	53*	84	16.80	1	-	44.68	8	-	8			-	-	529
Johnson,Brendan	5	6	-	35	84	14.00	-	-	73.68	9	-	-			-	-	94
Neilan, Andrew M	16	14	2	20	84	7.00	-	-	69.42	10	-	-	32		-	4	869
Phelps,Mitchell	5	5	-	47	83	16.60	-	-	43.46	4	-	2			-	-	-
Bannehr,Nick	7	7	-	20	81	11.57	-	-	19.71	4	-	2			-	1	-
Parsons,Eriq	9	9	4	25*	80	16.00	-	-	40.40	4	-	3			-	-	88
Kalagara,Suresh K	7	6	-	49	76	12.67	-	-	93.83	8	-	1			-	-	276
Mitchell,Peter B	3	4	1	24	73	24.33	-	-	41.01	6	1	2			-	-	123
Cheung, Jason	8	7	2	29	71	14.20	-	-	40.80	5	-	1			-	-	181
Grzadka,Paul	4	5	1	35	67	16.75	-	-	29.52	2	-	2			-	-	117
Crowl,Samuel J	17	11	4	28	59	8.43	-	-	26.70	3	-	6			-	2	514
Appleton,Mark S	13	10	6	26*	58	14.50	-	-	43.61	6	-	3			-	-	478
Leishman,Richard A	7	6	2	22	57	14.25	-	-	65.52	8	-	1			-	-	277
Brownlee, Joel	1	1	-	48	48	48.00	-	-	58.54	4	-	-			-	-	58
Panda,Koush	3	4	1	19	48	16.00	-	-	45.28	6	-	1			-	-	98
Halikas,Steven	12	9	5	15*	45	11.25	-	-	30.20	5	-	1			-	1	385
Swanwick,Paul R	10	6	-	16	39	6.50	-	-	33.91	4	1	-			-	1	319
Lane,Stephen	8	5	-	26	37	7.40	-	-	29.37	6	-	2			-	-	522
Cox, Timothy D	6	4	2	20*	36	18.00	-	-	70.59	4	-	1			-	1	241
Mann,David L	8	7	2	11	33	6.60	-	-	27.05	1	-	4			-	-	243
Gregg,Michael	7	5	1	11	29	7.25	-	-	44.62	-	-	3			-	-	274
Ward, Christopher	12	10	5	8	29	5.80	-	-	14.22	1	-	1			-	-	629
Mauric, Vince	3	3	-	14	28	9.33	-	-	50.00	2	1	1			-	-	468
McDowall,Lachlan	3	4	1	13	24	8.00	-	-	30.77	1	-	-	1	1	-	-	74
Panditaratne,Hashan	1	1	-	20	20	20.00	-	-	57.14	3	-	-			-	-	150
Charlwood, Alexander G	13	10	2	12	20	2.50	-	-	22.73	3	-	2			1	1	515
Thomas, Christopher M	7	3	2	9	19	19.00	-	-	36.54	2	1	2			-	1	574
Heysen,David C H	4	3	-	14	19	6.33	-	-	55.88	4	-	-			-	-	234
Gulden,Adam	4	4	1	9	18	6.00	-	-	19.57	1	-	1			-	-	18
Gulden,Adam	4	4	1	9	18	6.00	-	-	19.57	1	-	1			-	-	18

Name	Mts	Inn	No	HS	Runs	Avg	50	100	S/R	4 s	6s	Ct	Wk	St	RD	RI	Pts
Jebb,David C	4	3	-	17	17	5.67	-	-	50.00	2	-	2			-	-	67
Stuart, Alexander I	1	1	-	12	12	12.00	-	-	38.71	1	-	-			-	-	12
Harris,George	6	4	2	11	12	6.00	-	-	54.55	-	-	2			-	-	-
Crowe, Murray	7	5	-	5	11	2.20	-	-	22.00	-	-	1			1	-	258
Lockett,Benjamin M	3	2	-	6	10	5.00	-	-	45.45	2	-	1			-	-	120
Walters, Michael B	6	5	-	4	8	1.60	-	-	33.33	1	-	-			1	-	228
Merlin,Sam	1	2	1	4	7	7.00	-	-	43.75	1	-	-			-	-	7
Vonwiller, Christoph C	1	1	-	4	4	4.00	-	-	36.36	1	-	-			-	-	4
Garnon, Tyler K	2	1	1	4*	4	-	-	-	133.33	-	-	-			-	-	54
Meagher, Jonathon	4	2	1	2	3	3.00	-	-	100.00	-	-	-	3		-	3	-
Stark,Robert W	4	3	1	3*	3	1.50	-	-	8.11	-	-	1			-	-	483
Olsson,Matthew	1	1	-	1	1	1.00	-	-	25.00	-	-	-			-	-	-
Maddock,Clint	3	2	-	1	1	0.50	-	-	14.29	-	-	-			-	-	11
Serov,Paul	2	2	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	80
Garland, Matthew	2	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	-	-	-	2			-	-	70
Absent	_	3	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	_	-	-	-			-	-	30
De Silva,Chaanuk A	3	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	_	-	-	3			-	-	110
Gerber,Simon B H	1	1	-	0	0	0.00	-	-	_	-	-	1			-	-	20
McAnespie,Jack	2	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	-
Campbell,Richard	1	-	-	-	_	_	-	-	-	-	-	-			-	-	20
Absent	I	3															
Extras					1760												

Extras 1760 Difference 4

BOWLING

Combined Club Statistics 2006/2007	(All Grades & Competitions	- Crade I O Metro Cun PC & CS)
Combined Club Staustics 2000/2007	(All Grades & Compendons	- Grade.LO.Meno.Cub.rG & GS/

 Overs Bowled:
 6412.3

 Runs Scored Against:
 23606

 Wickets Taken:
 877

 Average / Wicket:
 26.92

 Balls / Wicket:
 43.87

 Runs / Over:
 3.68

Highest Score Against: 8/366 - 1st Grade vs Fairfield-Lilverpool (Rd4)
Lowest Score Against: 30 - 6th Grade vs Sydney University (Rd12)

Lowest Score Against:	30 - 6th Grade vs Sydney University (Rd12)										
Name	O	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Lang, Timothy E	286	61	42	821	5/30	19.55	2.87	41.45	1	12	13
Christian, Daniel T	255.4	40	39	980	5/32	25.13	3.83	41.46	1	22	61
Day,James R F	245.1	36	35	1006	5/35	28.74	4.10	43.54	1	7	46
Mag,Michael	169.3	46	27	485	5/64	17.96	2.86	37.67	1	-	-
Maguire,Peter H	135	37	25	389	6/34	15.56	2.88	32.92	1	12	1
Robson,James G	150.3	48	23	307	4/23	13.35	2.04	39.26	-	-	-
Zehner,Eric J W	142.5	25	23	524	5/42	22.78	3.67	39.00	1	26	14
Towers,Steven J	194.2	27	23	756	5/39	32.87	3.89	52.35	1	14	24
Ward, Christopher	160.2	27	22	539	4/69	24.50	3.36	43.82	-	2	-
Bhandari, Danny	138	24	19	445	3/20	23.42	3.22	44.79	-	23	-
O'Brien,Christopher	118.5	32	18	394	3/47	21.89	3.32	40.72	-	17	3
Culhane,Daniel J	42.2	12	17	84	8/14	4.94	1.98	15.18	1	4	-
Parsons,Eriq	85.2	18	17	262	4/27	15.41	3.07	30.41	-	3	2
Smith,Graeme P	89.5	20	17	275	6/20	16.18	3.06	31.88	1	1	2
Hayward, Matthew W	146.5	31	16	432	4/66	27.00	2.94	56.00	-	6	9
Charlwood, Alexander G	141.2	19	16	482	3/30	30.12	3.41	54.44	-	16	7
Gowland,Mitchell	71.5	2	15	320	5/50	21.33	4.45	29.47	1	4	7
Treuberg, Matthias	150	24	15	545	3/23	36.33	3.63	61.47	-	21	1
Robson,Samuel D	170.3	18	15	751	3/42	50.07	4.40	68.87	-	3	7
Thomas, Christopher M	94.2	16	14	324	5/64	23.14	3.43	41.36	1	5	8
Van Der Gugten, Timm	99.5	9	14	451	4/59	32.21	4.52	45.71	-	22	19
Mauric,Vince	48.4	6	13	138	5/26	10.62	2.84	23.23	1	7	3
Stark,Robert W	79	21	13	213	6/83	16.38	2.70	37.54	1	14	-
Lane,Stephen	84.5	13	13	261	5/41	20.08	3.08	39.31	1	2	-
Walker,George W	79	12	13	319	4/29	24.54	4.04	36.54	-	1	-
Sykes,Mitchell C	135	21	13	453	4/57	34.85	3.36	62.92	-	6	2
Robson,Angus J	134.2	17	13	478	3/60	36.77	3.56	62.23	-	3	-
Mark,Julian C	49.3	3	12	194	3/12	16.17	3.92	25.58	-	5	5
Rea,Michael P	57.3	8	12	204	4/29	17.00	3.55	29.83	-	9	4
Tibbetts,Joel A	94	15	12	322	5/32	26.83	3.43	47.33	1	2	2
Appleton,Mark S	137.3	33	12	441	5/45	36.75	3.21	71.50	1	32	1
Emery,Keiran	91	21	11	265	3/12	24.09	2.91	51.27	-	16	2
Halikas,Steven	98	17	11	347	4/61	31.55	3.54	56.55	-	16	18
Crichton,Samuel L	162	17	11	757	2/47	68.82	4.67	95.36	-	35	42
Cox, Timothy D	73	17	10	211	4/19	21.10	2.89	44.10	-	3	-
Crowe, Murray	53.3	3	10	219	5/56	21.90	4.09	32.20	1	1	-
Williams,Luke	134.1	35	10	368	2/15	36.80	2.74	82.50	-	17	3
Crowl,Samuel J	109	15	10	494	4/50	49.40	4.53	65.90	-	3	2
Heysen,David C H	60	11	9	245	3/49	27.22	4.08	41.44	-	10	3
Swanwick,Paul R	102.2	19	9	325	4/33	36.11	3.18	70.56	-	21	-
Groves,Peter R	105	15	9	399	4/35	44.33	3.80	73.22	-	8	21

Name	0	M	W	R	Best	Avg	Econ	S/R	5wi	Wd	Nb
Weerakkody, Nivan	52	11	8	166	4/34	20.75	3.19	39.38	-	3	-
Dixon,James S	83	23	8	292	4/59	36.50	3.52	63.00	_	1	5
Leishman,Richard A	82.2	13	8	322	2/36	40.25	3.91	62.50	_	3	3
Kalagara,Suresh K	70.2	9	8	338	2/33	42.25	4.81	54.38	_	9	4
Dooley,Robert A	100.3	15	8	428	3/30	53.50	4.26	77.00	_	8	5
Walters, Michael B	61	11	7	167	4/60	23.86	2.74	54.86	_	16	2
Atallah,Tom	66.2	10	7	208	3/34	29.71	3.14	56.86	_	_	_
Gregg,Michael	68	11	7	248	3/29	35.43	3.65	58.57	_	2	_
Pereira,Gavin J	34	7	6	123	3/25	20.50	3.62	34.67	_	2	2
Harris, George	45	10	6	129	3/23	21.50	2.87	46.00	_	-	6
Tan,Jonathan J H	49	8	6	175	2/13	29.17	3.57	50.00	_	4	2
Creed,Murray W	20	2	5	106	2/21	21.20	5.30	26.60	_	2	11
Mann,David L	63	1	5	349	2/47	69.80	5.54	76.00	_	2	_
Owers, Matthew S	80	8	5	365	3/38	73.00	4.56	98.40	_	9	3
Panditaratne, Hashan	24	4	4	80	4/80	20.00	3.33	39.00	_	7	5
Serov,Paul	36	11	4	109	2/57	27.25	3.03	54.00	_	_	_
Lockett,Benjamin M	34	5	4	161	2/54	40.25	4.74	52.25	_	5	_
Cheung, Jason	52	6	4	188	2/16	47.00	3.62	84.00	_	15	9
Wakim,Charlie	14	_	3	58	3/25	19.33	4.14	28.33	_	-	1
Carson,David J	44.1	8	3	141	3/50	47.00	3.19	89.67	_	1	3
McKay,Stuart W	47	8	3	171	1/13	57.00	3.64	97.67	_	3	8
Garnon, Tyler K	5.3	_	2	30	2/19	15.00	5.45	22.50	_	8	4
Carson,Peter W	18	3	2	56	2/40	28.00	3.11	54.00	_	-	_
Afzal,Faisal	13.4	3	2	63	1/16	31.50	4.61	42.00	_	1	1
Kemmery, Alec	20	4	2	73	2/36	36.50	3.65	60.50	_	1	-
Gulden,Adam	22	2	2	74	2/20	37.00	3.36	67.50	_	3	-
De Silva,Chaanuk A	18	1	2	87	2/39	43.50	4.83	60.00	-	11	1
Olsson,Matthew	6	-	1	16	1/16	16.00	2.67	37.00	-	1	_
Elliott,Michael R	11	2	1	27	1/26	27.00	2.45	67.00	-	1	-
Panda,Koush	9	2	1	29	1/18	29.00	3.22	55.00	-	1	_
Campbell,Richard	9	3	1	30	1/30	30.00	3.33	57.00	-	3	-
Roche,Jordan M	6	-	1	36	1/36	36.00	6.00	36.00	-	-	-
Garland, Matthew	22	6	1	60	1/24	60.00	2.73	132.00	-	-	-
Elliott,Timothy J	14.5	-	1	67	1/24	67.00	4.52	92.00	-	3	-
O'Connor,Mitchell W	15	2	1	71	1/22	71.00	4.73	90.00	-	-	-
Dennis,Gregory M	18	3	1	71	1/21	71.00	3.94	108.00	-	-	-
Cooper,Tom L W	21	1	1	103	1/43	103.00	4.90	126.00	-	-	-
Maddock,Clint	21	1	-	112	0/24	-	5.33	-	-	3	-
McAnespie,Jack	2	-	-	17	0/17	-	8.50	-	-	-	-
Merlin,Sam	4	-	-	23	0/23	-	5.75	-	-	-	-
Bachmann, Hugh A	1	-	-	8	0/8	-	8.00	-	-	4	1
Das,Kushal	9	-	-	40	0/10	-	4.44	-	-	1	4
Grzadka,Paul	16	1	-	53	0/4	-	3.31	-	-	2	2
Jourdain,Chris	1	-	-	9	0/9	-	9.00	-	-	-	-
Vonwiller, Christoph C	9	3	-	27	0/27	-	3.00	-	-	1	-
Phelps,Mitchell	19.1	1	-	83	0/4	-	4.33	-	-	-	1
Extras				793							
Difference				-1							

New club record - best bowling average

PARTNERSHIPS

Combined Club Statistics 2006/2007 (All Grades & Competitions - Grade, LO, Metro. Cup, PG & GS)

Wkt	Rd	Opponent	Gr	Bat 1	Sc	Bat 2	Sc	P/S
1st	13	North Sydney	3	Tibbetts,Joel A	47	Higgins,Oliver W	84	123
1st	2	Bankstown	4	Elliott,Timothy J	65	Tibbetts,Joel A	70	119
1st	2	Bankstown	5	Wakim,Benjamin	50	Robson,Angus J	162	113
1st	10	Eastern Suburbs	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	39	Creed, Murray W	71	112
1st	5	Hawkesbury	6	Jones, Andrew C	59	Jauregui, Victor	55	110
2nd	9	Hawkesbury	2	McKay,Stuart W	95	Sykes,Mitchell C	100	178
2nd	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	2	Gowland,Mitchell	66	Richardson, Timothy S	164	174
2nd	11	UTS-Balmain	1	Creed,Murray W	43	Robson,Samuel D	102	116
2nd	GS6	Sydney University	GS	Kemmery, Alec	88	Robson,Angus J	45	116
2nd	8	Blacktown	1	Jeffrey,Andrew D	67	Creed, Murray W	61*	115
2nd	14	Parramatta	1	Robson,Samuel D	54	Creed, Murray W	45	103
3rd	LO5	St.George	1LO	Creed,Murray W	62	Cooper,Tom L W	149*	138
3rd	2	Bankstown	5	Robson,Angus J	162	Turner, Matthew	66	104
4th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	1	Cooper,Tom L W	109	Day,James R F	133	215
4th	13	North Sydney	4	Robson,Angus J	108	Morris, Christopher J	69	128
4th	13	Randwick-Petersham	6	Dooley,Robert A	53	Jones, Andrew C	64	119
4th	14	Parramatta	1	Christian, Daniel T	50	Cooper,Tom L W	51	107
4th	LO5	St.George	1LO	Lang, Timothy E	50	Cooper,Tom L W	149*	100
5th	5	Mosman	4	Towers,Steven J	101	Bachmann, Hugh A	151*	195
5th	8	Blacktown	5	Robson,James G	60*	Tan,Jonathan J H	88*	122*
5th	10	Eastern Suburbs	4	Morris, Christopher J	20*	Groves,Peter R	84*	105*
5th	2	Bankstown	1	Christian, Daniel T	54	O'Connor,Mitchell W	58	104
6th	GS5	Fairfield-Lilverpool	GS	Emery,Keiran	77	Phelps,Mitchell	47	127
6th	4	Fairfield-Lilverpool	5	Nabarro,Jordan	44	Robson,Angus J	83	103
7th	14	Parramatta	2	Carson,Peter W	65	Higgins,Oliver W	46*	90
8th	7	Sutherland	2	Hayward, Matthew W	93	Walker,George W	86	158
8th	7	Sutherland	5	Emery,Keiran	40	Robson,James G	165*	107
9th	13	North Sydney	2	Treuberg,Matthias	60	Nikolovski,Richard	110	164
10th	7	Sutherland	1	Lane,Stephen	5	Carson,David J	157*	79

[#] New club record.

Partnership Averages

Wkt	Inns	NO	Runs	Avg
1st	119	2	2824	24.14
2nd	117	-	3855	32.95
3rd	116	2	2452	21.51
4th	114	3	3431	30.91
5th	111	7	3042	29.25
6th	104	6	2331	23.79
7th	96	9	1693	19.46
8th	85	6	1600	20.25
9th	79	6	1270	17.40
10th	73	8	936	14.40

<u>PARTNERSHIPS - MOST PROLIFIC PARTNERS</u> Combined Club Statistics 2006/2007(All Grades & Competitions)

Bat 1	Bat 2	Inn	NO	Highest P/S	Total Runs	Avg
Creed,Murray W	Christian,Daniel T	15	-	98	483	32.20
Cooper,Tom L W	Creed, Murray W	13	1	138*	430	35.83
Robson,Angus J	Wijeratne, Gihan N	13	-	75	390	30.00
Richardson, Timothy S	Gowland, Mitchell	5	-	174	366	73.20
Jeffrey,Andrew D	Creed, Murray W	10	-	115	338	33.80
Cooper,Tom L W	Christian, Daniel T	9	-	107	323	35.89
Creed,Murray W	Robson,Samuel D	5	-	116	320	64.00
Tibbetts, Joel A	Elliott, Timothy J	9	_	119	317	35.22
Cooper, Tom L W	Day,James R F	7	1	215*	305	50.83
Tibbetts, Joel A	Turner, Matthew	6	_	78	300	50.00
Jones, Andrew C	Jauregui, Victor	6	1	110*	273	54.60
Tibbetts,Joel A	Bowcock, Daniel S	7	_	96	268	38.29
Bachmann,Hugh A	Towers,Steven J	3	_	195	214	71.33
Nabarro,Jordan	Emery,Keiran	6	_	83	213	35.50
Richardson, Timothy S	McKay,Stuart W	10	_	62	211	21.10
Nikolovski,Richard	Treuberg,Matthias	4	_	164	210	52.50
Sykes,Mitchell C	McKay,Stuart W	3	_	178	205	68.33
Morris,Christopher J	Robson, Angus J	2	-	128	184	92.00
•	-			97		
Mark,Julian C	Roche, Jordan M	2	-		182	91.00
Cooper,Tom L W	Lang, Timothy E	4	-	100	178	44.50
Groves,Peter R	Morris, Christopher J	4	1	105*	176	58.67
Christian, Daniel T	Lang, Timothy E	4	1	81*	170	56.67
Higgins,Oliver W	Carson,Peter W	4	-	90	170	42.50
Crichton,Samuel L	Carson,Peter W	5	-	67	167	33.40
Hayward,Matthew W	Walker,George W	1	-	158	158	158.00
Wakim,Benjamin	Robson,Angus J	3	-	113	157	52.33
Bhandari,Danny	Carson,Peter W	3	-	84	151	50.33
Robson,James G	Tan,Jonathan J H	2	1	122*	148	148.00
Jeffrey,Andrew D	Carson,David J	7	1	51*	146	24.33
Christian, Daniel T	O'Connor,Mitchell W	2	-	104	146	73.00
Robson,Angus J	Nabarro, Jordan	3	-	103	145	48.33
Richardson, Timothy S	Elliott,Michael R	5	-	58	144	28.80
Robson, Angus J	Kemmery, Alec	2	-	116	142	71.00
Higgins,Oliver W	Tibbetts,Joel A	2	-	123	139	69.50
Wakim,Charlie	Bannehr, Nick	4	-	76	138	34.50
Higgins,Oliver W	McDonald, Gavin S	3	-	67	137	45.67
Bhandari, Danny	Walker, George W	3	_	63	130	43.33
Emery, Keiran	Phelps, Mitchell	1	_	127	127	127.00
Jeffrey,Andrew D	Robson,Samuel D	4	_	63	125	31.25
Groves, Peter R	Turner, Matthew	3	_	99	124	41.33
Dixon,James S	Towers,Steven J	3	_	78	122	40.67
Sanders, Matthew R	Mag,Michael	4	_	81	121	30.25
Turner, Matthew	O'Brien,Christopher	3	_	66	120	40.00
Dooley,Robert A	Jones, Andrew C	1	_	119	119	119.00
Robson, Angus J	Turner, Matthew	2	_	104	113	56.50
		2	-	60		
Dixon,James S	Turner, Matthew				108	54.00
Tibbetts,Joel A	Bachmann, Hugh A	2	-	69	108	54.00
Robson, James G	Emery, Keiran	1	-	107	107	107.00
Hayward, Matthew W	Crichton,Samuel L	5	-	64	107	21.40
Creed,Murray W	Day,James R F	4	-	48	106	26.50
Atallah,Tom	Parsons,Eriq	3	1	56*	103	51.50
Towers,Steven J	Sanders, Matthew R	2	1	73*	102	102.00
Higgins,Oliver W	Bowcock, Daniel S	3	-	55	102	34.00
Robson,Samuel D	Gowland,Mitchell	3	-	61	101	33.67
Bachmann,Hugh A	Roche,Jordan M	2	-	96	101	50.50
Robson,Samuel D	Tibbetts,Joel A	3	-	59	100	33.33
Higgins,Oliver W	Elliott, Timothy J	3	-	64	100	33.33
Tibbetts,Joel A	Robson, Angus J	4	_	35	100	25.00

PLAYER OF THE YEAR POINTS 2006/2007

	Pr	Attendanc		Prac	Attendanc			On Field		Total
Player	No.	%	Points	No.	%	Points	Points	Mts	Avg	Points
Christian, Daniel T	1	14.3	10	42	100.0	420	1716	14	122.57	2146
Nikolovski,Richard	3	42.9	30	27	64.3	270	1660	15	110.67	1960
Day,James R F	5	71.4	50	32	76.2	320	1476	15	98.40	1846
Lang, Timothy E	4	57.1	40	32	76.2	320	1447	14	103.36	1807
Mag,Michael	6	85.7	60	33	78.6	330	1366	14	97.57	1756
Robson,Angus J	5	71.4	50	32	76.2	320	1282	15	85.47	1652
Towers,Steven J	4	57.1	40	33	78.6	330	1248	15	83.20	1618
Creed,Murray W	3	42.9	30	34	81.0	340	1146	15	76.40	1516
Gowland,Mitchell	4	57.1	40	26	61.9	260	1174	15	78.27	1474
Robson,James G	0	0.0	0	3	7.1	30	1366	11	124.18	1396
Cooper,Tom L W	1	14.3	10	25	59.5	250	1054	14	75.29	1314
O'Brien,Christopher	5	71.4	50	30	71.4	300	903	14	64.50	1253
Bhandari,Danny	7	100.0	70	14	33.3	140	1027	12	85.58	1237
Groves,Peter R	1	14.3	10	36	85.7	360	811	15	54.07	1181
Maguire,Peter H	2	28.6	20	4	9.5	40	1108	11.5	96.35	1168
Crichton,Samuel L	1	14.3	10	32	76.2	320	809	13	62.23	1139
Robson,Samuel D	4	57.1	40	35	83.3	350	733	14	52.36	1123
Jauregui,Victor	3	42.9	30	43	102.4	430	647	13	49.77	1107
Tibbetts,Joel A	5	71.4	50	15	35.7	150	901	14	64.36	1101
Bowcock, Daniel S	0	0.0	0	15	35.7	150	949	15	63.27	1099
Rea,Michael P	7	100.0	70	38	90.5	380	641	13	49.31	1091
Turner, Matthew	5	71.4	50	16	38.1	160	873	15	58.20	1083
Neilan, Andrew M	5	71.4	50	16	38.1	160	869	12	72.42	1079
Dixon,James S	5	71.4	50	31	73.8	310	683	14	48.79	1043
Zehner,Eric J W	5	71.4	50	13	31.0	130	819	12	68.25	999
Richardson, Timothy S	5	71.4	50	1	2.4	10	903	15	60.20	963
Carson,David J	3	42.9	30	29	69.0	290	637	14	45.50	957
Jeffrey,Andrew D	6	85.7	60	25	59.5	250	640	15	42.67	950
Emery,Keiran	0	0.0	0	32	76.2	320	624	11	56.73	944
Sykes,Mitchell C	1	14.3	10	20	47.6	200	721	11	65.55	931
Higgins,Oliver W	0	0.0	0	12	28.6	120	786	14	56.14	906
Sanders, Matthew R	4	57.1	40	6	14.3	60	801	14	57.21	901
Treuberg, Matthias	7	100.0	70	36	85.7	360	443	11	40.27	873
Wijeratne, Gihan N	5	71.4	50	31	73.8	310	509	15	33.93	869
Ward, Christopher	3	42.9	30	17	40.5	170	629	12	52.42	829
Roche, Jordan M	3	42.9	30	21	50.0	210	588	7	84.00	828
Culhane, Daniel J	2	28.6	20	0	0.0	0	793	7	113.29	813
Mark,Julian C	5	71.4	50	18	42.9	180	578	10	57.80	808
Walker,George W	0	0.0	0	9	21.4	90	703	11	63.91	793
Williams,Luke	3	42.9	30	23	54.8	230	529	14	37.79	789
Carson,Peter W	5	71.4	50	7	16.7	70	663	15	44.20	783
McKay,Stuart W	5	71.4	50	28	66.7	280	452	15	30.13	782
Owers, Matthew S	5	71.4	50	27	64.3	270	452	12	37.67	772
Bachmann, Hugh A	3	42.9	30	8	19.0	80	653	14	46.64	763
Jones, Andrew C	4	57.1	40	21	50.0	210	513	14	36.64	763
Hayward, Matthew W	3	42.9	30	1	2.4	10	720	10	72.00	760
Thomas, Christopher M	2	28.6	20	14	33.3	140	574	7	82.00	734
Crowl,Samuel J	5	71.4	50	17	40.5	170	514	14	36.71	734
Lane,Stephen	0	0.0	0	21	50.0	210	522	8	65.25	732
Dooley,Robert A	0	0.0	0	22	52.4	220	500	12	41.67	720
Smith,Graeme P	0	0.0	0	2	4.8	20	699	6	116.50	719
Nabarro, Jordan	0	0.0	0	14	33.3	140	538	10	53.80	678
Appleton,Mark S	4	57.1	40	16	38.1	160	478	13	36.77	678
Charlwood, Alexander G	4	57.1	40	11	26.2	110	515	13	39.62	665
O'Connor,Mitchell W	4	57.1	40	10	23.8	100	506	11	46.00	646
Weerakkody, Nivan	0	0.0	0	3	7.1	30	607	11	55.18	637
•										

		Attendand		_	Attendance					l
Plaver	No.	actice - Pre 5	Points	No.	ctice - During	g Season Points	Points	On Field Mts	Avg	Total Points
Elliott,Timothy J	4	57.1	40	12	28.6	120	474	15	31.60	634
Morris,Christopher J	4	57.1	40	11	26.2	110	475	13	36.54	625
Van Der Gugten, Timm	3	42.9	30	19	45.2	190	393	7	56.14	613
Pereira, Gavin J	3	42.9	30	7	16.7	70	407	7	58.14	507
Halikas,Steven	2	28.6	20	10	23.8	100	385	12	32.08	505
Mauric, Vince	0	0.0	0	3	7.1	30	468	3	156.00	498
Stark,Robert W	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	483	4	120.75	483
Mann,David L	5	71.4	50	19	45.2	190	243	8	30.38	483
Tan,Jonathan J H	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	482	11	43.82	482
Elliott, Michael R	3	42.9	30	2	4.8	20	415	12	34.58	465
Afzal,Faisal	1	14.3	10	1	2.4	10	435	11	39.55	455
Cheung, Jason	7	100.0	70	20	47.6	200	181	8	22.62	451
Kalagara,Suresh K	5	71.4	50	8	19.0	80	276	7	39.43	406
Das,Kushal	1	14.3	10	6 19	45.2	190	178	9	19.78	378
Swanwick,Paul R	5	71.4	50	0	0.0	0	319	10	31.90	369
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·										
Leishman,Richard A	2	28.6	20	6	14.3	60	277	7	39.57	357
Wakim,Benjamin	3	42.9	30	14	33.3	140	177	4	44.25	347
Jebb,David C	7	100.0	70	21	50.0	210	67	4	16.75	347
Coomber,Richard	3	42.9	30	1	2.4	10	286	6	47.67	326
Fleming, Tallaesen	0	0.0	0	2	4.8	20	293	11	26.64	313
Gregg,Michael	0	0.0	0	3	7.1	30	274	7	39.14	304
Crowe, Murray	2	28.6	20	2	4.8	20	258	2	129.00	298
Walters, Michael B	2	28.6	20	4	9.5	40	228	6	38.00	288
Cox,Timothy D	0	0.0	0	2	4.8	20	241	4	60.25	261
Dennis,Gregory M	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	246	3	82.00	246
Heysen, David C H	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	234	4	58.50	234
Grzadka,Paul	0	0.0	0	8	19.0	80	117	4	29.25	197
Garland,Matthew	5	71.4	50	7	16.7	70	70	2	35.00	190
Lockett,Benjamin M	0	0.0	0	5	11.9	50	120	3	40.00	170
Panditaratne,Hashan	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	150	1	150.00	150
Mitchell,Peter B	1	14.3	10	1	2.4	10	123	3	41.00	143
Johnson,Brendan	0	0.0	0	4	9.5	40	94	5	18.80	134
McDonald, Gavin S	1	14.3	10	3	7.1	30	86	3	28.67	126
Serov,Paul	1	14.3	10	3	7.1	30	80	2	40.00	120
De Silva,Chaanuk A	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	110	3	36.67	110
Panda,Koush	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	98	3	32.67	98
Parsons,Eriq	0	0.0	0	1	2.4	10	88	2	44.00	98
Garnon, Tyler K	4	57.1	40	0	0.0	0	54	2	27.00	94
Jourdain,Chris	0	0.0	0	1	2.4	10	70	3	23.33	80
McDowall,Lachlan	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	74	3	24.67	74
Campbell,Richard	3	42.9	30	1	2.4	10	20	1	20.00	60
Brownlee, Joel	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	58	1	58.00	58
Atallah,Tom	0	0.0	0	1	2.4	10	43	1	43.00	53
Kemmery,Alec	0	0.0	0	1	2.4	10	41	1	41.00	51
Maddock,Clint	0	0.0	0	4	9.5	40	11	3	3.67	51
Gerber,Simon B H	1	14.3	10	0	0.0	0	20	1	20.00	30
Wakim,Charlie	1	14.3	10	1	2.4	10	1	1	1.00	21
Gulden,Adam	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	18	2	9.00	18
Stuart, Alexander I	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	12	1	12.00	12
Merlin,Sam	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	7	1	7.00	7
Vonwiller, Christoph C	0	0.0	0	0	0.0	0	4	1	4.00	4
•										

Inclusion's / Exclusion's

- Includes points obtained through playing Grade's 1 6, Rounds 1 15.
- Does not include points obtained through playing 1st grade LO games played on a Sunday, Poidevin-Gray Shield, A.W.Green Shield
 ,Quarter Finals, Semi Finals or Finals.
- Only includes official practice sessions were all club members are invited to participate.
- Includedes certain designated pre-season practice sessions.
- Does not include official practice sessions that have been "rained out", or that fall on or around public holidays.
- Points for practice attendance are awarded to those who are absent due to representative duties.

CAREER STATISTICS

The career statistics provided are limited to the details of those players who have achieved designated milestones in runs, wickets or dismissals.

At this stage in our Club's relatively short existence (particularly at a Grade level) these milestones have been set at the below indicated levels. For more comprehensive career statistics please refer to the 1998/99 Annual Report, or for the complete details of every club representative, please refer to the Club's database which is (hopefully by now) contained on the UNSWCC Website.

The UNSWCC would like to recognise the enormous amount of work and effort put in by Peter "Jerry" Maguire in compiling the statistics, both for this season and the career stats, and for developing the fabulous statistics package available on the club's website. Also, thanks to Darren Sue (our "Stats Nazi" as Starky likes to call him), Greg Livingstone (who has managed the career statistics database for many years) and Olly Higgins (who has taken on the stats while Jerry is overseas). The comprehensive stats throughout this report are entirely their efforts.

They are performing an invaluable job that the entire Club (past and present) can and will benefit from (certainly has made the Annual Report Editor's job much easier). Please note that the career statistics, together with the current season statistics, are updated regularly throughout the season and can be viewed on the club's website:

www.cricket.unsw.edu.au

ALL GRADES & SHIRES

BATTING

(3000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Robson ; James George	472	80	165*	13614	34.73	77	11
Martel; Jock B	392	26	212	9946	27.17	51	8
Taylor ; Alexander J	502	44	123	9383	20.49	unavailable	unavailable
Livingstone ; Gregory Robert	306	32	204*	8952	32.67	51	12
Dixon ; James Stuart	392	41	139*	8052	22.94	39	5
Carson; David Jeffrey	266	31	173	6626	28.20	32	7
Jones ; Clayton W	280	21	159	6297	24.31	32	3
Meagher; David	228	31	154	6020	30.56	29	8
Bundy; Harold C	243	27	151	5921	27.41	unavailable	unavailable
Jebb; David Charles	231	18	131	5655	26.55	28	6
Chapman; Christopher J	219	27	124*	5503	28.66	26	4
Christian; Daniel T	206	23	161	5436	29.70	24	10
Epstein ; Anthony	338	45	95	5245	17.90	11	-
Baker ; James Michael	179	16	180*	5171	31.72	23	8
Pratt; Anthony D	258	34	138	5141	22.95	20	5
Hayward; Matthew W	177	21	155	4641	29.75	18	6
Coots; Duncan	165	10	163	4444	28.67	18	6
Leahy; Mark Charles	192	4	128*	4326	23.01	27	1
Lucas ; Robin W	203	24	129	4285	23.94	unavailable	unavailable
Slater ; Michael J	83	7	213*	4197	55.22	21	14

Ray ; Mark	184	7	105	4170	23.56	23	1
Elliott; Michael R	188	14	164	4169	23.96	11	10
Jourdain; Peter W	204	18	87	3902	20.98	18	-
Robertson; Rodger W D	179	31	115	3895	26.32	11	1
Carson; Peter W	179	19	153	3831	23.94	17	4
Reidy; Michael J	157	13	118	3813	26.48	unavailable	unavailable
Johnson; Andrew William	152	14	154*	3760	27.25	13	6
Richardson; Timothy S	129	11	164	3614	30.63	16	7
Mullen; Mark D	160	20	231*	3597	25.69	18	4
Wijeratne ; Asoka H	180	25	114	3585	23.13	19	1
Mohideen ; Sohail A	133	14	113*	3420	28.74	22	1
Bowcock; Daniel S	121	12	222	3383	31.04	18	3
Andrews; Barry G	152	17	97	3332	24.68	unavailable	-
Bhandari ; Danny	141	11	185	3245	24.96	14	4
Garland ; Geoffery M	273	85	98	3226	17.16	unavailable	-
Norbury; Stephen A	124	14	126*	3222	29.29	12	5
Young ; Jason C	87	10	161*	3203	41.60	20	5
Jameson; Christopher W	161	15	95*	3201	21.92	15	-
Hoare; Todd J	144	11	121*	3173	23.86	15	2
Livingstone; Stanley E	299	34	103*	3172	11.97	unavailable	unavailable
Crear ; Tim	216	17	121	3136	15.76	unavailable	unavailable
Handley; Bruce	136	18	151*	3093	26.21	13	3
Creed; Murray W	78	9	169	3089	44.77	21	6
Boyer; Matthew	116	17	129*	3046	30.77	15	5

BOWLING

(250 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Robinson; Greig G	630	4238.5	1072	11803	18.73	unavailable	6-26
Stark ; Robert William	609	4039.2	1049	10174	16.71	28	8-16
Garland; Geoffery M	592	2370.2	444	8018	13.54	unavailable	unavailable
Dixon; James Stuart	569	4830.2	1221	13184	23.17	15	5-31
Middleton; John Mck	475	2062	375	6598	13.89	unavailable	unavailable
Robson ; James George	457	4374.1	1466	9033	19.77	8	6-26
Schofield; Philip J	445	1473	221	5528	12.42	unavailable	unavailable
Livingstone ; Stanley E	407	1436.2	99	7081	17.40	unavailable	unavailable
Gregg; Michael John	390	3470.4	840	9250	23.72	8	7-40
Clark; Glen Alexander	389	2850.5	683	7459	19.17	11	9-18
Ray ; Mark	323	2111	586	5657	17.51	16	8-46
Merrell; Ralph W	323	1952.3	290	6724	20.82	10	6-51
Quinlin; David	321	2692.4	678	7445	23.19	12	7-19
Stephen; Darren J	312	2242.3	510	6529	20.93	15	8-58
Campbell; Steven G	295	1882.5	356	6537	22.16	11	7-85
Pym ; Richard E	290	1989.4	307	6929	23.89	5	7-78
Grattan-Smith; Padriac J	286	1972.4	484	5595	19.56	10	8-44
Zehner ; Eric J W	284	1971.1	329	6914	24.35	7	8-36
Lawson; Geoffrey Francis	283	1903	508	4644	16.41	11	8-38
Clements; Andrew Paul Retford	278	2445	800	5209	18.74	14	6-20
Ingleson; John E	267	1940.3	438	5732	21.47	10	8-27
Saunders ; Warren R	266	2412.2	572	6975	26.22	6	6-14

Trafford ; David	264	2120.1	429	6959	26.36	7	7-43
Christian; Daniel T	264	1684.5	240	6412	24.29	5	8-57
Mullen; Mark D	257	1762.1	370	5448	21.20	5	6-19
Pratt; Anthony D	256	2527	569	7990	31.21	8	6-36
Turner; Robert A	255	1217	218	3888	15.25	unavailable	unavailable
Gallop; David	254	2118.1	458	6301	24.81	5	7-75
Horley ; Jon	254	1982.3	373	6593	25.96	8	7-71
Ryan ; Michael Bede	250	2160.2	501	6086	24.34	6	7-40

DISMISSALS

(100 dismissals or more)

Player	Catches	Stumpings	Dismissals	Position
Neilan; Andrew M	236	71	307	Wicketkeeper
Kovacs ; Michael	220	35	255	Wicketkeeper
Back; Michael	187	43	230	Wicketkeeper
Barford ; John P	187	32	219	Wicketkeeper
Robson ; James George	215	-	215	
Barrington ; Clem H	137	68	205	Wicketkeeper
Sanders; Matthew Richard	143	43	186	Wicketkeeper
Martel; Jock B	160	2	162	
Dixon; James Stuart	162	-	162	
MacFarlane ; John D	139	22	161	Wicketkeeper
Epstein; Anthony	153	8	161	Wicketkeeper
Smith; Roger T	125	34	159	Wicketkeeper
Morson; Michael	135	20	155	Wicketkeeper
Nott; Benjamin P J	141	14	155	Wicketkeeper
Mitchell; Peter B	117	20	137	Wicketkeeper
Hanger; Christopher	105	27	132	Wicketkeeper
Robertson; Rodger W D	115	8	123	
Garland; Geoffery M	122	-	122	
Nikolovski ; Richard	88	29	117	Wicketkeeper
Little; David Anthony	102	14	116	Wicketkeeper
Livingstone; Gregory Robert	116	-	116	
Higgins; Oliver W	99	16	115	Wicketkeeper
Stark ; Robert William	115	-	115	-
Sackett ; John	101	5	106	
Deegan; Paul G	86	17	103	Wicketkeeper
Hopkins; Hugh	83	17	100	Wicketkeeper
Ray ; Mark	100	-	100	-

SYDNEY GRADE ONLY

BATTING

(3000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Robson ; James George	451	75	165*	13101	34.84	74	11
Martel ; Jock B	340	17 17	212	8746	27.08	74 44	8
Livingstone; Gregory Robert	296	32	204*	8718	33.02	48	12
Dixon; James Stuart	381	41	139*	7681	22.59	35	5
Carson; David Jeffrey	249	31	173	6222	28.54	30	7
Meagher ; David	224	31	154	5986	31.02	29	8
Jones ; Clayton W	266	20	159	5856	23.80	28	3
Jebb; David Charles	230	18	131	5548	26.17	28	5
	250 257	34	131	5098	22.86	20	5
Pratt ; Anthony D Chapman ; Christopher J	205	26	124*	4924	27.51	22	3
Baker ; James Michael	169	15	180*	4924	31.85	21	8
Hayward; Matthew W	172	21	155	4453	29.49	17	6
Coots ; Duncan	156	9	163	4433	28.84	17 17	6
Taylor; Alexander J	207	12	123	4240	21.69	18	1
Leahy; Mark Charles	183	3	128*	4250	23.07	26	1
Christian; Daniel T	171	21	161	4132	27.23	20 17	7
•	171	7	105	4025	23.96	23	1
Ray; Mark Slater; Michael J	78	7	213*	3984	56.11	23 19	14
Carson; Peter W	176	18	153	3774	23.89	17	4
Jourdain ; Peter W	176	18	133 87	3750	23.09	18	4
Elliott; Michael R	169	10	164	3692	23.37	10	8
•	109	11	164	3614	30.63	16	7
Richardson; Timothy S	129 175	23	114	3528	23.21	16 19	1
Wijeratne; Asoka H	214	25 25	70*	3328 3419	18.09	8	1
Epstein ; Anthony Bowcock ; Daniel S	121	12	222	3383	31.04	8 18	3
•		13	154*	3323	27.24	12	<i>5</i>
Johnson ; Andrew William	135 141	13	185	3323 3245	24.96	14	4
Bhandari ; Danny							
Norbury ; Stephen A	124	14	126*	3222	29.29	12	5
Mullen; Mark D	152	16	104	3218	23.66	18	2
Young ; Jason C	82	10	161*	3094	42.97	20	5
Handley; Bruce	136	18	151*	3093	26.21	13	3
Creed; Murray W	78	9	169	3089	44.77	21	6
Mohideen ; Sohail A	115	14	113*	3038	30.08	20	1
Boyer ; Matthew	112	17	129*	3007	31.65	15	5

BOWLING

(200 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Stark ; Robert William	591	3943.2	1030	9839	16.65	27	8-16
Dixon; James Stuart	549	4703.3	1185	12843	23.39	14	5-31
Robinson; Greig G	461	3656.5	969	9728	21.10	17	6-26
Robson; James George	443	4330.1	1460	8822	19.91	7	6-26
Clark; Glen Alexander	386	2840.4	682	7428	19.24	11	9-18
Quinlin; David	321	2692.4	678	7445	23.19	12	7-19

Gregg; Michael John	319	2948.1	740	7554	23.68	7	7-40
Merrell; Ralph W	315	1931.2	290	6609	20.98	10	6-51
Stephen; Darren J	312	2242.3	510	6529	20.93	15	8-58
Ray ; Mark	307	2111	586	5467	17.81	16	8-46
Pym ; Richard E	290	1989.4	307	6929	23.89	5	7-78
Grattan-Smith ; Padriac J	286	1972.4	484	5595	19.56	10	8-44
Campbell; Steven G	280	1800	339	6225	22.23	11	7-85
Clements; Andrew Paul Retford	277	2425	800	5175	18.68	14	6-20
Saunders ; Warren R	266	2412.2	572	6975	26.22	6	6-14
Ingleson; John E	262	1918.1	436	5623	21.46	10	8-27
Pratt; Anthony D	255	2521	569	7964	31.23	8	6-36
Gallop; David	254	2118.1	458	6301	24.81	5	7-75
Zehner; Eric J W	250	1843.3	327	6355	25.42	5	6-43
Mullen; Mark D	248	1711.1	359	5280	21.29	5	6-19
Trafford ; David	247	1979.2	399	6593	26.69	6	7-43
Lawson; Geoffrey Francis	244	1734.3	461	4196	17.20	8	8-38
Horley; Jon	244	1874.5	353	6260	25.66	8	7-71
Ryan ; Michael Bede	231	2030.2	476	5673	24.56	4	7-40
Taylor; Lachlan R	228	1582.3	316	4816	21.12	8	7-48
Buckett; Timothy F	225	1502.5	289	4380	19.47	7	6-32
Debello ; Steven	224	1715.1	350	5063	22.60	7	8-84
White ; Adrian	218	2280.1	649	6032	27.67	9	6-38
Mag; Michael	208	1687.3	405	5323	25.59	5	6-53
Hetherington ; William	204	1183.2	321	2985	14.63	6	8-48
Christian; Daniel T	204	1373.4	194	5314	26.05	4	8-57

$\underline{Dismissals}$

(100 dismissals or more)

Player	Catches	Stumpings	Dismissals	Position
Neilan ; Andrew M	217	58	275	Wicketkeeper
Kovacs ; Michael	213	31	244	Wicketkeeper
Back; Michael	184	42	226	Wicketkeeper
Barford ; John P	176	30	206	Wicketkeeper
Robson; James George	196	-	196	_
Sanders; Matthew Richard	142	43	185	Wicketkeeper
Martel; Jock B	160	2	162	Wicketkeeper
Dixon; James Stuart	158	-	158	_
Morson; Michael	135	20	155	Wicketkeeper
Nott ; Benjamin P J	141	14	155	Wicketkeeper
MacFarlane; John D	125	18	143	Wicketkeeper
Smith; Roger T	109	32	141	Wicketkeeper
Mitchell; Peter B	117	20	137	Wicketkeeper
Hanger; Christopher	102	23	125	Wicketkeeper
Livingstone ; Gregory Robert	114	-	114	-
Epstein; Anthony	108	2	110	
Stark ; Robert William	107	-	107	
Higgins; Oliver W	92	14	106	Wicketkeeper
Sackett ; John	101	5	106	-
Pratt; Anthony D	100	-	100	
Ray ; Mark	100	-	100	

1ST GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(2500 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Robson ; James George	304	42	8162	31.15	44	6
Livingstone; Gregory Robert	271	26	7470	30.49	42	6
Carson; David Jeffrey	181	25	4600	29.49	20	6
Chapman; Christopher J	191	25	4553	27.43	21	3
Baker ; James Michael	145	14	4180	31.91	14	7
Ray ; Mark	175	7	4025	23.96	23	1
Dixon; James Stuart	224	27	3650	18.53	12	2
Slater; Michael J	67	7	3352	55.87	16	12
Pratt; Anthony D	175	19	3123	20.02	13	1
Young ; Jason C	71	8	2912	46.22	20	5

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi
Dixon ; James Stuart	365	3420	865	9182	25.16	11
Ray ; Mark	307	2111	586	5467	17.81	16
Grattan-Smith; Padriac J	235	1587	373	4648	19.78	8
Lawson; Geoffrey Francis	212	1538	416	3683	17.37	7
Robson ; James George	180	2037	668	4435	24.64	3
Pratt; Anthony D	174	1802	415	5630	32.36	6
Horley ; Jon	167	1363	261	4586	27.46	6
Campbell; Steven G	149	1199	262	3818	25.62	3
Pym ; Richard E	145	1005	136	3824	26.37	3
Baker ; James Michael	144	1279	299	3987	27.69	5
Saunders ; Warren R	139	1236	313	3454	24.85	5
Trafford ; David	129	1055	229	3553	27.54	3
Gallop; David	124	1139	249	3374	27.21	2
Christian; Daniel T	123	841.2	112	3148	25.59	3
Salisbury ; Ian D K	118	877.9	186	2400	20.34	6
Heysen; David CH	112	886.9	143	3285	29.33	7
Lang; Timothy E	111	752.8	165	2079	18.73	5
Perger; Nigel	110	779.9	197	2197	19.97	6
Van der Sluys ; Steven	109	620.9	114	2161	19.83	5
Watson; Gregory G	105	684.7	143	2081	19.82	1
White ; Adrian	100	1120	327	2995	29.95	4

DISMISSALS

(100 dismissals or more)

Player	Catches	Stumpings	Dismissals	Position
Neilan ; Andrew M	136	32	168	Wicketkeeper
Back; Michael	139	28	167	Wicketkeeper
Robson ; James George	161	-	161	
Kovacs ; Michael	102	10	112	Wicketkeeper
Livingstone ; Gregory Robert	105	-	105	
Dixon; James Stuart	104	-	104	
Hanger; Christopher	84	19	103	Wicketkeeper
Ray ; Mark	100	-	100	_

1ST GRADE ONE DAY CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(350 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Carson ; David Jeffrey	52	5	1289	27.43	9	-
Christian; Daniel T	43	7	1007	27.97	6	-
Creed; Murray W	22	3	914	48.11	6	2
Richardson; Timothy S	23	2	718	34.19	3	1
Watson; Michael G	16	2	676	48.29	4	1
Slater; Michael J	11	0	632	57.45	3	2
Phelps ; Matthew J	13	2	562	51.09	4	1
O'Connor; Mitchell W	26	5	489	23.29	1	-
Cooper; Tom L W	12	1	421	38.27	2	1
Lang; Timothy E	16	4	396	33	3	-
Neilan; Andrew M	27	5	364	16.55	-	-
Jeffrey ; Andrew D	14	0	363	25.93	3	-

BOWLING

(15 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi
Salisbury; Ian D K	41	132.8	23	341	8.32	2
Christian; Daniel T	39	245.2	17	1264	32.41	1
Lang; Timothy E	36	183	34	607	16.86	2
Cox; Timothy D	34	222.5	29	783	23.03	-
Day ; James R F	33	230.7	27	901	27.3	-
Heysen; David C H	31	166	19	706	22.77	1
Langford-Smith; David	31	182.2	13	775	25	-
Horley; Jon	29	157.4	14	579	19.97	1
Saunders; Warren R	28	179	19	767	27.39	-
Zehner; Eric J W	28	195.2	7	909	32.46	1
Carson; David Jeffrey	22	120.9	7	596	27.09	-
Dixon ; James Stuart	22	94.1	19	377	17.14	-
Danenbergsons; Karl	21	137	11	627	29.86	-
Gallop; David	19	110.6	7	444	23.37	-
Trafford; David	18	117.1	12	372	20.67	-
Mullen; Mark D	16	86	9	343	21.44	-
Stephen; Darren J	15	117	12	462	30.8	-

DISMISSALS

(10 dismissals or more)

Player	Catches	Stumpings	Dismissals	Position
Neilan ; Andrew M	62	16	78	Wicketkeeper
Carson; David Jeffrey	18	-	18	
Christian; Daniel T	17	-	17	
Kovacs; Michael	11	6	17	Wicketkeeper
Nott; Benjamin P J	13	4	17	Wicketkeeper
Salisbury; Ian D K	11	-	11	-
Sutton; Luke D	9	2	11	Wicketkeeper

1ST GRADE 2 DAY & LO CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(2000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Robson ; James George	310	42	124	8327	31.07	45	6
Livingstone; Gregory Robert	271	26	201*	7470	30.49	42	6
Carson; David Jeffrey	233	30	173	5889	29.01	29	6
Chapman; Christopher J	191	25	124*	4553	27.43	21	3
Baker ; James Michael	145	14	180*	4180	31.91	14	7
Ray ; Mark	175	7	105	4025	23.96	23	1
Slater; Michael J	78	7	213*	3984	56.11	19	14
Dixon; James Stuart	241	28	106*	3885	18.24	12	2
Christian; Daniel T	143	17	161	3740	29.68	17	7
Pratt; Anthony D	193	21	121	3372	19.60	14	1
Young ; Jason C	82	10	161*	3094	42.97	20	5
Creed; Murray W	70	9	169	2776	45.51	20	5
Phelps ; Matthew J	70	8	173	2432	39.23	16	2
Meagher; David	85	13	117*	2173	30.18	9	4
Richardson; Timothy S	83	9	121	2166	29.27	9	4

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Dixon ; James Stuart	387	3514.9	884	9559	24.70	11	5-44
Ray ; Mark	307	2111	586	5467	17.81	16	8-46
Grattan-Smith; Padriac J	235	1587.1	373	4648	19.78	8	8-44
Lawson; Geoffrey Francis	213	1562	419	3753	17.62	7	8-38
Horley; Jon	196	1520.4	275	5165	26.35	7	7-71
Robson; James George	186	2077	669	4600	24.73	3	5-24
Pratt; Anthony D	185	1883.5	419	5979	32.32	6	6-43
Saunders ; Warren R	167	1415.2	332	4221	25.28	5	6-14
Christian; Daniel T	162	1086.4	129	4412	27.23	4	8-57
Salisbury; Ian D K	159	1011.1	209	2741	17.24	8	7-55
Campbell; Steven G	149	1199.2	262	3818	25.62	3	5-12
Lang; Timothy E	147	936.2	199	2686	18.27	7	7-20
Trafford ; David	147	1172.5	241	3925	26.70	3	7-43
Pym ; Richard E	145	1004.5	136	3824	26.37	3	7-78
Baker ; James Michael	144	1279.1	299	3987	27.69	5	6-38
Gallop; David	143	1249.1	256	3818	26.70	2	7-75
Heysen; David CH	143	1053.3	162	3991	27.91	8	8-65
Langford-Smith; David	128	922	130	3536	27.63	4	6-89
Perger; Nigel	110	780.3	197	2197	19.97	6	6-58
Van der Sluys ; Steven	109	621.3	114	2161	19.83	5	7-21
Watson; Gregory G	105	685.1	143	2081	19.82	1	5-55
Stephen ; Darren J	105	866	171	2963	28.22	4	7-78
White ; Adrian	100	1120.1	327	2995	29.95	4	6-42

DISMISSALS

(100 dismissals or more)

Player	Catches	Stumpings	Dismissals	Position
Neilan ; Andrew M	198	48	246	Wicketkeeper
Back; Michael	142	30	172	Wicketkeeper
Robson; James George	162	-	162	
Kovacs ; Michael	113	16	129	Wicketkeeper
Dixon; James Stuart	106	-	106	
Livingstone ; Gregory Robert	105	-	105	
Nott; Benjamin P J	93	12	105	Wicketkeeper
Hanger ; Christopher	84	19	103	Wicketkeeper
Ray ; Mark	100	-	100	-

2ND GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(1000 runs or more)

	`	000 14115					
Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Martel ; Jock B	172	10	109	4106	25.35	22	2
Coots; Duncan	97	5	148	3007	32.68	13	4
Bhandari ; Danny	109	8	185	2716	26.89	13	4
Elliott; Michael R	97	6	164	2540	27.91	6	7
Hayward; Matthew W	69	9	155	2223	37.05	8	5
Trimble; Peter Wayne	76	12	129	1944	30.38	10	1
Wijeratne ; Asoka H	76	10	114	1924	29.15	13	1
Carson; Peter W	83	14	103*	1736	25.16	10	1
Mullen; Mark D	72	6	103	1503	22.77	8	1
Jones ; Clayton W	91	8	76	1460	17.59	3	-
Boyer; Matthew	43	7	129*	1451	40.31	8	2
Norbury; Stephen A	66	4	126*	1448	23.35	4	2
Eades ; Glen	61	2	171	1442	24.44	6	2
Sinclair; Peter	57	4	102	1413	26.66	4	1
Leahy; Mark Charles	73	0	99	1387	19.00	7	-
Richardson; Timothy S	42	2	164	1370	34.25	7	3
Meagher; David	51	7	100	1322	30.05	7	1
Kirkwood; Geoffrey	78	9	89*	1301	18.86	5	-
Nott; Hamish P E	51	2	86*	1297	26.47	10	-
Hamman; Rowan M K	40	3	94	1286	34.76	8	-
Lamb ; Alexander	40	5	132	1225	35.00	6	3
Shaw; Andrew	49	2	129	1220	25.96	9	1
Johnson; Andrew William	46	2	119	1201	27.30	2	2
Kilborn; Michael	56	3	115	1189	22.43	5	2
Hamwood; Mark	62	9	87	1170	22.08	5	-
Handley; Bruce	49	6	151*	1154	26.84	4	2
Watt; Michael	44	5	166	1090	27.95	4	2
Jourdain ; Peter W	58	2	67	1057	18.88	4	-
Clark; Glen Alexander	63	13	121	1044	20.88	2	1
Large ; James	59	1	108	1043	17.98	3	1
~							

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Clements; Andrew Paul Retford	185	1596.3	571	3250	17.57	7	6-20
Mullen; Mark D	150	900.5	207	2788	18.59	4	6-19
Pym; Richard E	145	985.3	171	3105	21.41	2	6-43
Gainsford; David J A	135	977.3	193	2933	21.73	3	6-45
Kirkwood; Geoffrey	133	859.1	190	2451	18.43	6	6-43
Robinson; Greig G	128	1030.2	248	2805	21.91	5	6-26
Hamwood; Mark	127	1080.2	260	2877	22.65	6	6-63
Stephen; Darren J	120	915	234	2308	19.23	6	6-49
Clark; Glen Alexander	119	912	203	2394	20.12	3	9-18
Gallop; David	111	867	201	2475	22.30	3	5-50
Bhandari ; Danny	110	854.2	176	2729	24.81	2	5-36
Watkins ; Phillip W	109	506	72	2012	18.46	6	7-22
Campbell; Steven G	105	482.2	65	1883	17.93	7	7-85
Thomas; Christopher M	103	754.5	126	2531	24.57	3	6-55
White ; Adrian	103	1043.4	291	2674	25.96	5	6-38
Buckett; Timothy F	100	634.1	125	1793	17.93	2	5-34

DISMISSALS

(50 dismissals or more)

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Kovacs ; Michael	78	11	89	Wicketkeeper
Morson; Michael	76	7	83	Wicketkeeper
Martel; Jock B	77	1	78	
Deegan; Paul G	64	10	74	Wicketkeeper
Smith; Roger T	50	8	58	Wicketkeeper
Trimble ; Peter Wayne	57	-	57	

3RD GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(1000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Dixon ; James Stuart	98	6	139*	2873	31.23	18	3
Meagher; David	86	11	154	2364	31.52	13	2
Jones ; Clayton W	92	7	159	2240	26.35	13	1
Jebb; David Charles	91	9	128	2072	25.27	9	2
Mohideen ; Sohail A	69	8	99	1885	30.90	12	-
Bowcock; Daniel S	73	7	106	1794	27.18	10	1
Leahy; Mark Charles	65	2	128*	1491	23.67	6	1
Higgins ; Oliver W	48	3	104	1482	32.93	9	1
Jourdain ; Peter W	65	9	87	1410	25.18	7	-
Clarke; Michael	74	8	124	1348	20.42	2	2
Darmody; Leon	56	11	81	1245	27.67	7	-
Smith; Ian Edward	61	5	79	1229	21.95	7	-
Pratt; David T	37	5	100	1176	36.75	6	1
Carson; Peter W	49	0	153	1086	22.16	4	1
Palin; Martin Nicholas	52	6	76	1078	23.43	9	-
Kellaway ; Ian	40	7	130	1030	31.21	3	3

Pratt; Anthony D	28	4	138	1028	42.83	4	3
Campbell; Richard	42	7	99	1010	28.86	4	-
Urquhart ; Paul	42	2	127	1010	25.25	3	1

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Ingleson; John E	189	1337.5	335	3662	19.38	9	8-27
Hetherington; William	112	725.1	211	1808	16.14	4	6-74
Robinson; Greig G	110	811.2	213	2197	19.97	5	6-27
Dennis; Gregory M	107	959.1	202	2828	26.43	1	5-44
Ryan ; Michael Bede	106	821.1	204	2374	22.40	2	5-44

DISMISSALS

(40 dismissals or more)

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Cummins ; Damien	46	4	50	Wicketkeeper
Higgins; Oliver W	43	7	50	Wicketkeeper
Campbell; Richard	30	14	44	Wicketkeeper

4TH GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(1000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Jebb ; David Charles	119	7	131	3172	28.32	18	3
Robson; James George	72	17	149	2468	44.87	14	3
Martel; Jock B	57	2	212	2097	38.13	10	4
Garland ; Geoffery M	79	10	87	1514	21.94	9	-
Jameson; Christopher W	64	6	95*	1384	23.86	7	-
Bowcock; Daniel S	42	4	143	1286	33.84	8	1
Carmichael ; John	77	11	84*	1232	18.67	3	-
Jones ; Clayton W	50	2	123	1217	25.35	5	1
Fleming; Tallaesen	42	1	120	1209	29.49	6	3
McLachlan; Robert	45	7	81	1102	29.00	8	-
Mitchell; Peter B	43	5	98	1100	28.95	3	-
McCoy; Scott	48	4	107	1052	23.91	4	1

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Stark ; Robert William	271	1841.2	518	4379	16.16	13	7-25
Robson; James George	160	1422.5	526	2484	15.53	2	6-26
Gregg; Michael John	114	974	254	2564	22.49	1	5-54

DISMISSALS

(50 dismissals or more)

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Barford ; John P	98	20	118	Wicketkeeper
Sanders; Matthew Richard	75	26	101	Wicketkeeper
Stark; Robert William	50		50	

5TH GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(1000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Epstein; Anthony	138	16	70*	2437	19.98	7	-
Robson; James George	60	14	165*	2135	46.41	14	2
Taylor ; Alexander J	88	8	85	2118	26.48	9	-
James ; Peter E	90	15	103	1704	22.72	3	1
Gerber; Simon B H	50	5	107	1517	33.71	9	2
Mitchell; Peter B	67	8	100*	1471	24.93	6	1
Richardson ; William G	84	5	101	1453	18.39	2	1
Plunkett-Cole; Matthew	55	1	108	1424	26.37	3	3
Jameson; Christopher W	68	8	81	1379	22.98	6	-
Murray; Ian Frederick	90	1	78	1320	14.83	3	-
Martin ; John	64	5	100*	1302	22.07	5	1
Harris; Gavin J	53	6	95	1213	25.81	6	-
Madden ; Keith	54	15	78*	1163	29.82	8	-
Lindsay; Andrew	33	3	138	1043	34.77	5	2
Popovich ; Valco	62	3	98	1017	17.24	2	-

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Stark ; Robert William	271	1700.3	436	4180	15.42	13	8-16
Merrell; Ralph W	259	1642.1	265	5375	20.75	9	6-51
Gregg; Michael John	165	1438.1	358	3685	22.33	6	7-40
Robinson; Greig G	141	1111	363	2724	19.32	6	6-46
Taylor; Lachlan R	132	909	193	2535	19.20	5	6-18
Quinlin; David	103	746.3	211	2082	20.21	4	7-19

DISMISSALS

(50 dismissals or more)

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
MacFarlane ; John D	70	8	78	Wicketkeeper
Barford ; John P	66	10	76	Wicketkeeper
Epstein; Anthony E	68	2	70	Wicketkeeper
Rudd; Jason	62	4	66	Wicketkeeper
Mitchell; Peter B	50	11	61	Wicketkeeper
Sanders; Matthew Richard	42	9	51	Wicketkeeper

6TH GRADE CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(1000 runs or more)

Player	Innings	NO	HS	Aggregate	Average	50	100
Wickremasena; Ruchera	76	9	104	1564	23.34	7	1
Jones ; Andrew C	98	3	100	1470	15.47	4	1

BOWLING

(100 wickets or more)

Player	Wickets	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Average	5wi	Best
Phillips ; Michael	113	657	116	2684	23.75	1	5-76

SHIRES CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

(2500 runs or more)

Players name	Inns	NOs	HS	Agg	Average
Bundy ;H.C.	225	23	151	5536	27.41
Taylor ;A.J.	260	31	105*	4556	19.90
Lucas; R.W.	197	24	129	4227	24.43
Reidy; M.J.	155	12	118	3807	26.62
Andrews; B.G.	148	15	97	3297	24.79
Livingstone; S.E.	276	33	103*	3004	12.36
Creer; T.D.	203	15	121	2836	15.09
Downes; T.J.	183	11	74*	2596	15.09

BOWLING

(100 or more)

Players name	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Average
Schofield; P.J,	1473	221	5528	445	12.42
Middleton; J.McK.	1869	356	6008	439	13.69
Garland; G.M.	1366	266	4381	408	10.74
Livingstone; S.E.	1364	96	6728	390	17.25
Turner; A.R.	1217	218	3888	255	15.25
Dockrill; B.	826	122	2983	246	12.13
Bayfield; R.F.	867	155	2690	200	13.45
Lowe; I.	852	128	3368	199	16.92
Preiss; R.	943	138	3017	198	15.24
Ward; P.A.	781	130	2487	193	12.89
Cole; G.J.	718	72	2985	192	15.55
Robinson; G.G.	565	102	1997	164	12.18
Pratley; J.E.	716	82	2871	161	17.83
Emery; P.C.	668	125	2362	152	15.54
Schofield; K.J.	536	85	1939	139	13.95
Beard; J.R.	555	62	2454	124	19.79
Southwell-Keely; P.	362	56	1413	123	11.49
Stockley; D.M.	329	25	1433	114	12.57
Clark; D.	436	40	2140	113	18.94
Warrener; R.	523	54	2225	107	20.79
Downes; T.J.	305	25	1881	104	18.09

DISMISSALS

(50 or more)

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total
Barrington; C.H.	137	68	205
Hopkins; H.W.	67	13	80
Robertson; R.W.D.	71	7	78
Garland; G.M.	74	-	74
Middleton; J.McK.	68	-	68
Schofield; P.J.	68	-	68
Wills; D.E.	55	10	65
Cole; G.J.	65	-	65
Pigott; J.	50	13	63
Lucas; R.W.	58	4	62
Levi; R.S.J.	38	23	61
Taylor; A.J.	56	-	56
Chegwyn; J.	48	6	54
Epstein; A.	45	6	51

WOMEN'S CAREER STATISTICS

BATTING

Players name	Innings	Not outs	Aggregate	Career average	50's	100's
Van Ardenne ; Joy	55	8	1582	33.66	10	1
Lees; Cassandra	41	17	1169	48.71	8	-
Zeppos; Sonia	46	17	865	29.83	2	-
Connelly; Gemma	36	6	765	25.50	4	-

BOWLING

Players name	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Average
Van Ardenne ; Joy	529	119	1139	107	10.64
Connelly; Gemma	177.7	30	395	52	7.60
Conoplia; Zoy	182.4	55	316	42	7.52
Lees; Cassandra	172	33	418	38	11.00
Martel; Nikki	137.5	6	581	34	17.09
Van Oploo ; Pam	128	20	348	33	10.55
Firklin; Cathy	133.1	9	486	30	16.20
Bunton; J	108	16	352	23	15.30
Wallace ; P	101	15	312	23	13.57
Rickard-Bell ; T	122	11	451	21	21.48

DISMISSALS

Players name	Catches	Stumpings	Total	Position
Newin; Wendy	26	0	26	Wicketkeeper
Van Ardenne ; Joy	22	-	22	
Zeppos; Sonia	16	-	16	

CLUB RECORDS

Team and partnership records apply to the years in the Sydney Grade Competition - from and including the season 1973-74. For records prior to the 1972-73 season refer to the 1972-73 Annual Report Municipal and Shires Competition. Performances in teams for which not all club members are eligible (Poidevin-Gray and Intervarsity) are not included - details can be obtained in past annual reports. Records for the Women's teams are still being collated. A minimum of 250 runs or 15 wickets is required to qualify for batting or bowling records. Only the initial record maker is identified for individuals and partnerships in the event of tied records.

INDIVIDUAL GRADE RECORDS

FIRST GRADE				
Highest Score	5/400	v	Manly	1997/98
Batting Aggregate	1102		M.Creed	2004/05
Batting Aggregate (LO)	395		M.Creed	2004/05
Batting Average	72.13		C. Adams	2000/01
Record Score	213*		M. Slater	1999/00
Bowling Aggregate	55		M. Ray	1980/81
Bowling Aggregate (LO)	16		J.Day	2004/05
Bowling Average	9.3		G. Lawson	1980/81
Record Figures	8/38		G. Lawson	1979/80
Most Catches	17		M. Ray	1975/76
Wicket Keeper	40/15		A.Neilan	2004/05
Wicket Keeper (LO)	13/8		A.Neilan	2004/05
SECOND GRADE				
Highest Score	471	v	Balmain	1978/79
Batting Aggregate	847		A Lamb	1999/00
Batting Average	102.5		M. Hayward	2002/03
Record Score	204*		G. Livingstone	1991/92
Bowling Aggregate	50		P. Watkins	1974/75
Bowling Average	12.1		G. Robinson	1977/78
Record Figures	9/18		G. Clark	1984/85
Most Catches	19		P. Trimble	1990/91
Wicket Keeper	30/3		P. Mitchell	1999/00

THIRD GRADE				
Highest Score	9/386	v	Fairfield-Liverpool	2004/05
Batting Aggregate	625		D. Meagher	1988/89
Batting Average	71.0		M. Boyer	1990/91
Record Score	197		I.C. Foster	2003/04
Bowling Aggregate	46		D.Stephen	2004/05
Bowling Average	9.6		A. Clements	1987/88
Record Figures	9/22		J. Bolton	1979/80
Most Catches	15		D. Pratt	1979/80
Wicket Keeper	25/0		D. Cummins	1987/88
FOURTH GRADE				
Highest Score	5/373	V	Sydney University	1990/91
Batting Aggregate	767		J. Martel	1989/90
Batting Average	81.8		D. Dermody	1997/98
Record Score	212*		J. Martel	1989/90
Bowling Aggregate	40		J. Robson	1995/96
Bowling Average	11.46		J. Robson	1997/98
			R. Stark	1997/98
Record Figures	10/19		P. Besgrove	1975/76
Most Catches	12		A. Epstein	1973/74
Wicket Keeper	21/4		J. Barford	1976/77
Fifth Grade				
Highest Score	3/445	v	North Sydney	1996/97
Batting Aggregate	590	V	A. Lindsay	1996/97
Batting Average	259.00		J.Stamm	1997/98
Record Score	222		D. Bowcock	1996/97
Bowling Aggregate	58		R. Stark	2001/02
Bowling Average	8.55		G. Holt	1981/82
Record Figures	8/16		R. Stark	2002/03
Most Catches	11		A. Epstein	1975/76
Wicket Keeper	29/2		J. Barford	1981/82
Wicket Reeper	L11L		j. Darrora	1701/02

SIXTH GRADE				
Highest Score	6/416	v	Sutherland	1977/78
Batting Aggregate	566		N. Weerakkody	2005/06
Batting Average	300		M. Mullen	1990/91
Record Score	231*		M. Mullen	1990/91
Bowling Aggregate	40		W. Hetherington	1977/78
Bowling Average	4.94		D. Culhane	2006/07
Record Figures	8/14		D. Culhane	2006/07
Most Catches	12		S. Gonski	1976/77
Wicket Keeper	29/8		D. Hughes	1986/87
POIDEVIN-GRAY SHIELD				
Highest Score	Unavailable			
Batting Aggregate	320		C.J.Chapman	1975/76
Batting Average	130.50		J.G.Robson	1976/77
Record Score	171*		R.M.K.Hamman	1998/99
Bowling Aggregate	35		G.G.Watson	1975/76
Bowling Average	7.00		M.Hamwood	1981/82
Record Figures	7/31		C.A.Brown	1974/75
Most Catches	10		J.G.Robson	1975/76
Wicket Keeper	7/7		R.Nikolovski	2005/06
AW GREEN SHIELD				
Highest Score	Unavailable			
Batting Aggregate	362		D.T.Christian	1998/99
Batting Average	72.40		D.T.Christian	1998/99
Record Score	160*		D.T.Christian	1998/99
Bowling Aggregate	16		A.P.Langdon	1998/99
Bowling Average	10.69		A.P.Langdon	1998/99
Record Figures	5/16		R.Medley	2004/05
Most Catches	6		M.Wilding	1998/99
Wicket Keeper	12/4		B.Wakim	2004/05
<u>Ladies</u>				
Batting Aggregate	566		J. Van Ardenne	1990/91
Batting Average	87.0		S. Zeppos	1995/96
Record Score	108		J. Van Ardenne	1990/91
Bowling Aggregate	44		J. Van Ardenne	1990/91
Bowling Average	5.88		G. Connolly	2000/01
Record Figures	9/34		J. Van Ardenne	1990/91
Most Catches	15		W. Newin	1990/91

PARTNERSHIP RECORDS

FIRST GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	259	A Jeffrey (146)	M O'Connor (112)	UTS-Balmain	2005/06
Second	253	M Slater (184)	G Livingstone (126)	Randwick	1991/92
Third	273*	D Carson (134*)	D Christian (135*)	Sydney University	2005/06
Fourth	269	A Jeffrey (194)	T Cooper (92)	Randwick-Petersham	2005/06
Fifth	151	M Elliott (59)	M Watson (96)	Mosman	2003/04
Sixth	173*	P Tout (140*)	T Buddin (93*)	Sutherland	1979/80
Seventh	141	J Horley (77)	M Hayward (89)	Manly	1995/96
Eighth	142*	M Elliott (131*)	E Zehner (50*)	Wests	2003/04
Ninth	111	S Campbell (57)	N Perger (54*)	Wests	1983/84
	111	C Brown (90)	E Zehner (39*)	Manly-Warringah	2004/05
Tenth	90	J Dixon (68*)	D Stephen (36)	Sutherland	1997/98
	90	J Horley (55)	W Saunders (35*)	Mosman	1998/99

SECOND GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	171	D Bhandari (87)	H Nott (82)	Wests	1999/00
Second	240*	A Pratt (130*)	M Phelps (118*)	Sutherland	1992/93
Third	216	G Eades (171)	D Coots (88)	Manly	1989/90
Fourth	202	P Sinclair (102)	P Trimble (129)	Campbelltown	1990/91
Fifth	147	M Delgigante (61)	P Scolari (71)	Northern District	1985/86
Sixth	161	M Hayward (89*)	M Elliott (164)	Sydney University	2002/03
Seventh	167	M Hayward (106*)	E Zehner (93)	Fairfield-Liverpool	2002/03
Eighth	172	M Hayward (155)	E Zehner (73)	St George	2002/03
Ninth	164	R Nikolovski (110)	M Treuberg (60)	North Sydney	2006/07
Tenth	124	T Buckett (54*)	E Zehner (72)	St George QF	1999/00

THIRD GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	174	D Jebb (128)	S Robson (85)	Fairfield-L'pool	2004/05
Second	204	M Boyer (120)	N Prattent (107*)	Parramatta	1990/91
Third	250	M Creed (110)	I Foster (197)	North Sydney	2003/04
Fourth	212	A Pratt (108)	A Johnson (131*)	Easts	2001/02
Fifth	141	A O'Sullivan (84)	M Owers (70)	Gordon	2005/06
Sixth	179	P Day (106)	J Sackett (88)	Gordon	1983/84
Seventh	128	D Stephen (69)	R Dooley (68)	C'town-Camden	2004/05
Eighth	100*	M Morson	D Quinlin	Gordon	1993/94
Ninth	79	S Price (42)	A Dillon (36)	Sydney	1982/83
Tenth	88	R Campbell (99)	P Thompson (35*)	Sydney	1978/79

FOURTH GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	165	G MacDonald (95)	G Garland (51)	Balmain	1980/81
Second	195	G Hill (109)	C De Silva (60)	Penrith	1993/94
Third	196	J Martel (196)	D Jebb (102*)	Sydney Uni	1990/91
Fourth	205*	J Horley (131*)	N Prattent (70*)	Balmain	1990/91
Fifth	195	H Bachmann (151*)	S Towers (101)	Mosman	2006/07
Sixth	148	A Wheeler (63)	S Norbury (103)	Penrith	1991/92
Seventh	142	J Ingleson (92)	M Woodley (61)	Gordon	1982/83
Eighth	113	P Mitchell (47)	D Ross (58)	Randwick-Petes	2003/04
Ninth	100*	J Martel (212*)	G Robinson (26*)	North Sydney	1989/90
Tenth	82	S Norbury (126)	W Saunders (15*)	Mosman	1991/92

FIFTH GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	188	C Jones (81)	R McLachlan (95)	Manly	1991/92
Second	214*	S Dejong (119)	T Thompson (98)	Easts	2001/02
Third	289	D Bowcock (222)	C Vonwiller (101*)	North Sydney	1996/97
Fourth	173	R Wickramasena (78)	B Christie (103*)	Bankstown	1992/93
Fifth	213	D Sue (69)	J Martel (173)	Hawkesbury	1992/93
Sixth	255	J Robson (111)	P Carson (144)	Parramatta	2002/03
Seventh	82*	G.Clark (55*)	B Calver (27*)	Campbelltown	1997/98
Eighth	112*	G Clark (54*)	M Mag (50*)	Eastern Suburbs	1996/97
Ninth	69	G Robinson (34)	G Sendall (42*)	Petersham	1989/90
Tenth	84	D Bell (73*)	G Clark (18)	Sutherland	1984/85

SIXTH GRADE

Wicket	Score	Player	Player	Opponent	Season
First	110	A Jones (59)	V Jaregui (55)	Hawkesbury	2006/07
Second	171	A Jones (72)	C Neal (100)	Randwick	1994/95
Third	165	J Martin (100*)	E Robb (100)	Randwick	1981/82
Fourth	269	M Mullen (231*)	S Schirmer (88)	Randwick	1990/91
Fifth	126	J Tan (70)	B Tate (80)	Rand-Petersham	2004/05
Sixth	150	M Back (77)	V Popovich (67)	Sydney University	1984/85
Seventh	123	V Popovich (98)	R Glenister (57)	Southern Districts	1983/83
Eighth	123	C Vonwiller (92*)	A Wunsch (43)	Woolpack Wolves	1995/96
Ninth	112*	L Darmody (106*)	S Gibbs (25*)	UNSW A	1980/81
Tenth	53	M Nagarajan (53*)	G Varatharajan (20)	Northern District	1984/85